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George Washington

It has been rightly claimed, originally by Henry Lee, that George Washington (1732-1799) was
“first in war, first in peace, and first in the hearts of his countrymen.” President Washington
vigited Columbia in 1791 and addressed a large crowd from the portico of the old State House.

Omn the cover:

Andrew Jackson

Andrew Jackson (1767-1845) was the son of Scots-lrish immigrants
who lived in Lancaster County. Following his heroic service in the
War of 1812, Jackson embarked on a political career, which
culminated in his election as President of the United States in 1832,
Jackson was the only United States President borm in South Carolina,
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COMPTROLLER'S MESSAGE...

ACCOUNTABILITY TO THE
TAXPAYERS

In 1976 when I was elected Comptroller General of South Carolina, the state had no
modern accounting and financial reporting systems.

We had numbers in a computer. There was no valid year-end balance.

Shortly after my assumption as the state’s Chief Financial Officer, one of the major bond
rating firms stated that unless state and local governments had financial systems that met
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a negative bond rating might result.

With the help of several Big 8 (6) (5) accounting and consulting firms and a highly
professional staff, South Carolina now has state-of-the-art disclosures on all state
accounts.

We have accomplished the following;:

(1) The Government Finance Officers Association has awarded its
. Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for
the past ten years.

(2) The Office of the Comptroller General has received an “unqualified
opinion” from a Big5 firm and the State Auditor for the past ten
consecutive years.

(3) The bond rating firms use our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
as the primary document in determining the state’s bond ratings. At
present, we have the highest ratings that can be awarded.

(4) Credit should be given to the General Assembly for their efforts in
regaining one of the Triple A ratings lost several years ago.

In public office, ethical integrity and personal credibility should be foremost in our
stewardship.

The Office of the Comptroller General has attempted to follow these goals for the
citizens and taxpayers who place their trust in us.

Gl /)w,/@

EARLE E. MORRIS, JR.
COMPTROLLER GENERAL




A GALLERY OF HEROES

The land of South Carolina varies dramatically as one travels from the sandy beaches
and marshes of the coast to the rugged and noble Blue Ridge Mountains which touch the
northwest corner of the State. Between these two extremes lie a land and a people
molded by bonds shared and differences celebrated.

The river which reaches the coast has been shaped since its beginning as a mountain
spring—it has changed and taken on new qualities as it has passed through each
succeeding geographic area. Likewise the South Carolinian will find in him or her the
voices, traditions, and customs of peoples living and dead, African and European. He or
she will be blessed and enriched by the numerous cultures that are known and
experienced in the Palmetto State.

The first explorers came to the New World from Spain and entered the land now known
as South Carolina in 1521. They soon encountered the multiplicity of Indian nations that
populated the area at that time. Among these were the Cherokee, the Santee, the Wando,
and the Catawba—the descendants of whom still live in upper South Carolina. The
English made the first successful permanent settlement in the latter half of the
seventeenth century. These early Carolinians were enticed by offers of land as well as
some of the most tolerant religious policies in British North America. By the time of the
American Revolution, the colony of South Carolina was home for English, French,
German, Irish, Welsh, Dutch, Scotch, Swedish, and Jewish immigrants in measurable
numbers. Additionally, within these groups themselves were numerous religious and
cultural traditions. One group that contributed as much as any other to the fashioning of
a South Carolina culture did not choose to come at all; they were the African slaves.
Together these widely varying groups have achieved independence, equality, and
prosperity over 300 years of history.

These achievements and cultures are celebrated in ways as various as the people
themselves. In the State House, the seat of South Carolina government, are works of art
depicting the proud heritage of the Palmetto State. Revolutionary War heroes Francis
Marion and Thomas Sumter and civil rights leaders Mary McLeod Bethune and
Benjamin Mays are some of the notable examples of the nearly one hundred paintings
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and memorials honoring men and women who have helped make South Carolina a better
place to live.

Within this report are both the pictures of the past and an economic picture of the
present. Together they reveal the culture of South Carolina, which is mindful of its
diverse history and well prepared for a challenging and exciting future.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

In May 1782, General Francis Marion received the surrender of Captain Butler, a notorious Tory, detested and
threatened with death by Marion’s men. At the risk of a mutiny, and despite threats against his own life, Marion
intervened on Butler’s behalf. Guided by humane principles, Marion knew that there would have to be
forgiveness of enemies if the country were to be united after the war.
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Defense of Fort Moultrie

In one of the earliest engagements of the Revolutionary War, a British fleet attempted to
attack Charleston on June 28, 1776. The heroic garrison at the fort on Sullivan’s Island
stopped them, however. The fort, because it had been constructed of sand and spongy
palmetto logs, made the constant cannonade from the ships ineffective. The victory
provided both a much needed morale boost for the Patriots as well as a new symbol for
South Carolina—the palmetto tree.
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James F. Byrnes

James Francis Byrnes (1879-1972), a native of Charleston, was a respected political figure
on both the state and national levels throughout the twentieth century. Byrnes was elected to
the United States House of Representatives in 1911 and to the United States Senate in 1930.
While in the Senate, Byrnes became a close confidante of President Franklin Roosevelt. In
1941 Roosevelt appointed Byrnes to the Supreme Court, a position which he left in 1942 in
order to become wartime Director of the National Economy. Following Roosevelt’s death
he became Secretary of State, and in 1950 he was elected Governor of South Carolina.
Byrnes also was named a United Nations delegate by President Eisenhower and was
celebrated as Time Magazine's “Man of the Year” in 1946.
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December 2, 1998

To the Citizens, Governor and
Members of the South
Carolina General Assembly

It is my pleasure to present to the citizens of South Carolina this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the State of South Carolina for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1998. The report provides financial information about the State's
operations during the year and describes its financial position at the end of the year.

Contained in the report is information for the use of all those interested in the
State's finances, including South Carolina taxpayers, members of the General
Assembly and directors of the State's executive agencies as well as those investors
and creditors with whom the State has an ongoing business relationship.

As the Comptroller General and Chief Financial Officer of South Carolina, I
present these financial statements as my representations, and I express confidence that
the information is accurate in all material respects. The citizens of South Carolina
may be further assured that this report contains all material facts about the State's
financial condition and thereby reflects my total commitment to accountability to the
taxpayers through full public disclosure.

For the convenience of users, we have divided the report into three sections as
follows:

® The Introductory Section, containing this letter of transmittal, the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for
the June 30, 1997 report, a list of State officials and an organizational
chart of State government.

® The Financial Section, consisting of the general purpose financial
statements (combined statements, component unit combining
statements, and notes), required supplementary information, other
combining financial statements, and schedules.
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e The Statistical Section, presenting comparative financial data and other
non-financial data.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

South Carolina aggressively reinforced its commitment to public education at
every level during the 1998 session of the General Assembly.

Acknowledging the direct linkage between the State’s ability to sustain
economic growth and the quality of its education systems, the legislature concentrated
much of its initiative into the Education Accountability Act of 1998, a comprehensive
legislative package designed to establish academic standards and to monitor
compliance and performance.

The Act requires the establishment of detailed grade-level standards in
specific subjects and requires assessment of students’ and schools’ success in meeting
the standards. Performances are measured and reported annually both in terms of
meeting standards and also in improving performance year-to-year.

The legislature also launched programs to ease the cost burden of post-
secondary education and to induce South Carolina’s high school graduates to remain
in the State for their college education. The Legislative Incentives for Future
Excellence (LIFE) scholarship program offers direct academic scholarships to
qualified students. A program of tuition tax credits is available for those not
qualifying under the LIFE program.

The State continued its commitment to providing tax relief for homeowners.
During 1997-98, $276.973 million was returned to homeowners in the form of
property tax exemptions. For the 1998-99 fiscal year, the General Assembly has
provided for $292.651 million in tax relief under the residential property tax relief and
homestead exemption programs.

The General Assembly adopted several significant health care insurance
provisions addressing access to emergency medical care, broadening of health care
benefits, and privacy of genetic information. One major initiative provided an
additional $11 million in funding to be used for nursing home beds and for additional
community long-term care services.

A further crackdown on driving under the influence of alcohol was adopted
and directed toward youthful drivers. The new legislation takes a “zero tolerance”
approach which makes it automatic that drivers under the age of 21 who test with a
blood alcohol level of .02 or higher will have driving privileges suspended for three
months. The legislature is also exploring modification of the State’s current
requirement that bars and restaurants use mini-bottles for the sale of alcoholic
beverages. Such a change would require a Constitutional amendment and could be
submitted for public vote in the year 2000.
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Over the last two decades the economy of South Carolina has grown faster
than that of the rest of the country. Businesses have migrated here from all over the
world to take advantage of the State’s skilled labor force, competitive wages, lower-
priced land, excellent port facilities, accessibility to markets, and in recent years,
substantial tax incentives. Since 1970, industry has made $59 billion of investments
in plants within the State.

The State’s recreation and retirement industries have also been rapidly
growing economic sectors over the last two decades. Each year more retirees move
here to take advantage of the area’s mild climate, lower cost of living and special tax
incentives for people over 65 years of age. The number of individuals receiving
Social Security retirement pay has grown at a rapid average annual rate of 4.2% since
1970. The annual income from retirement now exceeds an estimated $6 billion.

The State’s coastal areas have emerged as one of the leading recreation centers
on the east coast, providing even more stimulus to South Carolina’s growing
economy. Personal income in Horry County, which includes the Grand Strand area,
has grown at an extraordinary 10.4% per year over the last two decades and exceeds
$3 billion.

Since 1970, nearly 500,000 people have migrated to the State to take
advantage of a growing economy and to retire here. Total personal income of South
Carolina has grown nearly ten-fold, one-fifth faster than growth in personal income in
the United States. During the high inflationary 1970s personal income grew at an
average annual compound rate at 11.8% compared to a much lower 10.7%
nationwide. Even in the lower inflationary 1980s personal income in South Carolina
grew a healthy 8.5% per year, compared to a lesser 7.7% nationwide. Employment in
South Carolina over the last two decades has grown one-fifth faster than in the United
States as a whole.

Although South Carolina has been one of the poorer states in the nation since
the War Between the States, the State is closing the gap in wealth between it and the
rest of the country. In 1970, per capita income of South Carolina was only 74% of
the national average, but has since increased to 81% of the national average.

The State’s economy has begun fiscal year 1998-99 on a positive footing.
Funds are available to help prevent budgetary reductions in the event of an economic
slowdown during the fiscal year. Employment in the State was up by 250,000 in
July 1998 versus its level during the recession of 1991. Although statistics for the
fiscal year were not yet available from the Department of Commerce, the State’s
Board of Economic Advisors estimated that personal income growth was in the
healthy range of 5% to 6%.

In recent years, the State passed economic development legislation to further
enhance the attractiveness of businesses to locate in rural sections of the State by
substantially increasing the tax incentives that companies may be eligible to take.
Through September 1998, over 420 companies have taken advantage of the tax
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incentive package offered by the State. Global companies such as BMW, Honda of
America, Bridgestone/Firestone, Michelin, Hoffman-LaRoche, and Nucor
Corporation have located corporate headquarters or have constructed multi-million-
dollar manufacturing facilities within the State. In addition to these projects, there
have been other announcements of new plants or additions to existing plants in the

State which will contribute to the State’s continued growth.

The State’s Board of Economic Advisors met on November 10, 1998, and
reported that the State’s Budgetary General Fund revenue collections at the end of the
first four months of fiscal year 1998-99 were greater than anticipated. As a result, the
Board of Economic Advisors raised the General Fund revenue estimate for 1998-99,
anticipating a revenue excess of $75 million in fiscal year 1998-99 over the
Appropriation Act. The Income Tax and Sales Tax, the State’s two leading sources of
revenues, were both healthy, indicating that the State’s economy was not showing
signs of an economic slowdown.

FINANCIAL CONTROLS
Internal Controls

The Statewide Accounting and Reporting System (STARS) is the State's
budgetary-basis operating accounting system. This double-entry system, installed in
1981-82, processes cash and budgetary transactions and maintains records for all
budgeted funds and some unbudgeted funds. The State's higher education institutions
and most of the enterprise entities maintain separate accrual-basis accounting
systems.

An automated system in the Comptroller General's Office designed to allow
reporting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
converts budgetary-basis STARS data into the format presented in this report. State
agencies that use STARS complete year-end forms to adjust the budgetary-basis
balances to conform with GAAP. The Comptroller General's Office enters data into
the GAAP reporting system from these forms as well as from audited financial
statements for the higher education institutions, component units, and most State
enterprise entities.

The State's internal controls, designed by the management of the State,
provide reasonable assurance that the following objectives are achieved:

e Reliability of financial reporting,
e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control
should not exceed the resulting benefits.
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Budgetary Controls

South Carolina's annual Appropriation Act includes legally adopted budgets
for the Budgetary General Fund and for aggregated Other Budgeted Funds. Except
for the Retail Sales Tax and selected other taxes estimated on a modified accrual
basis, the State estimates revenues on a cash receipts basis. Appropriations for
1997-98 covered all expenditures deemed applicable to that year and paid on or
before July 20, 1998. Agencies may carry forward up to 10% of unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations to the next year. Any remaining unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse unless the Appropriation Act
specifically authorizes agencies to carry them forward to the next fiscal year.

State law does not require encumbrance accounting. Accordingly, the State
does not record encumbrances (except for some higher education institutions). The
State currently maintains budgetary control for expenditures at the level of summary
object category within each program of each organizational unit. Except for accounts
of higher education institutions, STARS checks to be sure that an account has
sufficient remaining appropriations before it will charge an expenditure to that
account. Organizational units may request transfers of appropriations among object
categories and/or among programs within the same budgetary fund. The Budget and
Control Board has authority to approve these appropriation transfers within certain
limits.

The initial budget appears in the annual Appropriation Act. The Budget and
Control Board reduces the Budgetary General Fund's appropriations during the year if
it anticipates a year-end operating deficit. Likewise, the State Board of Economic
Advisors may approve revisions of estimated revenues of the Budgetary General
Fund during the year. One such upward revision was approved in November 1997.

The General Assembly enacted a 1996-97 Supplemental Appropriations Act
and authorized those unexpended appropriations to carry forward from the 1996-97
fiscal year into the 1997-98 fiscal year. However, the General Assembly did not
enact any Supplemental Appropriations Acts that directly increased appropriations for
the 1997-98 fiscal year.

State law specifies procedures for processing requested budget changes in
Other Budgeted Funds and for permanent improvement projects.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The State's reporting entity includes all of the funds and account groups that
make up the primary government of the State of South Carolina as well as its
component units. The funds and account groups of the primary government are under
the oversight of the State's General Assembly and the Budget and Control Board. The
primary government consists of agencies, departments, funds, and institutions that are
not legally separate from the State.

Component units are legally separate entities for which the State and its
elected officials are considered to be financially accountable. Criteria to determine
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financial accountability include the ability of State officials to appoint a voting
majority of the entity's governing body, the ability of the State to impose its will on
the entity, and the potential for the entity to provide a financial benefit to the State or
impose a financial burden upon the State. The State's discretely presented component
units are: the South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper); South
Carolina State Ports Authority; the Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund;
Connector 2000 Association, Inc.; and Enterprise Development, Inc., of South
Carolina. Note la in the Notes to the Financial Statements provides a more complete
description of the State's reporting entity.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The following sections detail revenues and expenditures of the State's General
and Special Revenue Funds. In addition, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998,
other financing uses exceeded other financing sources for these funds by
$692.981 million.

Revenues

The State's most significant sources of revenue are its 5% retail sales tax, its
individual income tax (2.5% to 7.0% tax rates) and Federal grants. The following
schedule summarizes revenues of the General and Special Revenue Funds for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 (expressed in thousands) and the amounts (expressed
in thousands) and percentages of increases in relation to prior year revenues:

1997-98 Percent of Increase Percentage

Revenues Amount Total from 1996-97 Increase
Individua! income tax............cccoevvcrennnnn. $ 2,103,799 20.9% $ 176,199 9.1%
Retail sales and use tax 2,304,004 22.9% 162,140 7.6%
Othertaxes..........cccceceeiiecrnnceinee 1,190,605 11.8% 26,716 2.3%
Licenses, fees, and permits.................. 281,242 2.8% 22,282 8.6%
Interest and other investment income.... 130,155 1.3% 16,956 15.0%
Federal. ... 3,213,004 31.9% 125,692 4.1%
Departmental services.... 540,047 5.4% 6,652 1.2%
Contributions.........cccoocoeeineniiniiciin 155,137 1.5% 39,398 34.0%
Fines and penalties.................cccceennnne 61,744 0.6% 3,574 6.1%
Other ... 81,067 0.9% 10,643 15.1%
Totals.......cocevrerrverimrnne $ 10,060,804 100.0% $ 590,252 6.2%
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REVENUES 1997-98

Individual income tax
Other 20.9%
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and permits Other taxes
2.8% 11.8%

Interest and other investment income were higher because the continued
improvement in the State’s financial position made more cash available for
investment.

Contributions revenue increased as a result of the first year of operations of
the South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank. The Bank will use this
revenue to fund major road projects.

The increase in the Other category of revenues resulted from larger than
normal refunds for prior-year Medicaid and other program expenditures being
reported for the current fiscal year.

Expenditures

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 (expressed in
thousands), and the amounts (expressed in thousands) and percentages of increases
(decreases) in relation to prior year expenditures:

L _____________________________________________________________________|]
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Increase Percentage
1997-98 Percent of (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount Total from 1996-97 (Decrease)
Current:
General government............ccccccovveeneens $ 352,065 3.9% $ 909 0.3%
BEducation............ccooiiiiiiii, 318,558 3.5% (7,545) (2.3%)
Health and environment...................... 3,121,887 34.4% 88,892 2.9%
Social Services............cooveiniiinienenne. 662,912 7.3% (37,530) (5.4%)
Administration of justice........................ 592,556 6.5% 49,100 9.0%
Resources and economic development 160,242 1.7% 10,111 6.7%
Transportation............cccccoovvecvveieenen.e 281,021 3.1% 50,637 22.0%
Capitaioutlay............c..ccoeeennnncne R 396,801 4.4% (39,997) (9.2%)
Debt service:
Principal retirement...................c.ccooeeie 110,076 1.2% 12,348 12.6%
Interest and fiscal charges 51,132 0.6% (2,361) (4.4%)
Intergovernmental..................ccoee 3,032,018 33.4% 226,434 8.1%
Totals $ 9,079,268 100.0% $ 350,998 4.0%

EXPENDITURES 1997-98

General government
3.9%

Social services
7.3%

Intergovernmental

33.4% Education

3.5%

Other
3.5%
Health and
environment
34.4%

Capital outlay
4.4%

Transportation
31% Administration
of justice
6.5%
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Transportation expenditures increased during the fiscal year because of the
renewed emphasis on infrastructure development. Much of the increase reflects the
fact that the Department of Transportation is paying a portion of the costs associated
with a major road project under the control of the South Carolina Transportation
Infrastructure Bank.

The increase in debt service principal retirements resulted from an increase in
State general obligation bonds, issued in prior years, that matured during the current
fiscal year.

Status of Fund Balances

GAAP-basis fund balances for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds
at June 30 (expressed in thousands) for the last five years were:

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

General Fund

Reserved..........ccoociviiiiiiniinnn, $ 286,945 $ 450,686 $ 545,796 $ 461,303 $ 335,709

Unreserved..........ccocooeciiveinncnine (109,468) (294,233) (261,065) (202,981) (303,628)

Total General Fund.................. $ 177,477 $ 156,453 $ 284,731 $ 258,322 $ 32,081

Special Revenue Funds

Reserved.........cccoocoiiiiiiiiiciinnn, $ 204,427 $ 205,377 $ 202,628 $ 172,487 $ 126,482

Unreserved, designated................ 165,328 128,640 112,144 73,946 174,827

Unreserved, undesignated............ 775,557 541,769 386,726 383,955 292,657

Total Special Revenue Funds $§ 1,145,312 $ 875,786 $ 701,498 $ 630,388 $ 593,966

The reserved component of fund balance represents amounts legally required
to be segregated and amounts that cannot be appropriated for future expenditure. The
unreserved component of fund balance is computed as total fund balance less reserved
amounts. Even though the total fund balance in the General Fund was positive, the
unreserved component of fund balance was negative because the reserve requirements
exceeded total fund balance.

The designated portion of unreserved fund balance reflects tentative plans for
future use of available financial resources.

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS

Primary Government

There are several proprietary segments of South Carolina's primary
government. Significant segments among these include the State Housing Finance
and Development Authority, which provides low-cost housing to the State's citizens
by issuing bonds/notes and by administering Federal contracts and grants, and the

e
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Education Assistance Authority, which issues bonds for the purpose of making loans
to eligible students.

Financial highlights of these segments (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1998, are as follows:

Education

Housing Assistance

Authority Authority

Operating revenues.... $ 52,825 $ 44708
Netincome................ 12,018 15,888
Total assets............... 654,060 483,813
Total fund equity.......... 161,749 107,443

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State's two largest proprietary operations are discretely presented
component units.

The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) is South Carolina's State-
owned public power resource. The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper)
produces and sells electric power and wholesale water to individuals, businesses,
electric cooperatives and municipal power departments. The Public Service
Authority (Santee-Cooper) made payments to the State's General Fund of
$7.462 million during its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997. The distribution to
the General Fund is based primarily on operating cash flows and mandatory reserve
requirements.

The State Ports Authority develops and maintains State harbors and seaports
and handles the commerce through these ports.

Highlights of segment financial information (expressed in thousands) for
discretely presented component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, follow:
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Public
Service
Authority State
{Santee- Ports
Cooper) Authority
Operating revenues.... $ 727,824 $ 80,965
Net income.................. 6,261 15,498
Total assets............... 3,355,148 381,545
Total fund equity.......... 797,130 303,751

FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS

The most significant of the State’s Fiduciary Funds are the four retirement
plans administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. Those plans include:
the South Carolina Retirement System, the Police Officers’ Retirement System, the
Retirement System for Members of the General Assembly, and the Retirement
System for Judges and Solicitors.

The State presents investments of its Pension Trust Funds at fair (market)
value, in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standard’s Board Statement 25,
“Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for
Defined Contribution Plans”, and Statement 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State
and Local Governmental Employers.” The State has met all actuarially determined
funding requirements for the four plans administered by the South Carolina
Retirement Systems in the current period and in past periods. Under Statement 27,
the State has no pension liability for those plans at June 30, 1998.

The South Carolina Adjutant General’s Office administers the National Guard
Pension System. The State recorded a $5.122 million pension liability for that plan in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1998. See Note 7,
“Retirement Plans,” in the Notes to the Financial Statements for more information.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The State finances many of its major capital needs by issuing bonds. Some of
this debt is general obligation debt backed by the full faith, credit and taxing power of
the State. Much of the debt, however, is revenue bonds and notes associated with
specific State agencies and discretely presented component units. Specific revenue
flows of particular agencies and discretely presented component units service revenue
debt.

Moody's Investors Service has rated South Carolina's general obligation bonds
as "Aaa," and Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Investors Service, Inc. rate these bonds as
"AAA," the highest ratings awarded. The Comptroller General’s Office annually
furnishes the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and related information
to the bond rating firms. This process is critical to ensuring that the State maintains

its current high bond ratings.
— - _______ ]
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-
During the fiscal year ended June 30,1998, South Carolina issued
$85.854 million and retired $101.915 million in general obligation bonds payable by
governmental funds. Of the bonds issued, $47.500 million were State highway
bonds. The State budgets and pays principal and interest on capital improvement
bonds from current resources of the Budgetary General Fund. The Department of
Transportation Special Revenue Fund pays the debt service on highway bonds. At
June 30, 1998, the Higher Education Funds reported State institution general
obligation bonds outstanding of $84.465 million.

The State's available legal debt margin at June 30, 1998, was $5.535 million
for institution bonds. State law limits annual debt service expenditures rather than
directly limiting the amount of outstanding debt for general obligation bonds/notes.
The annual debt service margin at June 30, 1998, was $48.316 million for highway
bonds and $93.895 million for general obligation bonds excluding institution and
highway bonds.

Net general obligation bonds/notes outstanding per capita (which excludes
general obligation bonds payable from Higher Education Funds) is a useful indicator
to citizens, investors and management of the State's debt position. The following
table shows this amount at June 30 for the last three years:

1998 1997 1996
Net general obligation bonds/notes
outstanding................coveeereene. $952 million $967 million $965 million
Net general obligation bonds/notes
outstanding per capita................ $249 $257 $260

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service Fund, had $35.569 million of
limited obligation lease revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 1998.

The primary government's entities had revenue bonds, notes, and certificates
of participation of $1.256 billion outstanding on June 30, 1998. Revenue bonds,
notes, and certificates of participation outstanding (expressed in thousands) by agency

WEre.
South Carolina Housing Authority...........ccocoovieoreecenricrerccceene $ 471,181
South Carolina Education Assistance Authority............ccoco s 363,240
Various higher education institutions..................cccocoeiiiiis 418,590
Other State agenCies...........cocveviiieiieciiie et 3,096

Total—primary government $ 1,256,107

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the Education Assistance
Authority advance refunded $46.300 million in revenue bonds to have bonds under
the 1993 bond resolution instead of the 1979 bond resolution and obtained an
economic gain of $779 thousand. For additional details on this refunding as well as
advance refundings in the Higher Education Funds, see Note 11 in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.
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In addition, discretely presented component units had the following amounts
of bonds and notes outstanding (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1998:

South Carolina Public Senice Authority (Santee-Cooper)........... $ 2,099,672
South Carolina State Ports Authority..............ococii, 57,467
Enterprise Development, INC.........ccooococimi 345

Total—discretely presented component units..............ouin. $ 2,157,484

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, the Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper) advance refunded $205.820 million in revenue bonds to reduce its
total debt service payments over the next thirty-four years by approximately
$22.228 million and to obtain an economic gain of approximately $11.885 million.
For additional details on this refunding and other Authority debt transactions, see
Note 11 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer bank balances.
Agencies and component units may have collateralization policies that differ from
those of the State Treasurer.

Legally authorized investments vary by fund, but generally include
obligations of the United States and certain agencies of the United States, obligations
of the State of South Carolina and certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of
deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements and certain obligations of United States
corporations. For additional details, see Note 1g in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

As provided by law, the State Treasurer deposits money in a general deposit
account. The State records earnings of the general deposit account as revenue of the
General Fund. The Treasurer deposits other monies into various special deposit
accounts, each of which retains its own earnings.

State agencies that issue their own checks participate in pooled bank accounts.
These agencies issue checks against the pooled bank accounts. Meanwhile, the State
Treasurer invests account balances until the checks clear.

Investment income for the General Fund totaled $72.412 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1998. This income includes realized and unrealized gains and
losses.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The State generally does not purchase commercial insurance for the risks of
loss to which it is exposed. Instead, State management believes it is more economical
to manage its risk internally. Accordingly, the State sets aside assets for claim
settlement in its Internal Service Funds—specifically, in the Insurance Reserve Fund
(IRF), the Health and Disability Insurance Fund, and the State Accident Fund.

—
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The IRF services claims for many of the risks of loss to which the State is
exposed, including the following: property insurance on government owned
buildings, the contents of such buildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile
liability insurance on government owned vehicles and school buses; tort liability
insurance for government premises and operations; and medical professional liability
for hospitals. The IRF purchases insurance to cover risks where it has limited
expertise (aircraft insurance and ocean marine insurance). The IRF purchases
reinsurance to limit losses in the areas of property, boiler and machinery, automobile
liability, and medical professional liability. Reinsurance permits partial recovery of
losses from reinsurers; but the IRF, as direct insurer of the risks, remains primarily
liable.

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund was established to provide health
and dental insurance coverage for eligible employees and retirees of State agencies
and school districts and group life and long term disability insurance coverage to
eligible active State and public school employees. The State, the predominant
participant, retains the risk of loss. Under the health insurance program, participants
elect coverage through either a health maintenance organization or the State’s self-
insured plan. All dental, group life, and long-term disability coverage is through the
State’s self-insured plan.

Section 42-7-10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, established
the State Accident Fund to provide a program of workers' compensation insurance
coverage to State entities. The State assumes the full risk for covered claims. The
Fund purchases reinsurance to reduce its exposure to catastrophic losses on insured
events; however, as direct insurer of the risk, the Fund remains primarily liable.

The State conducts various risk control programs to help minimize losses. For
example, the health insurance program conducts extensive wellness education
programs for covered employees that promote development and maintenance of
healthful lifestyles.

The State also administers the Patients’ Compensation Fund, an insurance
enterprise, which provides medical malpractice insurance to participating licensed
health care providers within the State of South Carolina.

AUDIT

An independent audit of the general purpose financial statements was
performed jointly by the State Auditor and the independent certified public
accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP. This year, the auditors have excluded
Note 22, The Year 2000 Issue, from the scope of the audit and, accordingly, have
discussed this in their report. Management of the State believes that Note 22 meets
all requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board for disclosure
about the year 2000 issue and that it has supported such disclosures with sufficient
competent evidential matter. However, the auditors have determined that, through no
fault of the State or its management, Note 22 should be excluded from the scope of
the audit because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, and that the
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effects of this issue and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fully
determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter.

The audit described above is not intended to meet the requirements of the
Federal Single Audit Act as amended. The Single Audit reports for the State are
issued separately.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the State of South Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR whose contents conform to rigorous program standards. Such
reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year
only.

The State of South Carolina has received a Certificate of Achievement for the
last ten consecutive years (1987-88 through 1996-97). Again this year, the State will
submit its CAFR to the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting program of the GFOA. I firmly believe that South Carolina's report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, meets the requirements to receive the Certificate of
Achievement.
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Sincerely,
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EARLE E. MORRIS, JR.
Comptroller General
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Andrew Pickens

Andrew Pickens (1739-1817) was a popular military and political leader in the
Revolutionary period. A planter in the Waxhaws area of South Carolina, Pickens was a
member of the South Carolina Senate and House as well as the United States Congress.
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Principal State Officials
June 30, 1998

LEGISLATIVE—THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY
Robert L. Peeler, President of the Senate and Lieutenant Governor
John Drummond, President Pro Tempore of the Senate

David H. Wilkins, Speaker, House of Representatives

EXECUTIVE
STATE BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD
David M. Beasley,* Chairman, Governor
Earle E. Morris, Jr.,* Comptroller General
Richard A. Eckstrom,* State Treasurer
John Drummond, Chairman, Senate Finance Committee
Henry E. Brown, Jr., Chairman, House Ways and Means Committee
James M. Miles, Secretary of State
Charles M. Condon, Attorney General
Dr. Barbara S. Nielsen,* State Superintendent of Education
Major General Stanhope S. Spears, Adjutant General
D. Leslie Tindal, Commissioner of Agriculture

JUDICIAL
Ernest A. Finney, Jr., Chief Justice, South Carolina Supreme Court

Current

Term of
Office

1995-1999
1997-2001
1997-1999

1995-1999
1995-1999
1995-1999
1997-2001
1997-1999
1995-1999
1995-1999
1995-1999
1995-1999
1995-1999

1994-2004

All of the legislative and executive officials are elected by the State's citizens in general elections. Members of the Supreme Court

are elected by the General Assembly.

*The following officials were elected in the November 1998 general elections and will begin serving four-year terms after their

inauguration in January 1999:
James H. Hodges, Governor and Chairman of the Budget and Control Board
James A. Lander, Comptroller General
Grady L. Patterson, Jr., State Treasurer
Inez Tenenbaum, State Superintendent of Education
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Bernard Mannes Baruch (Oswald Birley)

Born in Camden, Bernard Baruch (1870-1965) became a noted philanthropist, financier and
Presidential advisor. Baruch was a millionaire by the age of 30 and was appointed to the
War Industries Board by President Woodrow Wilson. His 17,000-acre estate of Hobcaw
Barony on the South Carolina coast is now a research center and nature preserve.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable David M. Beasley, Governor
and

Members of the General Assembly

State of South Carolina

Columbia, South Carolina

We have jointly audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the State of South
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998, as listed in the accompanying table of contents.
These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.
We did not jointly audit the financial statements of certain blended component units and agencies of the
primary government, which statements reflect the indicated percent of total assets and other debits and
total revenues, respectively, of the Special Revenue (21% and 14%), Enterprise (99% and 89%), Internal
Service (73% and 86%), Pension Trust (100% and 100%), Investment Trust (100% and 100%), Higher
Education (100% and 100%), and Agency (69% of assets and other debits) Funds, General Fixed Assets
Account Group (12% of assets and other debits), and the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group (14% of assets and other debits). We also did not jointly audit the financial statements of the
discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors,
including the Office of the State Auditor and Deloitte & Touche LLP acting separately, whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those
component units and agencies, is based solely upon the reports of other auditors. Deloitte & Touche LLP
acting separately has examined 100% and 100% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues,
respectively, of the Investment Trust Fund. The Office of the State Auditor acting separately has
examined 31% and 35% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues, respectively, of the
Higher Education Funds.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial
statements of the Deferred Compensation Plans, and the discretely presented component units identified
in Note 1(a) (with the exception of the Enterprise Development Incorporated, of South Carolina, which
has an audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards) were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu
International



purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 98-1, Disclosures about Year 2000
Issues, requires disclosure of certain matters regarding the year 2000 issue. The State of South Carolina
has included such disclosures in Note 22 to the general purpose financial statements. Because of the
unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will
not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Accordingly, insufficient audit evidence
exists to support the State of South Carolina’s disclosures with respect to the year 2000 issue made in
Note 22. Further, we do not provide assurance that the State of South Carolina is or will be year 2000
ready, that the State of South Carolina’s year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in
part, or that parties with which the State of South Carolina does business will be year 2000 ready.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, except for the effects of such
adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had we been able to examine
evidence regarding year 2000 disclosures, the general purpose financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of South Carolina, as of June 30,
1998, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable
trust fund and discretely presented component units for the year then ended in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 3(a) to the general purpose financial statements, in fiscal year 1998, the State of
South Carolina adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools.

Our joint audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The required supplementary information and the combining financial
statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the State of
South Carolina. These financial statements and schedules are also the responsibility of the management
of the State. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the joint audit of
the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based upon our joint audit and the reports of
other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report, and
accordingly, express no opinion thereon.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 2,
1998 on our consideration of the State of South Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

DelottesTond\a LS w ()S ,

Columbia, South Carolina Columbia, South Carolina
December 2, 1998 December 2, 1998



34

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Dr. Wil Lou Gray (Michael del Priori)

Dr. Wil Lou Gray (1883-1984) was a crusading progressive and an advocate of adult
education in South Carolina in the early twentieth century. She was appointed

superintendent of the first state adult school program in 1919 and dramatically improved the
lives of thousands of South Carolinians.
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E

Combined Balance Sheet

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
Special Capital Internal Trust and
General Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Cash and cash equivalents .................................... $ 536,542 $ 903,130 $ 76485 $ 157,807 $ 374,132 $ 3,137,547
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents ........................ — — — — — 733,586
Investments ... - 372 —_ 8,517 204,592 17,568,138
Invested securities lending collateral....................... 1,527 529 41 97 36,645 1,526,732
Receivables, net:

ACCOUNES ..., 30,966 58,898 435 11,385 47,755 363,695

TAXES ..ot 355,508 114,721 — — — 40,413

Patient and student — — — — —_ —

Student I0ans ............cocoeoiii e — 14,813 — 17 — —_

Loans and notes ... 802 165,817 — 350,657 — 30,303
Due from Federal government and other grantors .. 7,882 351,738 224 2,916 — 1,396
Due from other funds ............c.ccceeoiiciiiiiiie, 19,723 44,707 837 — 24,247 9,776
Due from component units....................ccoooeveeen. 3,800 —_ — —_ — —_
Interfund receivables ...............cccccoooiiiiiee, 1,970 1,774 — — 2,378 —
Advances to other funds 9,623 5,467 — — 21,457 —
INVENLONIES .....cceiviiiiii e 14,741 21,495 — 1,881 6,444 —
Prepaid long-term operating lease.......................... — — — — — —
Servicing rights, net..................coi - — - 1,955 — —
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ................................. — — — 208,184 — —

Investments .........cccoocveiiniiiii . — — — 59,302 — —

Loans receivable ............cccooviveiiiiiiiiice — — — 456,865 — —

Other ... — — — 7,596 — —
Other assets ...........ccooeecnierenicece e — 82 — 850 2,401 5,574
Deferred charges ... — — — 1,265 — —
Investment in joint venture................. — — — — — —
Property, plant, and equipment, net ...................... — — —_ 25,804 149,871 4,647
Amount to be provided for retirement of long-term

0bligations ...........occoevieeiiie — — — — — —

Total assets and other debits .................... $ 983,084 $ 1,683,643 $ 78,022 $ 1,295,008 M $ 23,421,807

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
L _
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S ——

ACCOUNT GROUPS Totals Primary Totals
General General HIGHER Government Reporting Entity
Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION (Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum
Assets Obligations FUNDS Only) UNITS Only)

$ - $ ot $ 588,031 $ 5,773,674 87,176 $ 5,860,850
—_ —_ — 733,586 — 733,586

— —_ 118,653 17,900,272 39,440 17,939,712

— — 14,612 1,580,183 1 1,580,184

— — 16,782 529,916 83,335 613,251

— —_ — 510,642 — 510,642

— — 106,123 106,123 —_ 106,123

— — 46,704 61,534 — 61,534

— — 114 547,693 144 547,837

— —_ 54,867 419,023 — 419,023

— — 21,233 120,523 —_ 120,523

— — — 3,800 — 3,800

—_ —_ —_ 6,122 _ 6,122

— — — 36,547 — 36,547

—_ —_ 24,364 68,925 88,187 157,112

— — 17,673 17,673 — 17,673

— —_ — 1,955 — 1,955

— — — 208,184 160,510 368,694

— —_ —_ 59,302 143,623 202,925

— — — 456,865 — 456,865

—_— — — 7,596 — 7,596

— — 37,215 46,122 5,241 51,363

— — — 1,265 479,905 481,170

—_ —_ 3,675 3,675 4,231 7,906
2,356,905 —_ 2,987,674 5,524,901 2,646,720 8,171,621
— 1,169,942 — 1,169,942 — 1,169,942

$ 2,356,905 $ 1,169,942 $ 4,037,720 $ 35,896,043 $ 3,738,513 $ 39,634,556

T MR R

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combined Balance Sheet

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

(Continued)
June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)
GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
Special Capital Internal Trust and
Generai Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency
LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY, AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .............. $ 180,853 $ 313,933 $ 7512 § 37,289 $ 164523 § 88,577
Tax refunds payable ................ 350,306 872 — — — 2,977
Intergovernmental payables 59,999 95,352 — — — 130
insurance claims incurred but not reported .......... — — — 9,251 159,575 —
Due to otherfunds ..............ccoovvveiiivinree e 17,283 37,446 3,911 1,138 — 53,690
Interfund payables ...........cccoocriiiiiii e 3,252 322 — 201 1,648 5
Advances from other funds ...... 12,189 264 — 14,416 8,174 —
Deferred revenues and deferred credits ............... 163,281 63,824 60 4,834 58,441 841
DePOSItS ...coovvieiiiieieie e — — — 598 — 526
Amounts held in custody for others ...................... — — — — — 559,090
Deferred compensation ..................ocooiiiii. — — — — — 1,165,438
Securities lending collateral..................ccccceee 1,627 529 41 97 36,645 1,526,732
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .............. — —_ — 72,667 — —
Notes payable ..............coc v — — — 231 2,265 —
General obligation bonds payable ........................ — — —_ — — —
Revenue bonds payable .................cccoccriiie — — —_ 834,421 — —
Limited obligation bonds payable.......................... — — —_ — 35,569 —
Certificates of participation payable ..................... — — — — — —
Capital lease and installiment debt obligations
payable ... —_ —_ —_ —_ 9,903 —
Commercial paper notes ............c.coceveeviiniiinieenn. — — —_ —_ — —
Compensated absences payable ......................... — —_ — 1,098 4,575 —
Other liabilities, including retainages payable ...... 16,917 25,689 2,208 68 588 —
Total liabilities .........ccoocrremersnnincnsnsninnieen. 805,607 538,231 13,732 976,309 481,906 3,398,006
Fund equity and other credits:
Contributed capital ..........c..cccoovniiiiiie e — — — 20,279 78,272 —
Investment in fixed assets ... — — — —_ — —
Retained earnings:
Reserved..........ooooiieiiii e — — — 240,066 — —
unreserved ... — — — 58,444 309,744 —
Fund balances (deficit):
Reserved ... 286,945 204,427 — — — 19,914,503
Unreserved, Designated....................c.oo. — 165,328 64,290 —_ —_ —_
Unreserved, Undesignated.................ccooees (109,468) 775,557 — — — 109,298
Total fund equity and other credits.............. 177,477 1,145,312 64,290 318,789 388,016 20,023,801
Total liabilities, fund equity, and
other credits ..........c.cccrcmnminicnnninrcrencnsnnnae $ 983084 $ 1,683,543 $ 78022 $ 1295098 $ 869,922 § 23,421,807
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
R
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ACCOUNT GROUPS Totals Primary Totals
General General HIGHER Government Reporting Entity
Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION (Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum

Assets Obligations FUNDS Only) UNITS Only)
$ — $ 2367 $ 111,376 § 906,430 103,035 § 1,009,465
— — — 354,155 — 354,155
— 8,675 - 164,156 — 164,156
— 2,765 — 171,591 — 171,591
— - 7,055 120,523 —_ 120,523
— — 694 6,122 — 6,122
— — 1,704 36,747 - 36,747
—_ — 39,722 331,003 51,479 382,482
- — 3,597 4,721 - 4,721
- - 7,070 566,160 —_ 566,160
— — — 1,165,438 — 1,165,438
— — 14,612 1,580,183 1 1,580,184
- —_ - 72,667 —_ 72,667
— 600 152,442 155,538 345 155,883
— 951,577 84,465 1,036,042 — 1,036,042
- - 244,682 1,079,103 2,157,139 3,236,242
— — — 35,569 - 35,569
— — 21,466 21,466 — 21,466
— 7,856 22,993 40,752 39,296 80,048
— - — — 241,650 241,650
- 175,937 86,158 267,768 12,405 280,173
— 20,165 7,501 73,136 31,290 104,426
— 1,169,942 805,537 8,189,270 2,636,640 10,825,910
- - — 98,551 209,524 308,075
2,356,905 — 2,498,484 4,855,389 — 4,855,389
- - — 240,066 — 240,066
— — — 368,188 892,349 1,260,537
— — 306,367 20,712,242 — 20,712,242
— — 149,447 379,065 — 379,065
— — 277,885 1,053,272 — 1,053,272
2,356,905 — 3,232,183 27,706,773 1,101,873 28,808,646
$ 2356905 $ 1169942 $ 4,037,720 $ 35,896,043 3738513 § 39,634,556
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State of South Carolina

“
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes:
Individual income...............cc..oooiiin

Licenses, fees, and permits...... s
Interest and other investment income.....
Federal..........cooeeeeiiiiic
Departmental services....
Contributions...................

Total revenues..........ccccccerccccrcrcnneerinnnn

Expenditures:
Current:
General government...............cc.cccoeeviviea.
Education.........cccooeieeeiiiiiie
Health and environment....
Social services.................
Administration of justice..............................
Resources and economic development.......
Transportation.................coooiiiiniii
Capital outlay..........cccoevceeireviiiriicire s
Debt service:
Principal retirement...............cc.coccooiiin,
Interest and fiscal charges...
Intergovernmental................cccooov i

Total expenditures.........c.cccecvevreereerrnenn.
Revenues over {(under) expenditures...........

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from bonds and notes....................
Lease and installment debt proceeds............
Operating transfers in...............c.coooeveeen.
Transfers from component units....
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses).....

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses......................
Fund balances at beginning of year
(restated)......c.ccocmrirrirrinccnnern e
Increases (decreases) in reserve for
inventories...........ccooivcmiincnnincneccsveeercr e,
Residual equity transfers in......
Residual equity transfers out....

Fund balances at end of year......................

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

General

$ 2,103,799
1,718,410
697,188
187,512
72,412
67,492
305,348

467

15,443
10,423

5,178,494

241,634
175,119
1,068,694
109,212
523,360
67,588

107,069
45,546

1,998,408
4,336,630
841,864

300
254
928
7,604

(829,915)
(820,829)

21,035
156,323

119

$ 177,477

Special
Revenue

$ —_

585,594
493,417
93,730
57,743
3,145,512
234,699
154,670
46,301
70,644

4,882,310

110,431
143,439
2,053,193
553,700
69,196
92,654
281,021
396,801

3,007
5,686
1,033,610

4,742,638
139,672

47,872
163
79,858

(45)
127,848

267,520

876,473

(556)
1,875

$_1m5312

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Capital

Projects

64,352

64,352
(49,465)

38,353

37,332

(37,804)

37,881

(11,584)
78,429

(2,555)
$ 64,290



State of South Carolina

FUND TYPE

FIDUCIARY

Expendable
Trust

$ —_

$

177,069
677
54,701
7,499

319

1,707
241,972

175,167
2

20
19
34

6

4
175,252
66,720

46
(978)
(932)

65,788

820,920

886,708

Totals
(Memorandum

Only)

$ 2,103,799
2,304,004
1,367,674

281,919
185,086
3,234,088
540,048
155,845
61,744
83,456

10,317,663

627,232
318,560
3,121,907
662,931
592,590
160,248
281,021
461,153

110,076
51,132
3,032,022

9,318,872

998,791

86,525
417
118,164
7,604

(868,742)
(656,032)

342,759
1,932,145
(437)

1,875
(2,555)

s 2273787
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:

AMISSIONS taX.....eeeiiiiiiiiii e
Aircraft tax..........cocooeiiiii
Alcoholic liquOrs taxX.........coooveiiiiiiie e
Bank taX........ooooiii e
Beerand wine tax.............ccoovievir e
Business license taX..........ccccoovviiiiiiiiee
Coin-operated device tax..........cccooveveveviiiiencieen,
Commercial nuclearwastetax...................................
Contractors' license taX...........c.ccocveveenviiievicr e,
Corporation income tax..........ccoooviiviniennieiieee e
Corporation license taX............cccooeoovenirenieeicceeeee
Department of Agriculture.................cccooeiiinencnnn,
Departmental revenue (primarily grant revenues

and fees for Services)........ccoocvvcviicii e
Documentary tax..........cccoevecninir i
Earned on investments..........cc.c.cccoiiiicn
Education Improvement Act-1% sales tax.................
Education Improvement Act—investment earnings.....
Education Improvement Act—other...................oocee.
Electric power tax...........coceeiiiieicii e
Estate tax.......cccooooiiiiii e

Miscellaneous SOUICES..........c.veeivirieeeiiiiiireeee e
Motor transport fees.........ccoocvviiiiiiiii e
Motor vehicle licenses..........cccceoevevviiivcie e,
Nonrecurring (excess warrants for distraint)...............
Petroleum inspection tax.........c.ccccooccviiininnen
Private carlines tax..........cccooiiiie e
Public service assessment..............ccccoeiveieriiiiiienes
Public Service Authority............cccccoo e
Retail sales tax (4%).........cccoovrviiiiiiiieiiiieee e,
Retailers' license tax..........ccoovvveeiiiiiieniiee e
Savings and loan association tax..............cccccceeenn.
Soft drinks taX.........ooeeoiiiiiec e
Workers' compensation insurance tax...............c........

Total reVeNUES........ceveeirererrereresenemserasanmenmnenenenanananes

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND

Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
3,000 $ 7,020 $ 4,020
3,375 3,334 (41)
47,526 45,076 (2,450)
16,524 14,902 (1,622)
80,784 82,190 1,406
31,273 31,382 109
46,000 56,995 10,995
184,999 193,813 8,814
53,552 49,875 (3,677)
43,779 47,182 3,403
20,515 25,139 4,624
62,000 70,863 8,863
19,568 20,742 1,174
29,845 45,001 15,156
15,410 15,437 27
205 184 (21)
— 85 85
2,067,796 2,087,461 19,665
94,892 89,744 (5,148)
66,576 73,123 6,547
210 3 (207)
99,346 107,033 7,687
— 1,350 1,350
7,403 7,012 (391)
1,800 2,237 437
6,934 7,604 670
1,705,126 1,726,364 21,238
1,044 988 (56)
3,162 4,907 1,745
18,022 19,295 1,273
9,334 9,360 26
4,740,000 4,845,701 105,701

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS

Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
33,380 27,214 $ (6,166) $ 36,380 34,234 $ (2,146)
— — — 3,375 3,334 (41)
—_ — —_ 47 526 45,076 (2,450)
— — — 16,524 14,902 (1,622)
— — — 80,784 82,190 1,406
— — —_— 31,273 31,382 109
— 250 250 46,000 57,245 11,245
25,786 56,360 30,574 25,786 56,360 30,574
1,104 1,929 825 1,104 1,929 825
— — — 184,999 193,813 8,814
—_ — — 53,552 49,875 (3,677)
3,298 2,639 (659) 3,298 2,639 (659)
6,587,242 6,300,731 (286,511) 6,631,021 6,347,913 (283,108)
1,909 1,055 (854) 22,424 26,194 3,770
20,718 50,826 30,108 82,718 121,689 38,971
430,134 433,972 3,838 430,134 433,972 3,838
3,000 2,749 (251) 3,000 2,749 (251)
3,887 1,430 (2,457) 3,887 1,430 (2,457)
— — — 19,568 20,742 1,174
— — — 29,845 45,001 15,156
— — — 15,410 15,437 27
—_ — — 205 184 (21)
— — — — 85 85
—_ — — 2,067,796 2,087,461 19,665
3,126 3,220 94 98,018 92,964 (5,054)
183,301 60,179 (123,122) 249,877 133,302 (116,575)
—_— 2,572 2,572 210 2,575 2,365
9,506 7,266 (2,240) 108,852 114,299 5,447
— — — — 1,350 1,350
— — — 7,403 7,012 (391)
— — — 1,800 2,237 437
5,595 5,878 283 5,595 5,878 283
— — — 6,934 7,604 670
400 659 259 1,705,526 1,727,023 21,497
— — — 1,044 988 (56)
— — — 3,162 4,907 1,745
— — —_ 18,022 19,295 1,273
— — —_ 9,334 9,360 26
7,312,386 6,958,929 (353,457) 12,052,386 11,804,630 (247,756)

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Expenditures:
Legislative. ...
JUAICIAL. ...
Executive and administrative....................oocooiiiiiiin

Social rehabilitation services............ccccoveveiinicnnn
Correctional and public safety............cccccoovireines
Conservation, natural resources, and development...
RegUIAtOTY. ......oovie e
Transportation. .............ccoov v iveioieiii e
Debt SEIVICE........c.vviivieeeee e
MisCellaneous. .............oooiiiiii e

Total expenditures..........ccc.ccesimiriemnnninmnnninnnn..
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.......

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in...............cccos
Operating transfers out................c.ccooi,

Total financing sources (US€S).........ccevsmirrniviererens
Excess of revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses.........c.c.cuveenns

Budgetary fund balance at beginning of year.........

Budgetary fund balance at end of year....................

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND

274,737 $

Variance
Final Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
33,103 $ 28,500 $ 4,603
40,197 36,704 3,493
175,200 134,223 40,977
2,268,740 2,245,397 23,343
817,744 805,797 11,947
141,036 135,420 5,616
522,052 488,235 33,817
147,650 140,257 7,393
57,950 55,332 2,618

583 583 —
150,599 150,574 25
535,549 533,357 2,192
4,890,403 4,754,379 136,024
(150,403) 91,322 241,725

(83,567) (83,567) —

(83,567) (83,567) —
(233,970) 7,755 241,725

508,707 508,707 —_
516,462 $ 241,725

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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.

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS
Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 1,197 $ 475 $ 722 $ 34,300 3 28,975 $ 5,325
245 73 172 40,442 36,777 3,665
348,392 240,251 108,141 523,592 374,474 149,118
2,528,291 2,265,595 262,696 4.797,031 4,510,992 286,039
2,836,296 2,757,411 78,885 3,654,040 3,563,208 90,832
662,260 593,754 68,506 803,296 729,174 74,122
203,447 135,630 67,817 725,499 623,865 101,634
237,360 154,224 83,136 385,010 294,481 90,529
175,631 142,575 33,056 233,581 197,907 35,674
785,267 689,232 96,035 785,850 689,815 96,035
13,102 13,102 — 163,701 163,676 25
— — — 535,549 533,357 2,192
7,791,488 6,992,322 799,166 12,681,891 11,746,701 935,190
(479,102) (33,393) 445,709 (629,505) 57,929 687,434
147,726 83,567 (64,159) 147,726 83,567 (64,159)

— — —_ (83,567) (83,567) —
147,726 83,567 (64,159) 64,159 — (64,159)
(331,376) 50,174 381,550 (565,346) 57,929 623,275

1,086,158 1,086,158 —_ 1,594,865 1,594,865 —
$ 754,782 $ 1,136,332 $ 381,550 $ 1,029,519 $ 1,652,794 $ 623,275
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Equity
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND DISCRETELY

PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES.............c.cvrieiiiiiiimi e

Contributions........
Interest and other investment income...

Licenses, fees, and permits............c.ccccviviiiiiiininiin e

Total operating revenuUES............cuvirirrmerereescnesercsereesstsss e nanesansaness

Operating expenses:
General operations and administration.....................cco

Benefits and claims
Interest.................
Depreciation and amortization....

Other operating @XPeNSES. ...........c.cooiiruiiieiiiiiiae i

Total operating expenses

Operating iNCOME........cieiiiniirien et sases

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest income....
Federal revenue...

Costs to be recovered from future revenues..............cccceeevcciiiiiinicnniininennn.

Interest expense

Other nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES)..........ccoouerieirrriniecnnnsieines

Total nonoperating revenues (eXPenSes).......c..cueercusissmsscrenssssessnisnsane

Income before operating transfers and
extraordinary items..........cceveeemnncnnineeciennnninane

Operating transfers iN...........ccocoeii e
Operating transfers Out..............ooeeiiiiiiii
Transfers to primary QOVErNMENt..............c.coviiiiiiiinminr e

Income before extraordinary items....

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt.................s

Net income......

Retained earnings/fund balances at beginning of year (restated) ........
Net unrealized loss on investment

securities available for sale............ccccerennaenn.

Retained earnings/fund balances at end of year.

Contributed capital at beginning of year........ccoccvrnrviinniiiiciiiiiniinnns
Additions to contributed capital ...............

Deductions from contributed capital.....

Fund equity at end of year.........c..cccceverreninne .

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FIDUCIARY
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
Internal Nonexpendable
Enterprise Service Trust
$ 85,623 $ 861,759 $ —
— 11,230 1
59,617 37,833 14
— — 102
145,240 910,822 117
43,628 270,183 —
22,367 608,975 —_
53,904 — —
1,384 12,664 i
2,779 610 3
124,062 892,432 3
21,178 18,390 114
1,820 5,404 -
22,723 9 —
(1,149) (4,728) —
(23,236) 498 —
158 1,183 —_
21,336 19,5673 114
125 528 —
—_— (5) —
21,461 20,096 114
(277) — —
21,184 20,096 114
277,326 289,648 1,535
298,510 309,744 1,649
16,870 76,537 —_
3,450 4,122 —_
41) (2,387) —
$ 318,789 $ 388,016 $ 1,649




State of South Carolina

Totals Primary Totals
Government Reporting Entity
(Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum
Only) UNITS Only)

$ 947,382 $ 808,631 $ 1,757,013

11,231 - 11,231

97,464 1 97,465

102 — 102

1,066,179 809,632 1,865,811

313,811 468,631 782,442

631,342 — 631,342

53,904 21 53,925

14,048 126,850 140,898

3,392 2,205 5,597

1,016,497 597,707 1,614,204

39,682 211,925 251,607

7,224 24,384 31,608

22,732 — 22,732
- (40,749) (40,749)
(5.877) (172,397) (178,274)
(22,738) 7,974 (14,764)
1,341 {180,788) (179,447)

41,023 31,137 72,160

653 — 653
6) — (5)
— (7,462) (7.462)

41,67 23,675 65,346
(277) (3,438) (3,715)

41,394 20,237 61,631

568,509 872,239 1,440,748
— {(127) (127)

609,903 892,349 1,502,252

93,407 209,856 303,263

7,572 - 7,572
(2,428) (332) (2,760)

$ 708,454 $ 1,101,873 $ 1,810,327
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State of South Carolina

”

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts...............cccoviiiiiiiis
Provisions for loss on development project.............ccooovvninnini
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital ieaseback..
Loss on disposition of property and equipment ............
Issuance of loans and notes.... .
Collection of loans and notes..
Interest payments ...
Interest on investments and interfund loans
Amounts received for payment of claims..
Payment of claims.............cccocoveeneernnn
Deferred coal contract buy-out costs........
Impact of transactions involving joint venture..
Other nonoperating revenues.
Other nonoperating expenses.

Change in assets--decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, net
Student loans receivable, net.
Loans and notes receivable, nef
Due from Federal government and other grantors.
Due from other funds.............ccoooevneniniiinnene
Inventories.............
Other current assets.
Other long-term assets.
Deferred charges

Change in liabilities--increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Insurance claims incurred but notreported............ocooi e
DUE 10 OthEF FUNDS......ov ittt
Deferred revenues
DEPOSItS. ..ottt
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Compensated absences payable ...............
Other liabilities, including retainages payable....

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities..

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Principal payments received from other funds................cn
Principal payments made to other funds.....
Receipt of interest from other funds......... .
Interest payments made to other funds ...
Loans made t0 Other fUNGS..........coovveurerieceeiin e
Proceeds from saie of notes payable ..
Principal payments on notes payable .
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds.
Principal payments on revenue bonds.
Interest payments ..............ccccoeeeeine
Payment of bond issuance costs..
Federal revenue .............
Payments from Federal grants..
Operating transfers in ........
Operating transfers out ...........

Transfers to primary government ........

Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
internal
Enterprise Service
$ 21,178 $ 18,390
1,384 12,664
281 31
505 —
— (572)
8 23
(97,403) —_
137,571 —
53,615 —
(20,896) (37.676)
61,768 —_
(59,412) —
664 1,378
(733) (85)
197 186
(1,132) 14,095
2 —_
678 -
— 44
(579) (2,285)
46 258
518 52
14,577 (4,660)
5,326 (7.901)
293 (200)
1,807 (10,019)
498 —
(76) -
108 330
(3.062) 318
117,731 (15,329)
— 11,591
(297) (6,213)
— 4,268
- (2,326)
— (1,139)
1,359 —
(576) —
69,776 -
(115,540) —
(56,033) —
(865) —
22,723 9
(22,723) —
125 528
— (%)
—(102,051) 6,713

FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPE

Nonexpendable

Trust
114

(14

108
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State of South Carolina

Totals Primary Totals
Government Reporting Entity
(Memorandum COMPONENT {Memorandum
Only) UNITS Only)
$ 39,682 $ 211,925 3 251,607
14,048 126,850 140,898
592 1,302 1,894
505 —_ 505
(572) — (572)
31 57 88
(97,403) (1,000) (98,403)
137,571 170 137,741
53,615 — 53,615
(58,586) — (58,586)
61,768 — 61,768
(59,412) - (59.412)
—_ 6,000 6,000
—_ (3.322) (3.322)
2,042 1,756 3,798
(798) (29) (827)
391 183 574
12,963 15 12,978
2 —_ 2
678 — 678
44 636 680
(2.864) — (2.864)
304 (11,463) (11,159)
570 (1,651) (1,081)
— (6) (6)
—_ (1,532) (1,532)
9,917 (4.813) 5,104
(2.575) — (2,575)
93 —_— 93
(8,212) — (8.212)
498 — 498
(76) - (76)
438 (16) 422
(2.744) (9,733) (12,477)
102,510 315,329 417,839
11,591 — 11,591
(6.510) - (6.510)
4,268 - 4,268
(2,326) — (2,326)
{1,139) — {1,139)
1,359 —_ 1,359
(576) - (576)
69,776 - 69,776
(115,540) — (115,540)
(56,033) - (56,033)
(865) — (865)
22,732 — 22,732
(22,723) — (22,723)
653 — 653
®) - Q)
— (7.,462) (7.462)
(95,338) (7,462) (102,800)

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina
“

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
Internal Nonexpendable
Enterprise Service Trust
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment ........................... $ (1,519) $ (15,063) $ —
Proceeds from sale of notes payable.............c....ccccoovvevviennen. — 2,265 —
Principal payments on notes payable ............cccccccoevveeivinennnnn. (201) — —
Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds............... — — —
Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds............... — — —
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds......................... —_ 8,577 —
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds......................... — (2,000) —_
Interest payments ..., (162) (2,364) —
Payment of bond issuance costs.................ccccccceoiinniiniene —_ — —
Increase in commercial paper notes.............ccceoeeiiiiiiiniinnnen, — — _
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets...................c.......c..... 1,140 — —
Principal payments on capital leases and instaliment
debt obligations payable ...............cccocoeveviiiie i — (669) —
Contributions of capital ...........ccccovieiriiii . %40 = —
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities.......... . . 198 (9,254) —_
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments ..............ccocoeeeeevevieveene.. 16,083 75,434 —
Purchase of investments ... (7,001) (57,833) —
Interest on investments....................ccoiiiiiii e 26,557 35,643 11
ISSUANCE Of I0ANS .........ooovviiiiiiie e (1,175) — —
Collection of [0aNS ...........ccccoieeiiii i 1,113 — —
Net investment in joint venture............................ — — —
Net cash provided by investing activities.............. - 35,577 53,244 11
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents... 51,455 35,374 119
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (restated)........ 314,536 338,758 1,507
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year............c.eccrennirinncsennan. $ 365,991 $ 374,132 $ 1,626
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance
sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents for Fiduciary Funds........................ $ 3,137,547
Less: Cash and cash equivalents for Expendable Trust
Funds, Pension Trust Funds, Investment Trust
Fund, and Agency Funds..........c.ccccvniiiiiiiiiiniciinee, (3,135,921)
Cash and cash equivalents Nonexpendable Trust Fund $ 1,626

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:
Equity losses related to interest in joint venture......................... $ — $ — $ —_
Net assets transferred to spun-off operations.......................... — — —
Acquisition of property and equipment through:
Accrual of liabilities...............cccooriiiiiiiii — — —

Transfers from other funds.. — 2,688 —_—
DOoNations..........ccoiiiiii e — 20 —
Total noncash capital, investing,

and financing activities...........ccccececriiiennnciinncrerir e $ —_ $ 2,708 $ —

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

e e

Totals Primary

Government
(Memorandum COMPONENT
Only) UNITS
$ (16,582) $ (120,096)
2,265 203
(201) (32)
— 216,719
— (387,062)
8,577 —
(2,000) —
(2,526) (159,053)
—_ (9,586)
— 36,877
1,140 —_
(669) (3,767)
940 —
(9,056) (425,797)
91,517 86,413
(64,834) (5.522)
62,211 25,027
(1,175) —
1,113 —
— (3,467)
88,832 102,451
86,948 (15,479)
654,801 263,165
$ 741,749 $ 247,686
$ — $ 2,558
—_ 75
— 3,020
2,688 —
20 —
$ 2,708 $ 5,653

Totals
Reporting Entity
(Memorandum
Only)

$ (136,678)
2,468

(2,000)
(161,579)
(9,586)
36,877
1,140

(4,436)
940

(434,853)

177,930
(70,356)
87,238
(1,175)
1,113

(3,467)
191,283

71,469

917,966
$ 989435

$ 2,558

3,020
2,688
20

$ 8,361




State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

PENSION
South Police General
Carolina Officers' Assembly
Retirement Retirement Retirement
System System System
Additions: -
Retirement contributions:
EMPIOYET... .o $ 398,845 $ 65,538 $ 2,796
EMPlOYee......cooviiieiiiicrec e 335,770 42,946 665
Transfers from other retirement systems..................... I - _ﬂ 21
Total retirement contributions............c.ccccccervnniecns 734,694 111,209 3,482
Deposits, pool participants................c.occciiiiinnnins — — —
Investment inCome............ocooi i 1,903,404 207,842 4,334
Net income from investing activities..... 1,903,404 207,842 4,334
Securities lending income..............ccocoiiiiciieneen. 72,300 8,975 232
Securities lending expenses:
Borrowerrebates............ccccev e 70,074 8,714 227
Management fees.............cccociiiiiiiiiiiie e, 890 105 2
Total securities lending expenses ....................... 70,964 8,819 229
Net income from securities lending activities... 1,336 156 3
Total net investment income......................... 1,904,740 207,998 4,337
Operating transfers in (for supplemental
retirement benefits)...........c.cccoooiiii 4,880 132 —
Total additions..........ccoeercerirerrvceerernirceeererena. 2,644,314 319,339 7,819
Deductions:
Regular retirement benefits................ccccoevivrveicennnnn. 662,825 71,161 3,771
Supplemental retirement benefits...............ccccceeeenen. 4,880 132 —
Refunds of retirement contributions to members......... 61,629 8,482 63
Group life insurance claims..........cccccooeveeieecieecceeecnnenns 9,277 1,373 9
Accidental death benefits....................o.cccciiii — 638 —
Withdrawals, pool participants..................c..cco... — — —
Distributions to pool participants — — —
Depreciation...........cocviiiiiiiiic e 107 11 —
Administrative expense..............ccccooevviiiinr i, 9,834 1,099 24
Transfers to other retirement systems......................... 2,881 1 164
Total deductions..........cccveeeriercrenescnrnseresenerenene 751,433 82,897 4,031
Net increase in plan and pool
Net assets........ccccviivininnernie e 1,892,881 236,442 3,788
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits and
pool participants:
Beginning of year (restated)...........cccccveeeinrnennnnas 14,498,715 1,606,714 35,426
ENd Of Year......ocvomrminncirisesniinnnsiisninenssessinnn, $ 16,391,596 $ 1,843,156 $ 39,214

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

TRUST
Judges’
and National
Solicitors’ Guard Totals
Retirement Pension (Memorandum
System System Eliminations Only)
$ 4,991 $ 2,499 $ — $ 474,669
1,025 — —_— 380,406
221 — (3,046) —_
6,237 2,499 (3,046) 855,075
9,516 754 — 2,125,850
9,516 754 — 2,125,850
264 — — 81,771
257 — —_ 79,272
3 — — 1,000
260 — — 80,272
4 — — 1,499
9,520 754 — 2,127,349
— —_ —_ 5,012
15,757 3,253 (3,046) 2,987,436
6,100 1,748 — 745,605
— — —_ 5,012
— — — 70,174
1 — —_ 10,660
— — — 638
1 1 —_ 120
49 — — 11,006
_ — (3,046) —
6,151 1,749 {3,046) 843,215
9,606 1,504 —_ 2,144,221
72,609 5,096 — 16,218,560
$ 82,215 $ 6,600 $ — $ 18,362,781
. -

INVESTMENT

TRUST

Local Government

Investment
Pool

$ —_

2,369,589
39,211
39,211

324
318

3

321

3
39,214

2,408,803

2,247,614
38,824

124

2,286,562

122,241

650,422

$ 772,663




State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

CURRENT FUNDS

LOAN

Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS

Revenues and other additions:

Unrestricted Current Fund revenues.............cccco...... $ 1,221,948 $ — $ —
Restricted student tuition and fees........................... — —
Federal grants and contracts—restricted... — 288,456 1,057
State and local grants—restricted..................... — 16,380 134
Private gifts, grants, and contracts--restricted.......... — 70,144 1
Investment income-restricted...............cc........ .. — 7,039 477
Realized investment gains—restricted .
Interest earned.........c..cccoiiiiiiniiii — — 1,055
Expended for plant facilities (including $79,226

charged to current funds expenditures).................. — — —
Retirement of indebtedness (including $5,500

charged to current funds expenditures).................. — — —
Retirement of indebtedness—defeased bonds.
Proceeds of refunding bonds........................
Capitalization of interest cost...
Insurance proceeds.............
Sale of property.................... .
Foundations and institutes......................c.cceiniis - — —
Other revenues and additions..............c.ccocceevnnniinns — 1,334 233

Total revenues and other additions................. 1,221,948 383,353 2,957

Expenditures and other deductions:
Educational and general.............ccoocoooiiiiiiiiins 1,305,955 375,745 —
Auxiliary enterprises............ccoooiiiiiiiinii s 186,844 2,400 -
Hospital . 386,912 — —
Foundations and institutes...............ccocvvnicininnn — —
Indirect costs recovered.............ccocooiiiiiiiiiinn. — 29,012 —
Loan cancellation and bad debt write-offs — — 625
Administration and collection costs.......... . — 13 717
Realized investment losses—restricted...................... — — —
Expended for plant facilities (including

noncapitalized expenditures of $22,167)................ — — —_

Retirement of indebtedness...........c...coooveen — — —
Interest on indebtedness..................ccooiniiiiinn — — —_
Disposal of plant facilities....
Refunding bonds issued............................ — — —_
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent....
Refunds to grantors...............ooeeeiieeens — 167 50

Other expenditures and deductions.......................... 2,184 18 —

Total expenditures and other deductions....... 1,881,895 407,355 1,392

Transfers in (out):
Transfers among Higher Education Funds:
Mandatory transfers for:
Principal and interest...................oiiiins (38,483) - —
Loan fund matching grants................ccccoeiiienns (426) — 426
(64) 45 —
Nonmandatory transfers.... (23,586) (4,565) 165
Operating transfers in...... . 734,561 32,841 180
Operating transfers out..............cccccoiinininn, (40,947) (362) —

Total transfers in (out) 631,055 27,959 771

Net increase (decrease) in fund balances............. (28,892) 3,957 2,336
Fund balances at beginning of year (restated)..... 312,188 52,897 49,781

Fund balances at end of year......cecooeeceeecancne.e. $ 283,296 $ 56,854 $ 52,117

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PLANT FUNDS
Retirement
of Investment
Unexpended Indebtedness in Plant
$ — $ — $ —
4,284 20,617 —
16,958 1,332 207
5,272 24 21,207
8,843 2,790 —_
— — 186,292
1,006 —_ 44,038
—_ — 38,735
— 50,511 —

89 — 169
2,344 —_ —
3,004 1,389 1,384

41,800 76,663 292,032
129,233 — —
-— 39,544 —
— 21,897 —_
—_ — 38,398
- —_ 50,409
— 41,484 —
161 318 310
129,394 103,243 89,117
(272) 38,755 -

30 (30) —
83,225 (17,601) (41,670)
18,926 — —

281 — —
101,628 21,124 !41,670!
14,034 (5,456) 161,245
150,614 38,932 2,337,239
$ 164,648 $ 33,476 $ 2,498,484

State of South Carolina

Foundations
and
Institutes

221,795

221,795

223,167

223,167

@440)

(2,440)
(3.812)
46,011
s 42,199

Totals

$ 1,221,948
24,901

308,135

16,514

98,987

24,916

432

1,055

186,292

45,044
38,735
50,511
258
2,344
1,728
221,795
7,369
2,250,964

1,681,700
189,244
386,912
223,167

29,012
625
730

3

129,233
39,544
21,897
38,398
50,409
41,484

227
2,991
2,835,576

786,508

(41,590}
744,918
160,306
3,071,877

$ 3,232,183
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues,

Expenditures, and Other Changes

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Tuition and fees......................
Federal grants and contracts..
State grants and contracts.............cccocoei
Local grants and contracts............cccoccocecnriicccnnis
Private gifts, grants, and contracts
Endowment iNCOME. ..........ccoeiiiiiiiiiii e
Sales and services of educational departments.......................
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises..............cccceeenenen.
Sales and services of hospitals................cccoooeiiiiiiiie

Total current revenues

Expenditures, mandatory and operating transfers:
Educational and general:

INSEUCHION. ...
Research.........ccooccevevmvennii

Public service
AcademiC SUPPOMt..........cccoemereiirmee e
Student SEIVICES...........ccceceevreniieee e
Institutional support..........cccccceennnn
Operation and maintenance of plant...
Scholarships and fellowships...........cccccooorinniiiii,

Educational and general expenditures...........cc.ccccoceoiinn

Mandatory transfers for:
Principal and interest..............cccccocooiii
Loan fund matching grants.
Other.....cccveiiiiiciien, .

Total educational and general................ccoocvviiiiiiciie.

Auxiliary enterprises:
EXPENAItUreS......c.eoveviieiiicicecrerie e
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest..

Total auxiliary enterprises..........ccccoeeerrvcccncninnniien

Hospitals:
EXpenditures...........ooov i
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest.......................

Total hospitals............cccoooriiiiiiii e,

Operating transfers in.............cccoconi
Operating transfers out..............ccocooiimi

Total expenditures, mandatory and operating
transfers

Other additions (deductions):
Excess of restricted receipts over transfers to revenues...........
Refunds to grantors...........cc.cooconeiiiiiici
Other dedUctions............cccceiiiiiiiiii e

Total additions (deductions)

Net increase (decrease) in fund balances..................

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
. A

Unrestricted

$ 423679
35,736
30,859
21,925

625
31,492
203,567
415,435
58,630

1,221,948

618,160
74,794
81,096

180,307
84,246

140,013

118,513
38,826

1,305,955

2,339
426
64

1,308,784

186,844
23,371

210,215

386,912
12,773

399,685

(734,561)
40,947

1,225,070

(25,770
(25,770)
S (28892)

56

Restricted Totals
— $ 423,679
262,144 297,880
15,700 15,700
1,465 32,324
63,480 85,405
1,805 2,430
— 31,492
— 203,567
— 415,435
1,027 59,657
345,621 1,567,569
32,889 651,049
121,591 196,385
48,004 129,100
5,020 155,327
9,643 93,889
4,836 144,849
262 118,775
153,500 192,326
375,745 1,681,700
— 2,339
— 426
(45) 19
375,700 1,684,484
2,400 189,244
— 23,371
2,400 212,615
— 386,912
— 12,773
— 399,685
(32,841) (767,402)
362 41,309
345,621 1,670,691
8,720 8,720
(167) (167)
(4,596) (30,366)
3,957 (21,813)
3,957 $ (24,935)




State of South Carolina

A A _ L ]
Combining Balance Sheet
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)
Savannah
Public State Lakes Enterprise
Service Ports Regional Development, Inc.,
Authority Authority Loan Fund of South Carolina Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............c.ccccoeeneneeniiincnes $ 81,566 $ 5238 $ 29 § 76 $ 87,176
INVESEMENES.......coviiii e 39,300 — 140 — 39,440
Invested securities lending collateral... — 1 — — 1
Accounts receivable, net ... 71,538 11,492 — 305 83,335
INVENIOMES. ......eivreieieeeee et 86,799 1,388 — — 88,187
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 111,592 —_ _ — 111,592
Other current assets............occeierieiievociniicie e 1,703 3,376 — 156 5,235
Total current @assets..........ccccoovveriere s 392,498 21,495 436 537 414,966
Long-term assets:
Loans and notes receivable, net...................ccooe —_ — —_ 144 144
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 45,021 3,897 — — 48,918
Investments.................oceiins 139,546 4,077 — — 143,623
Other long-term assets..........c.ccoooviiis — — — 6 6
Deferred charges.............ccccccoiviiiiiiii 479,050 855 —_ — 479,905
investment in joint venture................ccociiin 4,231 —_ — — 4,231
Total long-term assets..............occoeveiiiiiin, 667,848 8,829 — 150 676,827
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements...........c..cccccveiiiiinnnieens — 246,681 — 207 246,888
Buildings and improvements..............cccoeiiieieeen — 207,027 — 487 207,514
Utility plant..........ccooeeirienincici e 3,326,754 — — —_ 3,326,754
Machinery, equipment, and other 1,806 39,473 — 183 41,462
Construction in progress.................. 75,704 38,596 - - 114,300
Less: accumulated depreciation................c.cccoeeeieinn. (1,109,462) (180,556) — (180) (1,290,198)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net................. 2,294,802 351,221 — 697 2,646,720
Total aSSetS......civreririiriisnesnriisrestseesssessnssnanes $ 3,355148 $ 381,545 $ 436 $ 1,384 $ 3,738,513

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Savannah
Public State Lakes Enterprise
Service Ports Regional Development, Inc.,
Authority Authority Loan Fund of South Carolina Totals
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities................... 3 85595 $ 16,957 $ 5 §% 478 $ 103,035
Securities lending collateral — 1 — — 1
Notes payable..................... — — — 30 30
Revenue bonds payable..............cccccoovnii 157,942 1,330 —_ — 159,272
Capital lease and installment debt
obligations payable.............cccccoiiiiin e 3,609 42 — — 3,651
Commercial paper notes............ccccevvvieiiiiic e, 241,650 — — —_ 241,650
Compensated absences payable...................cc.ce. — 1,456 — — 1,456
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable.. 16,623 1,802 —_ — 18,425
Total current liabilities..................cocoieiicnnnnnee. 505,419 21,588 5 508 527,520
Long-term liabilities:
Deferred revenues and deferred credits...................... 51,479 —_ —_ — 51,479
Notes payable..............cccccooiiiiiiinninn — — — 3186 315
Revenue bonds payable 1,941,730 56,137 — — 1,997,867
Capital lease and instaliment debt
obligations payable..............ccccoiiiiiiin e 35,576 69 — — 35,645
Compensated absences payable.... 10,949 — —_ — 10,949
Other long-term liabilities...............c.ccoevrenne, 12,865 - — —_ 12,865
Total long-term liabilities...........c..ccoocvinrnininnenen. 2,052,599 56,206 — 315 2,109,120
Total Habilities........cccoveeicrnsticrenscrnecserce s e 2,558,018 77,794 5 823 2,636,640
Fund Equity:
Contributed capital........c...occoroeiieiiierier e 34,438 174,066 1,020 — 209,524
Retained earnings (deficit) 762,692 129,685 (589) 561 892,349
Total fund equity......ccccrieircnnimiirincrrcnee s 797,130 303,751 431 561 1,101,873
Total liabilities and fund equity...........c.ccoevnnenens $ 3,355,148 $ 381,545 § 436 $ 1,384 $ 3,738,513

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Fund Equity

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Savannah
Lakes
Public State Regional Enterprise
Service Ports Loan Development, Inc.,
Authority Authority Fund of South Carolina Totals
Operating revenues:
Charges for semvices...........cccvrverieinrnnincincvennenne $ 727,824 $ 80,965 $ 8 $ 834 $ 809,631
Interest and other investment income..................... — — 1 — 1
Total operating revenues............ccooceisenisnerininane 727,824 80,965 9 834 809,632
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration.................... 419,970 46,366 939 1,356 468,631
INtErest.......cvieeier e s — —_ — 21 21
Depreciation and amortization................................. 111,034 15,773 — 43 126,850
Other operating exXpenses..........c..ccccececrinrererneninenne 2,203 — 2 — 2,205
Total operating expenses............cccceverevnenensnennnns 533,207 62,139 941 1,420 597,707
Operating income (10SS)..........ccoinsisinircrisanensane 194,617 18,826 (932) (586) 211,925
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest iINCOME.........ocvvviiiriiieiee e 21,641 2,718 25 —_— 24,384
Costs to be recovered from future revenues... (40,749) — — — (40,749)
Interest eXpense.........cccvviveririiiieni (168,072) (4,325) - — (172,397)
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)................ 6,286 1,717 — (29) 7,974
Total nonop/e[gting revenues (expenses).......... (180,894) 110 25 (29) (180,788)
Income (loss) before operating transfers
and extraordinary items.............cccceevnerensinnnenn 13,723 18,936 (907) (615) 31,137
Transfers to primary government................c.cccco..e. (7,462) — — — (7,462)
Income (loss) before extraordinary items........ 6,261 18,936 (907) (615) 23,675
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt.... — (3,438) — — (3,438)
Net income (10SS)......cccemnrmririserineesseressnninsneronens 6,261 15,498 (907) (615) 20,237
Retained earnings at beginning of year................. 756,558 114,187 318 1,176 872,239
Net unrealized loss on investment
securities available for sale............cccccereevivininnncne (127) —_ —_ —_ (127)
Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year.............. 762,692 129,685 (589) 561 892,349
Contributed capital at beginning of year............... 34,438 174,398 1,020 — 209,856
Deductions from contributed capitail..................... —_ (332) — — (332)
Fund equity at end of year..........c.cccevrinivureserannnce. $ 797,130 §$ 303,751 § 431 $ 561 $ 1,101,873
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
TR L __
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating iNCOMEe (10SS) .........covciierineerce e
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ..................................
Provision for loan losses and bad debts.......................
Loss on disposition of property and equipment............
Issuance of loans and notes...............ccocevveviereiiieciennns
Collection of loans and notes..............cc.ccceiiiiiiiienn.
Deferred coal contract buy-out costs ..............ccoeees
Impact of transactions involving joint venture...............
Other nonoperating revenues.................c........
Other nonoperating expenses

Change in assets--decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, net..............ccococvieiniie
Due from Federal government and other grantors........
INVENLOTIES. ...c..eviiiiiiieiiie e
Other current assets...........cccocvvceeieenieencieccce e
Other long-term assets.............cccoccoiivviiniivienes
Deferred charges...............ccocoiciriiciiiinnci e

Change in liabilities--increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities......................
Compensated absences payable...............c...ccoeeeenn.
Other liabilities, including retainages payable..............

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities resrtissrnrre e

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to primary government.............ccc.cccceivennns

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities....

Savannah Enterprise
Public State Lakes Development,
Service Ports Regional Inc., of
Authority Authority Loan Fund South Carolina Totals
194617 $ 18826 $ (932) $ (586) 211,925
111,034 15,773 — 43 126,850
— — 931 371 1,302
— 45 — 12 57
— —_ (1,000) — (1,000)
— — 170 — 170
6,000 — — — 6,000
(3,322) — — - (3,322)
39 1,717 — — 1,756
— —_ — (29) (29)
— 108 — 75 183
(1,219) 1,299 — (65) 15
— — — 636 636
(11,240) (223) — — (11,463}
(1,620) 110 — (141) (1,651)
_ — — (6) (6)
(1,532) — — — (1,532)
(3,785) (661) 4 (371) (4,813)
— — — (16) (16)
(9,733) — — — (9,733)
279,239 36,994 (827) (77) 315,329
(7,462) — — — (7,462)
(7,462) — — — (7,462)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment..............
Proceeds from sale of notes payable.........................
Principal payments on notes payable...........................
Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds.
Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds.
Interest payments ...
Payment of bond issuance costs............................
Increase in commercial paper notes ...........................
Principal payments on capital leases and installment
debt obligations payable ..............cociiiii

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities...........c..ccccvvcvenvenenenans

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments....................c..o...
Purchase of investments ...,
Interest on investments.............cccccoeiieiniin e,
Net investment in joint venture................ccoooe

Net cash provided by investing activities..............

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents........corvieniennnn e,

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year...........

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.....................

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:
Equity losses related to interest in joint venture...........
Net assets transferred to spun-off operations..............
Acquisition of property plant and equipment through:

Accrual of liabilities.............c..coooiiiiiii

Total noncash capital, investing,
and financing activities...........ccccevceeinnniennvinininnns

State of South Carolina

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Savannah Enterprise
Public State Lakes Development,
Service Ports Regional Inc., of
Authority Authority Loan Fund South Carolina Totals
$ (84,203) $ (35870) § — $ (23) (120,096)
— — — 203 203
— — — (32) (32)
216,719 — — — 216,719
(355,217) (31,845) — — (387.,062)
(154,733) (4,320) — — (159,053)
(9,586) — — — (9,586)
36,877 — — — 36,877
(3,527) (240) — — (3,767)
(353,670) (72,275) — 148 (425,797)
79,123 7,290 — — 86,413
— (5,522) — — (5,522)
22,284 2,718 25 — 25,027
(3,467) — — — (3,467)
97,940 4,486 25 —_ 102,451
16,047 (30,795) (802) 7 (15,479)
222,132 39,930 1,098 5 263,165
$ 238,179 $ 9,135 $ 296 $ 76 247,686
$ 2,558 $ — $ — 3 — 2,558
— — — 75 75
— 3,020 — — 3,020
$ 2,558 $ 3020 $§ — $ 75 5,653
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFI-
CANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a. Scope of Reporting Entity

The State of South Carolina is governed by the
South Carolina General Assembly, an elected
legislative body, and several elecfed executives.
These genera] purpose financial statements present
the Stage and its component units—entities for which
the State and its elected officials are considered to be
financially accountable. i

Blended component units, although legally
separate entities, are, in substance, part of the State's
operations. Accordingly, data from these component
units are combined’ with data of the primary
government. Each discretely presented component
unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate
column_ in the combined financial statements to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the State.

_As explained more’ fully below, the  State's
primary government and its component units include
various State funds, account groups, agencies,
departments, institutions, authorities, and other
organizations.

Primary Government

All constitutional offices, departments, agencies,
commissions, and_authorities have been included in
the State's reporting entity as part of the primary
ﬁovemment unless otherwise noted. Most of these

ave executives or boards appointed by the
Governor, the General Assembly, or a combination
thereof. These entities are financially accountable
to, and fiscally dependent on, the State’

Although’they operate somewhat autonomously,
the entities listed below are included in_the State's
primary government because they lack full corporate
powers.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1998:
State Housing Finance and Development
Authority . .
South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority ]
Jobs-Economic Development Authority
Patriots Point Development Authority

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1997:
The South Carolina Deferred Compensa-
tion Plans o
The Public Railways Division of the
Department of Commerce

The State's five retirement systems are
considered part of the State's primary government.

The State Budget and Control Board, consisting of

five elected officials, serves as trustee of the
S st&ems, and the State Treasurer is custodian of the
unds,

~ The ten State-supported universities and the
sixteen area technical colleges and their blended and
discrete component units are reported within the

State's Higher Education Funds as part, of the
primary government. Although the universities and
colleges operate somewhat autonomously, they lack
full corporate powers. In_ addition, the Governor
and/or the General Assembly appoints most of their
ltgoa(xids and budgets a significant portion of their
unds.

Note 1s provides further information concerning
component units of the universities and colleges.
The component units of the universities and colleges
are:

Blended Component Units:
The Citadel Trust_
IPTAY Scholarship Fund
The Faculty House of Carolina, Inc.

Blended Component Units Discretely Presented:
Clemson Research Facilities Corporation
Lander Foundation . o
Lander University Alumni Association
University of South Carolina School of

_ Medicine Educational Trust =~

Clinical Faculty Practice Plan (University
of South Carolina )

Charleston Memorial Hospital

University Medical A Associates of the
Medical University of South Carolina
(including its ~ three  for-profit
subsidiaries) . .

Medical University Facilities Corporation

Pharmaceutical Education and Develop-
ment Foundation of the Medical
University of South Carolina .

Medical University of South Carolina
Foundation for Research
Development

Blended Component Units

The State's financial statements include the
Governor's School for the Arts Foundation, Inc., a
blended component unit. The Foundation exists
solely to suglport the South Carolina Governor's
School for the Arts and Humanities, Complete
financial statements for the Foundation may be
obtained from its office as follows:

Governor’s School for the Arts
Foundation, Inc.

Post Office Box 2046

Greenville, South Carolina 29602

Discretely Presented Component Units

. The State's financial statements include the
discretely presented component units listed below.

Fiscal t¥lear ended June 30, 1998:
South Carolina State Ports Authority
Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund
Entergrlse_ Development, Inc., of South
arolina

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1997: .
South _Carolina Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper)
Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
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The South Carolina Public Service Authority, a
&ubllc utility company, was created by the State
eneral Assembly in 1934. The Authorl(tiy's };I)rlmary
purpose is to provide electric power and wholesale
water to the people of South Carolina. The
Governor appoints the Authority's Board of
Directors. By law, the Authority must annually
transfer to the” State General Fund “any net earnings
not necessary for prudent business operations,

The South Carolina_State Ports Authority was
created in 1942 by the State General Assembl¥/ for
the purposes of developing and improving the State's
harbors and seaports. e State Ports Authority
owns and operates seven ocean terminals that handle
import and export cargo. The Governor apgomts the
members of the Authority's goyemlnﬁ board.

The Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund was
established in 1990. It maintains a revolving loan
fund to promote economic development in the
State's Savannah Lakes Region. The Fund's Board
of Directors consists of three members from each of
two State agencies, the Department of Commerce
and the Jobs—Economic Development Authority.

Enterprise Development, Inc., of South Carolina
was created in 1989 as the result of a proviso of the
State _Appropriation Act. The Corporation was
established "to support the South Carolina
Department of Commerce in achieving its economic
development goals for the State. The purpose of the
organization 1s to identify, create, and develop
strategic initiatives and business resources in order
for the State to achieve economic parity with
neighboring states. Effective September 30; 1997,
the Corporation entered into an affiliation agreement
with Concurrent Technologies Corporation (CTC).
Although CTC now a;igplnts a majority of the
Corporation's Board of Directors, the Secretary of
the South Carolina Department of Commerce has the
power to abolish the Corporation. ]

Connector 2000 Association, Inc., was created in
1996 to assist the Department of Transportation in
the financing, acquisition, construction, and
operation of turnpikes, primarily the project known
as the Southern Connector in Greenville County.
The Department of Transportation initially set the
toll rates for the Southern Connector and has the
right, but not the obligation, to revise the rates as
long as they are within 90% to 120% of the optimum
toll rates as estimated by an independent traffic
consultant retained by the Association. The rates
also must be in compliance with revenue covenants
of the Association's financing agreements. The
Association issued no financial statements for its
fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, because it did
not have any assets or revenues. Therefore, except
for data regarding the Association’s issuance of debt
subsequent to December 31, 1997, the State’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, do not include financial ‘data for the
Association. i
. ..Complete financial statements for each of these
individual component units may be obtained from
the entity's administrative office as follows:

South Carolina Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper)

One Riverwood Drive i

Moncks Corner, South Carolina 29461-2901

South Carolina State Ports Authority
Post Office Box 22287
Charleston, South Carolina 29413-2287

Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund
1201 Main Street, Suite 1750
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Enterprise Development, Inc., of South
Carolina )

1105 Bellview Drive

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Additional financial information for _the
Connector 2000 Association, Inc., may be obtained
as follows:

Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
c/o Sinkler & Boyd, P.A.

15 South Main Street, Suite 500
Greenville, South Carolina 29601

These financial statements exclude the related
foundations listed in Note 15 because the State does
not significantly influence operations of the related
foundations nor are the related foundations
accountable to the State for fiscal matters.

Related Organizations

. A related organization is one for which the
prlmaq_'l government is not financially accountable
even though the primary government appoints a
voting majority of the’ organization's governin
board. The South Carolina Children's Trust Fun
and the Gift of Life Trust Fund of South Carolina
are related organizations because the State is not
financially accountable for them despite the fact that
the Governor appoints all of their trustees. County
boards of mental retardation are related
organizations if their members are appointed by the
Governor but are not related organizations if their
membgirs are appointed by their respective county
councils.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Governor, in conjunction with officials of
certain local governments, appoints the board
members of two military fac111tK redevelopment
authorities. The_ State does not have an ongoing
financial interest in these authorities. The Governor
adapomts one out of seven board members of the

harleston Naval Complex Redevelopment
Authority and three out of nine board members of
the Myrtle Beach Air Force Base Redevelopment
Authority.
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b. Basis of Presentation-Fund Accounting

The State uses fund accounting under which it
segregates its resources and accounts for them in
various individual funds. Each individual fund is an
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts. _ Individual funds that have similar
characteristics are combined into fund types.

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds finance most of the State's

ﬁg)vemmental functions. The measurement focus of

e Governmental Funds is on sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources.

The General Fund is the State's general
operating fund. It accounts for resources that fund
the services South Carolina's A State government
traditionally has provided to its citizens, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. )

Special Revenue Funds account for specific
revenue sources (Ether than_for Caﬁltal Projects,
Trust, and Higher Education Funds) that are legally
restricted for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Funds account for resources to
acquire major qafltal facilities for use by the General
Fund and Special Revenue Funds.

Debt Service Funds are not used because the
State does not accumulate resources to pay future
ears' Peneral long-term obligations. Instead, the
tate finances such payments directly from the
current year's resources.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Funds account for activities similar
to those found in the private sector. The Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its
predecessor or%amzatlons have issued accounting
and reporting standards for activities in the private
sector. The State's Proprietary Funds have elected
not to apply standards issued by those organizations
after November 30, 1989. These funds, however
have applied all applicable pronouncements issue
‘E)é [{l%% ; overnmental Accounting Standards Board
~ The measurement focus of the Proprietary Funds
is upon determination of net income, financial
position, and cash flows. . ]

_Enterprise Funds account for business-like State
activities that provide goods/services to the public
financed primarily through user charges. )

Internal Service Funds provide goods/services to
other funds, agencies, component units, or
governments on a cost-allocation basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units.” Both
principal and earnings ot Expendable Trust Funds
may be used for purposes allowed under the trust
a%reements. Only the earnings, but not the principal,
of Nonexpendable Trust Funds may be expended.

Expendable Trust Funds have the same
measurement focus as Governmental Funds.

Nonexpendable Trust, the Investment Trust Fund,
and Pension Trust Funds have the same
measurement focus as Proprietary Funds. Agency
Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve
measurement of results of operations.

Account Groups

. The General Fixed Assets. Account Group
includes all fixed assets of the primary government
other than those accounted for in the Proprietary,
Fiduciary, and Higher Education Funds.

The " General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group accounts for all long-term obligations_of the
rimary government not accounted  for in the
roprictary and Higher Education Funds.
Significant long-term obligations include bonds,
capital leases, compensated absences, and claims
and judgments.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State's discretely presented component units
conduct business-like™ activities that provide
goods/services to the public and are financed
}f)rlmanl through user charges. The measurement
focus of these entities is upon determination of net
income, financial position, and cash flows. The
Public Service Authority, the State Ports Authority,
and Enterprise Development, Inc., of South Carolina
have elected to apply all FASB pronouncements that
are not inconsistent with GASB pronouncements.
The other discretely presented component unit has
elected not to agBly standards issued by the FASB
after November 30,7 1989.

¢. Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting determines when the
State recognizes revenues and expenditures/expenses
and related assets and liabilities, regardless of
measurement focus.

Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency
Funds

_ The modified accrual basis of accounting is used
in Governmental, Expendable Trust, and "Agency
Funds. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues
are recorded when they become susceptible to
accrual Sl.e., both measurable and available). Except
for entitlements, unemployment insurance taxes, and
interest on investments, revenues are deemed
available at year-end only if received within one
month following year-end. Unemployment
insurance taxes in thé Expendable Trust Funds are
deemed available at year-end only if received within
forty-five days following year-end. Interest on
investments_is recorded as earned because it is
deemed available when earned. Deferred revenue is
recorded for receivables that are measurable but not
available at year-end. ) _
Individual and corporate income taxes in the
hands of employers or corporations, sales and
similar taxes (including gasoline taxes) in the hands

64



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

of merchants or other State collection agents
delinquent taxes, A charges for services an
commodities, and interest income are accrued at
year-end. Fines, forfeitures, licenses and fees, and
other miscellaneous taxes and revenues are recorded
as revenues when received in cash because they are
generally not measurable until actua]g{y received.
Expenditures generally are recorded when goods

or_services are received. ~An exception is that
rincipal and interest on_ obligations reflected in the
eneral Long-Term Obligations Account Group are
recorded as expenditures when due. Additional
exceptions are that expenditures for compensated
absences, claims and judgments, and special
employee termination benefits reflected in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group are
recorded when paid.

Proprietary Funds, NonexBendabIe Trust
unds, Pension Trust Funds, Investment
Trust Fund, and Discretely Presented
Component Units

The State uses the accrual basis of accounting to
report activity of the Proprietary, Nonexpendable
Trust, and Pension Trust Funds and the discretely
presented component units. Under the accrual basis
of accounting, the State recognizes revenues when
earned and expenses when incurred. The Public
Service Authority, a discretely }?resented component
unit, is a re%u ated utility “that uses accounting
ﬁrmmples established by the Federal Energy

egulatory Commission.

Grant/Entitlement Revenues

The State recognizes grants, including non-cash
support, as revenue when the State has incurred
grant costs and has met all related grant
requirements (such as matching requirements). Food
commodities totaled $13.852 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1998. In contrast, the State
recognizes entitlements as revenue at the beginning
of the entitlement period.

The State recog_mz_es the face value of food
stamp _ benefits  distributed as revenue and
expenditures in the Departmental General Operatin
Fund (a Special Revenue Fund) at the date o
distribution to individual recipients. Food stamp
revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, totaled $268.192 million. In
addition, the State has recorded $82 thousand for
food stamp coupons on hand at June 30, 1998, as
part of Other Assets and Deferred Revenue.

The State normally does not_account for any

grants in its Agency Funds. Pending determination
of which funds are to be financed, however,
rant/entitlement monies to be distributed to other
tate agencies are accounted for in A encg' Funds.
At June 30, 1998, assets totalin 5551 thousand
were being held in Agency Funds pending such
determination.

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The amounts shown on the Combined Balance
Sheet as Cash and Cash Equivalents represent petty
cash, cash on deposit in banks, and cash invested in
various instruments as a part of the State's cash

management pool. Because the cash management
pool operates as a demand deposit account, amounts
invested in the _lpool are classified as Cash and Cash
Equivalents. The State Treasurer administers the
cash management pool. The pool includes some
long-term investments such as obligations of the
United States and certain agencies of the United
States, obligations, of domestic. corporations,
certificates of deposit, and collateralized repurchase
agreements. . .

Most entities in the primary government
participate in the cash management pool. Significant
exceptions, however, are: Ttetirement and deferred
compensation  plans, the Local Government
Investment_Pool, the Housing Authority Fund (an
Enterprise Fund), and certain activities of the Higher
Education Funds. Of the discretely presented
component units, only the State Porfs Authority
?artlclpates in the pool. For activities excluded from
he pool, Cash Equivalents include investments in
short-term, highly liquid securities having an initial
maturity of three months or less.

e. Cash Management Pool-Allocation of Interest

The State's cash management pool consists of a
general deposit account and several special deposit
accounts. The State records each fund's equity
interest in the general deposit account. All earnings
on that account, however, are recorded in the
General Fund.  In contrast, each special deposit
account retains its own earnings.

f. Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents

The Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents in the
Trust. and Agency Funds consists of amounts
associated with the unem_%aloyment compensation
%rogram that are on deposit with the United States

reasury.

g. Investments

. The State Treasurer is authorized by statute to
invest all State funds. The State Treasurer’s
investment objectives are preservation of capital,
maintenance ol adequate liquidity, and obtaining the
best yield possible within t]?lrescrl ed parameters. To
meet those objectives, the State Treasurer uses
various resources including an investment advisory
service, = electronic  financial quotation and
information services, various economic reports, and
daily communication with brokers and financial
institution investment officers.

To insure safety of principal, the State
Treasurer’s policy is to limit liquid investments (i.e.,
those with maturities not exceeding one year) to
cash, repurchase agreements (when collateralized by
United States Treasury, Federal agency or other
Federally guaranteed obligations withi a market value
in excess of 100% of funds advanced), United States
Treasury bills, Federal agency discount notes, and
commercial paper. The State Treasurer further
preserves Prmmpal by investing in only the highest
investment grade securities (i.e., those rated at least
A bgl_ two leading national rating services). In order
to diversify investment holdings, asset allocation

0 ——————————,—————,———
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?olicies are utilized for investments having more
han one year to maturity. Overall credit exposure is
managed” by asset allocation policies and by
additional constraints controlling risk exposure to
individual corporate issuers. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998, State law created the State
Retirement Systems Investment Panel, which may
make limited Investments in equity securities for the
State's Pension Trust Funds. Each member of the
State Budget and Control Board anomts one
member of the five-member Panel. A
June 30, 1998, the Pension Trust Funds had not
invested in equity securities. i

Substantially all of the State’s investments are
Fresented at fair value; securities are valued at the
last reported sales price as provided by an
independent pricing service. In contrast, however,
the State has presented at historical cost the
investment securities and other instruments that the
Chief Insurance Commissioner holds for insurance
companies in lieu of s_uret¥l bonds, These
instruments are recorded in the State’s Agency
Funds and are not held for investment purposes.

The State sponsors the Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP), an external investment pool
reported in the Fiduciary Funds as a separate
Investment Trust Fund. = The LGIP's separate
financial report may be obtained by writing to the
following address:

The State Treasurer's Office

Local Government Investment Pool
Post Office Drawer 11778
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit, carries its ayailable-for-
sale investments at market value with the net
unrealized gain or loss offset against its fund equity.
The Authority has no tradmg investments. For its
fiscal year enided December 31, 1997, the Authority
carried its held-to-maturity investments at amortized
cost. Beginning on January 1, 1998, however, the
Authority will carry these investments at fair value.

h. Receivables

Receivables are stated net of allowances for
uncollectible amounts. Uncollectible amounts are
estimated based upon past collection experience.

i. Inventories

Inventories of the Governmental Funds  are
valued at cost using ?redommantly the first-in, first-
out methodology. nventories of the Proprietary
Funds and the discretely presented component units
are valued at cost using the average cost
methodology. The Governmental Funds use the

urchases method while the Proprietary Funds and
he discretely presented component units use the
consumption method.

j- Servicing Rights

The Public Railways Division of the Department
of Commerce (reporfed in the Other Enterprise

s of

Funds) entered into a servicin% al%reement during its
fiscal year ended December 31T, 1995. The Division
reports servicing rights as an intangible asset which
will be amortized to operating expenses over the life
of the agreement. The servicing rights are stated net
of accumulated amortization.

k. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

_Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or at
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost data
are not available. Donated fixed assets are recorded
at fair market value on the donation date.

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds record expenditures when
they acquire fixed assets and capitalize those assets
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The
General Fixed Assets Account Group records neither
depreciation nor  capitalization _ of  interest
exgendltums during construction. The State does
not record its public domain (infrastructure) assets in
the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Proprietary Funds, Similar Trust Funds, and
iscretely Presented Component Units

Eroprletar}l': Funds, Nonexpendable Trust Funds
Pension Trust Funds, the Investment Trust Fund, and
the discretely Bresented_ component units capitalize
fixed assets ‘when acquired. Net interest costs are
capitalized on _projects during the construction
Ferlod. Depreciation is provided using the straight-
ine method over the following estimated useful

lives:

Asset Years
Wando River channel dredging project............... 50
Other land improvements.............cccoceeeiennns 3-60
Residential buildings ...........ccccccoiiiiiiiicin 20-30
Office and other buildings...............ccccccooiiiininns 5-50
Naval museum exhibits .................cococe s 10-25
Hydro-electric utility plants .....................cocoee 55

Other utility plants ... 22-37
Automobiles, vans, light trucks . 5-8
Heavy trucks and buses....................ccoee. 8-15
Airplanes and helicopters.............cccoeeeiin. 3-8
Other furnishings and equipment ...................... 2-25

Depreciation on fixed assets acquired from
Contributed Capital is closed to Retained Earnings.

I. Restricted Assets and Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets

Most of the amounts reported as Restricted
Assets in the Enterprise Funds and in the discretely
?resented component units represent assets required
to be held and/or used as specified in bond
indentures and bond resolutions. In the Enterprise
Funds, Restricted Assets also include amounts
collected by the Second Inju_ri Fund to pay claims
for which the Fund has norisk. The amounts held
by the Second Injury Fund are offset by Liabilities
Payable from Restricted Assets to demonstrate that
tl%e Fl_md has not assumed any risk for the payment
of claims.

50—
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Restricted assets are classified into four
categories: Cash and_ Cash Equivalents,
Investments, Loans Receivable, and Other. The
State's restricted assets consist primarily of United
States government securities, repurchase
agreements, and mortgage loans receivable.

m. Deferred Charges

Deferred costs to be recovered from future
revenues of the South Carolina Public Service
Authority (a regulated utility which is a discretely
resented component unit) are recorded as Deferred
harges. The Authority’s rates are based upon debt
service, and operating fund requirements. The
Authority recognizes differences between debt
principal maturities and straight-line depreciation as
costs to be recovered from future revenue. The
recovery of outstanding amounts associated with
costs to be recovered from future revenue will
coincide with the retirement of the outstanding long-
term debt of the Authority.

Deferred charges also include the cost of a buy-
out option on a coal contract exercised by the
Authority.  The cost is being amortized "as a
component of fuel costs over the remaining life of
the former contract.

n. Tax Refunds Payable

Most of the Tax Refunds Payable balance in the
General Fund relates to Individual Income Tax.
During the _calendar year, the State collects
employee withholdings “and _tax zt;yers' payments.
Taxpayers file returns by April 15 for the preceding
calendar year. At June 30, the State estimates the
amount 1t owes taxpayers for_ overpayments during
the preceding six months. This estimated payable is
recorded as Tax Refunds Payable and a reduction of
Tax Revenues.

o. Long-Term Obligations

The State records long-term debt of
6ov¢mmental funds in the General Long-Term
bligations Account Group. Other governmental
fund obligations not_expected to be financed with
current available financial resources also _are
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. Long-term debt and  other
obligations financed by proprietary funds are
recorded as liabilities in the appropriaté funds.

The State’s debt in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group _includes capital
a{)prematlon deep-discount) bonds that were issued
at _stated interest rates_significantly below the
effective_interest rate. The resulting discount is
systematically reduced and the carrying amount of
the debt is systematically increased over the life of
the bonds. .

For Governmental Fund Types, bond premiums
and discounts, as well as “issuance costs, are
recognized during the current period. _ Bond
proceeds are reported as Other Financing Sources
net of the applicable premium or discount.” Issuance

costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net
proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

For Proprietary Fund Types and the discretely
presented component units, bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. For current refundings
and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of
debt, the difference between the reacquisition price
and the net carrying amount of the old debt is also
deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the
old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is
shorter. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount and deferred
amount on refunding. Unamortized issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges. = )

A component unit of an institution reported in
the State's Higher Education Funds enters into
interest rate swap agreements to modify interest
rates on outstand1n§ ebt. Other than the net interest
expenditures resulfing from_these agreements, no
amounts are recorded in the financial statements.

p. Compensated Absences

. During their first ten years of service, most full-

time permanent State employees annually earn
15 days of vacation leave and 15 days of sick leave,
After ten years, most employees earn an additional
1.25 days of vacation leave for each year of service
over ten until they reach the maximum of 30 days
per year. Emtployees may carry forward up to
45 days of vacation leave and 180 days of sick leave
from “one calendar year to the "next.  Upon
termination of employment, the State pays
employees for accumulatéd vacation leave at the pay
rate then in effect. Employees do not receive pay for
accumulated sick leave when they  terminate.
However, at retirement, emplog'ees participating in
the South Carolina Retirement System and the South
Carolina Police Officers' Retirement System may
receive additional service credit for up to 90 days of
accumulated unused sick leave. )

When employees earn vacation leave, the
Governmental Fund T Pes record a liability in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for
the amount expected to be used or paid in cash. The
General and  Special Revenue Funds record
expenditures when employees use leave.

The Proprietary Funds and the discretely
F_res_epted component units record an expense and a

iability when employees earn vacation leave. .

The State does not record a liability for unpaid

accumulated sick leave.

d. Interfund Transactions

. The State accounts for the following types of
interfund transactions:

Interfund loans may occur between two_ State
funds. Short-term interfund loans outstanding at
year-end are recorded as Interfund Receiv-
ables/Payables. Adyances To/From Other Funds
represent long-term interfund loans receivable and

payable.

e

67



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

Reimbursements result when one fund makes an
expenditure on behalf of another fund. Reim-
bursement transactions reduce expenditures in the
reimbursed fund and increase expenditures in the
reimbursing fund. . )

Quasi-external transactions involve charges_for
§oods or services that one fund delivers or provides
o another. These transactions may result in_the
recording of short-term receivables or payables (Due
From or To Other Funds, Primary Government, or
Component Units) at year-end. )

esidual equity ~transfers are nonroutine or
nonrecurring transfeérs between funds. .

Operating  transfers include all interfund
transactions that are not loans, reimbursements,
quasi-external transactions, or residual equity
transfers. o ] .

The State eliminates material _intrafund
transactions and interfund transactions that occur
within a single combined financial statement fund

type.
r. Escheat Property

The State accounts for its escheat property in the
General Fund, the fund to which the property
ultimately escheats. To the extent it is probable that
such property will be reclaimed and paid to
claimants, thé State records a liability and reduces
revenue in the General Fund.

s. Higher Education Funds

Financial _activities of the State's higher
education institutions are reported in the Higher
Education Funds within the State's primary
government. These funds use generally accepted
accounting principles that apply to colleges and
universities as contained in Audits of Colleges and
Universities [])_ubhshed by the American Institute_of
Certified Public Accountants. The Higher Education
Funds_are presented in a separate column on the
Combined Balance Sheet. The Combined Statement
of Changes in Fund Balances—Higher Education
Funds presents the followmf.% fund types: .

Current Funds account for resources that higher
education institutions may use_for any purpose in
carrying_out their primary objectives. Restricted
Curtent Funds include resources that donors or other
outside agencies have restricted for specific current
operating purposes. _ All other current funds are

nrestricted Current Funds. ]

Loan Funds account for resources available for
loans to students, faculty, or staff of higher
education institutions. |

Endowment and Similar Funds account for
endowment and quasi-endowment transactions.
These funds are similar to trust funds. The_ State
must comply with the terms of any applicable
agreements. . . .

Plant Funds account for transactions involving
physical properties of the hl%her education
institutions. = The Unexpended Plant subgroup
accounts for monies that institutions have available
to finance the acquisition, = construction, or
improvement of physical properties. Resources that
institutions have set aside for the renewal and

replacement of institutional properties are also
recorded in this subgroup. The Retirement of
Indebtedness subgroup_includes monies to pay debt
service and to_ retire indebtedness on institutional
properties.  The Investment in Plant subgroup
accounts for funds that institutions have expended
for (and thus have invested in) their properties and
any related outstanding debt. i )

Agency Funds within the Higher Education
Funds™ account for amounts that higher education
m}sltltutlons hold as custodians or fiscal agents for
others.

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for
certain component units of the State's colleges and
universities. Most of these component units have
fiscal years ended June 30, but some have fiscal
%/ears ended December 31. All component units in
he Foundations and Institutes Funds meet the
criteria for blending but are presented in a separate
column because they use a basis of accountin
different from the one followed by the State's
colleges and universities. Most of the component
units. of higher education institutions are
governmental entities that follow one of the two
accounting and financial reporting models defined
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s
Statement 29, The Use of Not-for-Profit Accounting
and  Financial ~ Reporting  Principles by
Governmental Entities.” A few of the component
units, however, are non-governmental entities that
follow generally accepted accounting principles for
non-profit entifies as prescribed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board.

The Combined Statement of Current Funds
Revenues, Expenditures, and Other Changes—Higher
Education Funds is a statement of financial activities
related to the current reportm% period. It does not
purport to {)resent the results of operations or the net
income or loss for the period as would a statement of
income or a statement of revenues and expenses.
~ Cash transfers between the higher education
institutions and the General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds appear as revenues and expenditures
on the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual udgetary ~ Basis)—All
Budgeted Funds. On all other combined operating
statements, however, such transfers to (from) the
institutions appear in the Higher Education Funds as
Operating Transfers In Out§ ] ]

The measurement focus in the Higher Education
Funds is upon determination of resources received
and used. The Higher Education Funds use the
accrual basis, Although certain not-for-profit
component units in the Foundations and Institutes
Fund record depreciation of fixed assets, other
Higher Education, Funds do not. In addition,
revenues from tuition and student fees of a summer
session are reported totally within the fiscal year in
which the session is predominantly conducted.
Current Funds used to finance plant_ assets are
accounted for as (1)expenditures for normal
replacement of movable equt{pment and library
books, (2) mandatory transfers for required
rovisions ~for debt amortization/interest, and
?3) transfers of a nonmandatory nature for all other
cases.

Higher Education Funds record expenditures
when they acquire fixed assets and capitalize those
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assets _within their Plant Funds., These funds
capitalize interest expenditures during construction
but do not record depreciation. ]

Unamortized bond discounts are netted against
the related portion of bonds payable in the
Retirement of Indebtedness subgroup. The
discounts are amortized to interest on indebtedness
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method. ) ] )

Inventories of the Higher Education Funds_are
valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-
in, first-out method. These . funds ~use the
consumption method of recording inventories.

The State's cpllqiges and universities record an
expenditure and liability in the Unrestricted Current
Funds when employees earn credits toward future
compensated absences.

t. Totals (Memorandum Only) Columns

Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Oan"
columns for the primary government and for the
reporting entity represent an_aggregation of the
combined financial statement line-items to facilitate
financial analysis. ~ Amounts in the "Totals—
Memorandum Only" columns are not comparable to
a consolidation.

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY ACCOUNT-
ING AND REPORTING

a. Budgetary Funds

South Carolina's Appropriation Act does not
gresent budgets by GAAP fund. Instead, it presents
udgets for:
eneral Funds. These funds are general
operating funds. The resources in these funds are
primarily taxes. The State expends General Funds to
rovide ‘traditional State government services. The
eneral Funds column in the Appropriation Act
differs somewhat from the GAAP General Fund.
Total Funds. The Total Funds column in the
Appropriation Act includes all budgeted resources.
Amounts in this column include General Funds as
well as most Federal and department-generated
resources, Total Funds include certain Proprietary
and Capital Project Fund activities but exclude
Pension Trust Funds and most other Trust and
Agency Fund activities. . .
The accompanying financial statements include
a Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances—Budget and Actual
{BBudgetary Basis)-All Budgeted Funds.  The
udgetary General Fund cate%ory on that statement
corresponds to the General Funds column in the
Appropriation Act. The Other Budgeted Funds
category rgpresents the difference between the Total
Funds "and the General Funds columns in the
Appropriation Act.

b. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Current_ legislation states that the General
Assembly intends to appropriate all monies to

operate State government for the current fiscal year,
Agencies may carry forward up to 10% of
unexpended Budgetary General Fund appropriations
to the next fiscal 'year. Any remaining unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse on
July 31 unless the department or agency is given
specific authorization to carry them forward to the
next fiscal year. Cash-basis ‘accounting for payroll
expenditures is required.

State law does not precisely define the budgetary
basis of accounting. In practice, however, it 1s the
cash basis with the following exceptions:

(i) Departments and agencies charge certain
vendor and interfund payments  against the
receding fiscal year's appropriations through

uly 20.

(ii) Certain revenues collected in advance are
recorded as liabilities (deferred revenues)
rather than as revenues.

(iii) The followini taxes in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances—Budget and
Actua gBud etary Basis) are recorded on
the modified accrual basis:  Admissions
Tax, Alcoholic Liquors Tax, Beer and Wine
Tax, Business License Tax, Electric Power
Tax, Gasoline Tax, Sales Taxes (including
the Educa}tlon Improvement Act—1% Sales
Tax, Excise Tax—Casual Sales, and Retail
Sales Tax—4%), Soft Drinks Tax, and
Commercial Nuclear Waste Tax.

(iv) All other revenues are recorded only when
the State receives the related cash.

c. Budgetary Policies

State law does not require the use of
encumbrance accounting. Neither the General Fund
nor the Budgetary General Fund, therefore, records
encumbrances or a reserve for encumbrances.
Instead, the General Fund records the authorized
appropriations to be carried forward as a reserve of
fund balance. o

The State maintains budgetary control at the
level of summary object category of expenditure
within each é)rogram of each department or agency.
All budgeted départments_and agencies except the
higher ~education institutions” process their
disbursement vouchers through a central budgetary
accounting_system maintained by the Compfroller
General's Office. Departments and agencies may

rocess disbursement vouchers in the States
udgetary accounting system only if enough cash
and _ appropriations  exist. The  State's
1997-98 ;H)rpprlatlon Act has approximately 2,920
a};))proprlate line items. These line items constitute
the level of legal control over expenditures. The
level of legal control for all agencies is reported in a
ublication of the State Compiroller General's Office
itled "A Detailed Report of Appropriations and
Expenditures,” not included herein. " Departments
and agencies may request transfers of apgropriatlons
among summary object categories and/or among

L
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rograms within the same budgetary fund. No such
ransfer request, however, may  exceed twenty
ercent of the program budget.” The Budget and
ontrol Board, composed of five key executive and
legislative officials, has the authofity to approve
such requests.

Each year, the General Assembly enacts an
Appropriafion “Act that includes initial estimated
revenue and a pr%%rlatlon ﬂgures for the Budgetary
General Fund. e 1997-98 Appropriation Act
directs the Budget and Control Board to reduce the
Budgetary General Fund's appropriations during the
gear if necessalf'y to prevent a deficit. Likewise, the

tate Board of Economic Advisors ma :ﬁ)prove
revisions of estimated revenues for the Budgetary
General Fund during the year.

For Other Budgeted Funds, the annual
Appropriation Act presents estimated revenue
amounts only for Education Improvement Act and
highway revenues. The Budget and Control Board,
however, provides estimated revenue amounts for
the other resources in these funds.  The
Appropriation Act includes all appropriation
amounts for these funds.

As operating conditions change, departments
and agencies may request revisions of estimated
revenues and expenditures in Other Budgeted Funds,
Such changes require the Budget and Control
Board's approval,  Departments and agencies also
may request revisions of estimated revenues and
aﬁ)pro riations for permanent improvement projects
that the General Assembly did not specifically
authorize. The Budget and_ Control Board and the
Joint Bond Review Committee must approve and
review these changes. During the current fiscal year,
the State's budget was amended in accordance ‘with
the procedures outlined above.

e General Assembly = enacted a
1996-97 Sut%plemental Apgroprlathns_ Act and
authorized those unexpended appropriations to carry
forward from the 1996-97 fiscal year into the
1997-98 fiscal year. However, ~ the General
Assembly = did "not enact any Supplemental
Appropriations  Acts that _directly increased
appropriations for the 1997-98 fiscal year.

d. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the fisca]l year ended June 30, 1998, the
Educational function within Other Budgeted Funds
had $14.197 million of expenditures in excess of
appropriations at the level of legal control. These
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overexpenditures were associated with the State’s
technical colleges. The technical colleges maintain
their own accounting systems. The colleges had
sufficient budgetary-basis revenue and cash to
provide for their budgetary-basis expenditures.

e. Legal Limit On Appropriations

State law imposes a ceiling on appropriations for
general, school, and highway purposes. The limit
equals the greater of : (%) the limit for the last fiscal
year increased by the average percentage rate of
ﬁ{owth in State personal income for the Jrevious

ree completed calendar years, or (2) 9.5% of the
total personal income of the State” for the last
com_;lgleted calendar year. o )
he 1997-98 ~ A d)r(_)f)rlatlon Act included
appropriations of $5.840 billion for general, school,
imd lhll_gh_way purposes—$1.100 billion less than the
egal limit.

f. Legal Limit on Number of State Employees

The State's Constitution and statutes limit the
number of emgloyees that the Budgetary General
Fund may fund. "The number of these employees
may not increase faster than the State's population.
On’ June 30, 1998, 38,466 employees were funded
by the State's Budgetary General Fund—8,280 fewer
than the legal limit.

g. Reconciliation of Budget to GAAP Reporting
Differences

The Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)~All Budgeted
Funds presents comparisons of the  State's legally
adopted budget with actual data on the budgetary
basis, of accountlrzig. Budgetal accountin
principles, however, differ significantly from GAA
accounting principles. These different accountin
rinciples result in_basis, perspective, entity, an
iming differences in the excess of revenues and
other “sources of financial resources over (under)
expenditures and other uses of financial resources.
These differences (expressed in thousands) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, were:
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Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Budgetary Balances Classified Into

GAAP Fund Structure

Entity
Budgetary Other Total Differences
General Budgeted Budgeted Timing Basis (Unbudgeted GAAP
GAAP Fund Type Fund Funds Funds Differences Differences Funds) Balances
General Fund........................... $ 7755 $ 11,046 $ 18,801 § —_ $ (7,029) $ 9,263 $ 21,035
Special Revenue Funds............. — 99,770 99,770 — 147,503 20,247 267,520
Capital Projects Fund................ —_ (585) (585) —_ 1,032 (12,031) (11,584)
Enterprise Funds..................... — 1,767 1,767 — 11,010 8,407 21,184
Intemal Senvice Funds............... —_ 7,103 7,103 - (7,323) 20,316 20,096
Expendable Trust Funds............ — 44 44 —_ — 65,744 65,788
Nonexpendable Trust Fund........ — 103 103 - 2 9 114
Pension Trust Funds................. — 11 11 —_ — 2,144,210 2,144,221
Investment Trust Fund............... — _ —_ —_ — 122,241 122,241
Agency Funds.....................o... —_ (10,390) (10,390) — 10,390 — —
Higher Education Funds............ —_ (58,695) (58,695) 2,623 40,354 176,024 160,306
Totals (Memorandum Only).... § 7,755 $ 50174 $ 57929 § 2,623 § 196939 §$ 2,554,430 $ 2,810,921
external portion of each investment pool.
Accordingly, the Local Government Investment
NOTE 3: ACCOUNTING AND Pooii previously presented in the State’s Aglgncy
unds, is now presented as an Investment Trust

REPORTING CHANGES

a. Fair Value of Investments

Effective July 1, 1997, the State adopted the
Governmental ccounting,  Standards ~ Board's
GASB) _Statement 31
inancial Reporting for Certain Investments and for
External Investment” Pools. GASB 31 requires ‘the
State to present investments of all funds at fair value
rather than at amortized cost. Accordmgl;g, the State
has reported the cumulative effect of applying
GASB 31 as a restatement of beginning fund equity
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998." Assets also
changed in an amount equal to the change in
beginning fund e&mg'. ]

_In addition, GASB 31 requires all governmental
entities that sponsor external investment pools to
establish an Investment Trust Fund to report the

entitled  Accounting and

F
Fund. .

The investments of the State’s Pension Trust
Funds have been presented at fair value since
July 1, 1995, when the State implemented GASB 25,
Financial Iéeporting Sfor Defined Benefit Pension
Plans and”_Note ~ Disclosures for  Defined
Contribution Plans.

b. Effects on Beginning Fund Balances and
Retained Earnings

The schedule below details changes made to
beginning fund equity to give effect to the financial
reporting” change describeéd above. The schedule
(expressed in thousands) also gives retroactive effect
to changes in capitalization thresholds for certain
fixed assets.
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Effect of
Effect of Changesin
As Previously Implementing Capitalization As
Reported GASB 31 Policy Restated
General Fund..............oooviiiniien $ 156,453  § (130) § — $ 156,323
Special Revenue Funds............................ 875,786 687 — 876,473
Capital Projects Fund.......................... 78,479 (50) —_ 78,429
Enterprise Funds--Retained Eamings......... 269,787 7,677 (138) 277,326
Internal Senice Funds--Retained Earnings. 282,726 8,320 (1,398) 289,648
Expendable Trust Funds........................... 820,668 252 — 820,920
Nonexpendable Trust Funds..................... 1,519 16 — 1,535
Investment Trust Fund..........................l. —_ 650,422 — 650,422
Higher Education Funds:
Unrestricted Current Funds..................... 311,235 953 — 312,188
Restricted Current Funds........................ 52,112 785 — 52,897
Loan Funds...........c.ooeviiiiiiieiiciieeecie, 49,759 22 — 49,781
Endowment and Similar Funds................ 76,390 7,825 — 84,215
Unexpended Plant Funds....................... 150,449 165 — 150,614
Retirement of Indebtedness Plant Funds.. 38,774 158 — 38,932
Investment in Plant Funds...................... 2,407,867 — (70,628) 2,337,239
Foundations and Institutes Fund............. 45,796 215 — 46,011
Combined Balance Sheet
NOTE 4: DEPOSITS AND INVEST' Cash and cash equivalents.................cccccevevnniiiinne $ 5,860,850
Investments.........cooiveiiiniien .939,7
MENTS hves:ed st:curities lending collateral...............cccooeeernnnene 1:2221 18«2t
Restricted assets:
. . Cash and cash equivalents 368,694
By law, all deposits and investments are under n T 202925
the control of the State Treasurer except for those Total ¥ 25952365
which by specific authority are under the control of —_—
other agencies or discretely presented component Disclosure regarding deposits and investments plus
units, primarily the Public Sérvice Authority. ) reconciling items
. he following display reconciles the details CarTying Value Of GEPOSHS ... $ 155,368
included within this footnote to the Combined Reported amount of investments 25,795,854
Balance Sheet at June 30, 1998 (expressed in €ash 0N hand............cccovvwurcvicnnreennse s 1,143
thousands): Total
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Amounts on deposit with the United States
Treasury that_relate to the Unemi)loyrr_lent
Compensation Benefits Fund are not_categorized
because they are neither deposits with financial
institutions nor mvestments.

a. Deposits

Deposits include cash and cash equivalents on
deposit in banks and non-negotiable certificates of
deposit. At June 30, 1998, the deposits of the State's
primary government and its discretely presented
%olrlnponent units (expressed in thousands) were as
ollows:

Total

Category Bank Carrying
1 2 3 Balance Amount
Primary
Government... $ 303013 $ 14819 $ 53798 § 371630 $ 153,863
Component
Units................ 1.478 — 27 1,506 1,505
Totals ............. $ 304491 $ 14,819 $ 53,826 $ 373135 $ 155368

Category_l deposits are those covered by
Federal depository insurance or by collatera] held by
a State entity (i.e, primary government or discretely
presented component unit) or by its agent in the
entity's name, ate%ory 2 deposifs are collateralized
with” securities held “by the pledging financial
institution's trust department or_agent in _a State
entity's  name. Category 3 ~ deposits  are
uncollateralized. All deposits under the control of
the State Treasurer are fully insured or
collateralized.

b. Investments

Legally authorized investments vary by fund
but generally include obligations of the United
States and certain agencies of the United States
obligations of the State of South Carolina and
certain of its_political subdivisions, certificates of
deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements,
certain corporate bonds, and commercial paper.

Substantially all of the State’s investments are

resented at fair value. Securities are valued at the

last reported sales price as_ provided by an
independent pricing service. Investment income
consists of realized and unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) in the fair value of investments and
interest income earned.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the
State's grlmary government and its _discretely
presented component units have classified their
investments into three risk categories. Category 1
includes investments that were insured or registered
or for which the securities were held by a State
entity (i.e., primary government or discretely
presénted component unit) or its agent in the entity's
name. Category 1 also includes investments for
which a State entity has safekeeping responsibilities
but no equity or ownership Interest or control.
Category 2 includes uninsured, and unregistered
investments for which the securities were held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in a State
entity's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unre%stered investments for which the securities are
held by the counterparty, or by its trust department
or agént but not in a State “entity's name. The
investments of the State's primary government and
its discretely presented component units_by risk
category (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1998,
were:
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Category Reported Fair
1 2 3 Amount Value
Primary Government
U.S. government securities.................. $ 6,983,586 $ 304927 § 11,458 § 7,299971 $ 7,415,047
Corporate bonds..........c..ccoceveiciencnnn. 8,457,319 20,250 2,393 8,479,962 8,481,037
Repurchase agreements..................... 2,161,553 1,573 12,870 2,175,996 2,175,996
Collateralized mortgage obligations...... 957,878 — — 957,878 957,878
Asset-backed securities...................... 54,578 — - 54,578 54,578
Commercial paper.........ccc.cccooeeerriennans 1,919,155 —_— — 1,919,155 1,919,155
Securities lending program
Investments from cash collateral
U.S. government securities.............. — — 43,714 43,714 43,714
Corporate bonds............ccccocvvevnnninn, — — 688,440 688,440 688,440
Repurchase agreements.................. — — 816,140 816,140 816,140
Commercial paper.............cccoveeeeneeee. — — 31,889 31,889 31,889
Other........oo e 9,903 37,250 11,201 58,354 59,678
Subtotals........ccoovi e, 22,526,077 22,643,552
Not categorized:
Deferred compensation plans--
annuity contracts..........c.cccooeeenee 1,132,237 1,132,237
Securities lending program
U.S. government securities.............. 1,432,797 1,432,797
Corporate bonds...........ccccccvvvecennen. 84,515 84,515
Unsettled investment transactions..... 126,524 126,524
Mutual funds............ccooeveeieieen, 64,460 64,460
Totals--primary government........ $ 20,543,972 $ 364,000 $ 1,618,105 25,366,610 25,484,085
Discretely Presented
Component Units
U.S. government securities.................. $ 199,322 —_ $ 4,077 203,399 193,999
Repurchase agreements...................... 225,103 — — 225103 225103
Subtotals.........ccooeeriiri e, 428,502 419,102
Not categorized:
Investment in primary government's
investment pool...........cccevviveeinennn, 726 726
Unsettled investment transactions..... 16 16
Totals—discretely presented
component units........cecceecevreennees $ 424,425 - $ 4,077 429,244 419,844
Totals--reporting entity................. $ 25,795,854 $ 25,903,929

At June 30, 1998, the State held collateralized
mortgage obligations primarily in its Pension Trust
Funds. ~ These securities were purchased to protect
the State’s Pension Trust Funds from grlnplpal
prepayment risk during an environment of declining
interest rates and to provide incremental yield above
that available on corporate securities with similar
terms. These securities also provide diversification

in the Pension Trust Fund investment portfolios
and maintain the high quality of government-
sponsored instruments in_ the” portfolios. It is
estimated that these securities will provide future
cash inflows on a time schedule that approximately
matches the outflows associated with Pension Trust
Fund liabilities. These highly marketable securities
are rated AAA by the major rating agencies.
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The asset-backed securities held by the State at
June 30, 1998, were held by the State’s Pension
Trust Funds. These securiti€s, with an average life
of one to three years and a legal final maturity of
five to six years, represented an undivided
ownership interést in a trust consisting of credit-card
and automobile loan receivables. ost of these
securities were purchased in 1995 and 1996 when
short-term interest rates were approx1mz;1te(ljy 5.00%
and they could provide incremental yields above
other securities 'with similar maturities without
increasing the risk of the investment portfolios.
These asset-backed securities are rated AAA by the
major rating agencies. ) ) ]

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority,
a discretely “presented component unit, ends
December 31. At December 31, 1997, the Public
Service Authority had held-to-maturity inyestments
carried at_amortized cost of $111.592 million and
available-for-sale investments carried at fair market
value of $314.825 million. The %r_oss unrealized
holding gams totaled $12.519 million and gross
unrealized holding losses totaled $2 thousand on the
available-for-sale securities, Included in the Public
Service Authority’s available-for-sale investments,
carried at faif market value, are nuclear
decommissioning funds of $50.066 million with
related unrealized holding losses of $10.480 million.

1 of the Authority’s investments, with the
exception of decommissioning funds, are limited to
a maturity of ten years or less. For the year ended

December 31, 1997, the Authority had proceeds of

$35.433 million from sales of available-for-sale
securities and realized $658 thousand in gains and
$34 thousand in losses in connection with these
sales. The gains and losses were computed as the
difference between the proceeds and specifically
identified amortized cost per security.

c. Securities Lending Programs

By law, the State’s primary %ovemm.ent may
lend Securities from its investment portfolios on a
collateralized basis to  third E)a ies, primarily
financial institutions, with a simultaneous agreement
to return the collateral for the same securities in the
future. The State may lend United States
Government securities, corporate bonds, and other
securities for collateral in the form of cash or other
securities. The contracts with the State’s custodians
require them to indemnify the State if the borrowers
fail to return the securities (and if the collateral is
madecglate to replace_the securities lent) or fail to
ay the State for income distributions by the
securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan.
The weighted average maturity of the State’s
collateral _investments _generally” matched the
maturity of the securities loans durm% the fiscal g/ear
and at June 30, 1998. At June 30, 1998, the State
had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the
amounts the State owed the borrowers exceeded the
amounts the borrowers owed the State. Either the
State or the borrower can terminate all securities
loans on demand. There are no restrictions on the
amount of the loans that can be made. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1998, the State experienced no

losses on its securities lending transactions because
of borrower defaults. o

The State receives primarily cash as collateral
for its loaned securities. A small portion of the
collateral received by the State at June 30, 1998, was
in the form of securities. The market value of the
required collateral must meet or exceed 102% of the
market value of the securities loaned, prov1d1n% a
margin against a decline in the market value of the
collateral. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, the State met the 102% requirement.
The State cannot pledge or sell collateral securities
unless the borrower detfaults. The lending agent, on
behalf of the State, invests cash collateral received.
Accordingly, at June 30, 1998, these investments of
cash collatéral were recorded as assets on the State’s
Combined Balance Sheet. Corresponding liability
amounts also have been recorded because the State
must return the cash collateral to the borrower upon
expiration of the loan. At June 30, 1998, the fair
value of the State’s securities on loan was
$1.517 billion, and theg' are uncategorized as to
custodial credit risk in the table in the investments
subsection (Note 4b) above. For the State’s cash
collateral investments, the table includes the
reported amount, fair value, and custodial credit risk
by investment type.

NOTE 5: TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable (expressed in thousands) at
June 30, 1998, were:

Special Trust and
General Revenue Agency
Fund Funds Funds

Retail sales and use................. $ 199629 § 67895 $ —
Individual income...... 164,918 — -
Corporate income 6,239 - —
Unemployment..............c.cceeeee —-— —_ 35219
Gasoline and motor vehicle...... 696 33,159 5,393
Alcoholic beverages and

tobacco.......ccvvviniiins 14,979 — -
(0,131 OOV 12,736 18,441 —
Gross taxes receivable....... 399,197 119,495 40,612
Less: Allow ance for uncollect-

ible taxes........ccocvvnrrcrinnns 43,689 4,774 199
Net taxes receivable............. $ 355508 $§ 114721 § 40413

A total of $373.698 million in net taxes
receivable pertaining to the General Fund and
SPecml Revenue Funds were current receivables as
of June 30, 1998, and were collected within thirty
days after that date.

NOTE 6: FIXED ASSETS

Property, plant, and equipment (expressed in
thousan%sgtzt Jgne 30, 1998,q colr)lsisted S)f: P

#

75



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

Primary Government

Trust General Higher Com-
Enter- Internal and Fixed Educa- ponent
prise Service Agency Assets tion Units
Land and improvements...... $ 18,095 $ 5377 $ 582 $ 201,100 $ 120,232 $ 246,888
Buildings, improvements,
and utility plant................. 3,739 145,017 4,749 1,077,044 1,918,483 3,534,268
Machinery, equipment,
andother..........cccoeeeeeen. 14,299 125,351 4 1,020,937 798,945 41,462
Construction in progress..... — 1,634 — 57,824 164,151 114,300
Property, plant and
equipment before
accumulated
depreciation........ccccccvuuee 36,133 277,379 5,335 2,356,905 3,001,811 3,936,918
Less: accumulated
depreciation................... 10,329 127,508 688 — 14,137 1,290,198
Total property, plant
and equipment, net........ $ 25804 $ 149,871 $ 4,647 $ 2,356,905 $ 2,987,674 $ 2,646,720

Changes in general fixed assets (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, were:

July 1, 1997
Balance as Adjusted
Previously Adjust- July 1, 1997 June 30, 1998
Reported ments Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Land and improvements... $ 185222 $ — $ 185222 $ 15888 $ 10 $ 201,100
Buildings, improvements
and utility plant................ 1,009,633 (321) 1,009,312 70,983 3,251 1,077,044
Machinery, equipment,
and other...........c.ccc.e..... 1,030,299 (25,286) 1,005,013 70,792 54,868 1,020,937
Construction in progress.. 78,695 — 78,695 47,428 68,299 57,824
Total General Fixed
Assets.......iicriiininennns $ 2303849 $ (25,607) $ 2,278,242 $ 205091 $ 126,428 $ 2,356,905
The “Adjustments” column in the table above Outstandinf commitments for construction of
reports amounts that changed as_a result of changes fixed assets and public domain (mfrastr.uqturez_ assets
in fixed asset capitalization policies. at_June 30, 1998, totaled $459.586 million for the
Construction. in  progress retirements are rimary government and $23.458 million for the
recorded as additions to other categories of assets. gtate Ports Authority, a discretely presented

. _________________________|
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component unit. The Public Service Authority, a
discretely presented component unit, reported
commitments for construction of fixed assets of
$15.188 million at December 31, 1997. o

The primary government recorded capitalized
construction period interest of $258 thousand during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

NOTE 7: RETIREMENT PLANS

Note Ic_describes the basis of accounting that
the State’s five defined benefit pension plans use to
report Pension Trust Fund activity. Note 4 S{)emﬁes
the method used to value Pension Trust Fund
mnvestments.

a. Plan Descriptions

The South Carolina Retirement Systems (the
System), a part of the State Budget and Control
Board, administers four defined benefit retirement

lans: the South Carolina  Retirement System
SCRS), the South Carolina_Police Officers'
etirement System (PORS), the Retirement System
for Members of the General Assembly of the” State
of South Carolina (GARSP, .and the Retirement
System for Judges and Solicitors of the State of
South Carolina (JSRS). The System issues a
Rubllcly available Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report” that includes required supplementary
information for all four plans. The report may be
obtained by writing to:

The South Carolina Retirement System
Fontaine Business Center

202 Arbor Lake Drive

Columbia, South Carolina 29223

SCRS, established by Section 9-1-20 of the
South Carolina Code_ of Laws, is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that
benefits employees of public schools, the State, and
its political subdivisions. Membership is required as
a condition of employment. Both employers and
employees must contribute. Benefits vest after five
years oOf service. Vested members who retire at age
sixty-five or with thirty tyears of service at any age
receéive an annual benefif, payable monthly, for life.
The benefit is based on length of service and averaﬁe
final compensation, an annualized average of the
employee’s highest twelve consecutive quarters'
compensation. The annual benefit amount is 1.82%
of aver?e final compensation times years of service.
Ifgeduce benefits are payable as early as age fifty-
ive.

PORS, established by Section 9-11-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that
benefits police officers and fire fighters em;l)) oyed by
the State or its political subdivisions. Mem ershép is
required as a condition of employment. oth
employers and employees must contribute. Benefits
vest alter five years of service. Vested members
who retire with twenty-five years of service receive
an annual benefit, payable monthly for life. The
benefit is based on length of service and avera%e
final compensation, an annualized average of the
employee's highest twelve consecutive ~quarters'

compensation. The annual benefit amount is 2.14%
of average final compensation times years of service.

GAKS, established by Section” 9-9-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a smgle-employer
defined benefit pension plan that benefits members
of the South Carolina General Assembly.
Membership is required as a condition of takin
office as a member of the General Assembly. Bot
the members of the General Assembly and the State
must contribute. Benefits vest after eight years of
service. Vested members who retire at age sixty or
at any age with thirty years of service receivé an
annual benefit, payable monthlg' for life. The
annual benefit amount is 4.83% of earnable
compensation times years of service. Earnable
compensation is defined as fortﬁ' dgs’ pay at the rate
currentli/ aid to members of the General Assembly
plus $12 thousand. .

JSRS, established by Section 9-8-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a single-employer
defined benefit pension plan that benefits the judges
of the State's Supreme Court, Court of Appeals,
circuit courts, family courts, and the State's circuit
solicitors. Membership is required as a condition of
taking office. Both judges and the State must
contribute.  Benefits ‘vest after twelve years of
service In a position as a judge or Solicitor.
Members may retire at age seventy with fifteen years
of service, at age sixty-five with twenty years of
service, or at any age with twenty-five years of
service. Members receive a retirement benefit equal
to 71.3% of the current active salary of the position
occupied at retirement.

Information  regarding the number of

alrltlclpatmg employérs at June 30, 1998, was as
ollows:

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS

State and sChoOL...........cccovereins 100 1 1 1
Other......cccovviiicciiei e 505 259 — —_
Total participating employers........ 605 260 1 1

. The plans provide retirement, death, and
disability benefits to State emplotyees; public school
emJ)loyee.s; employees of counfies, municipalities,
and cértain other State political subdivisions. Each
glan is independent. Assets may not be transferred
rom one ?an to_another or used for any purpose
other than to benefit each plan's participants.

b. Funding Policies

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina
Constitution ~ requires that all State-operated
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuarial
basis. Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws
(as amended) grescrlbes requirements relating to
membership,  benefits, and employee/employer
contributions for each plan.  The following
paragraphs summarize those requirements.

71



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

By law, employee contribution requirements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, were as follows:

Plan Rate
SCRS 6% of salary
PORS 6.5% of salary
GARS 10% of eamable

compensation
JSRS 7% of salary

Actuarially determined employer contribution
rates for the four plans, expressed ds percentages of
compensation, for the fiscal "year ended
June 30, 1998, were as follows:

Plan Rate
SCRS 7.70%
PORS 10.70%
JSRS 40.69%
GARS 72.08%

Under certain conditions, new employers
entering the plans are allowed up to ten years_to
remit matching employer contributions resulting
from their employees’” purchase of prior service
credits. Interest is assessed annually on the unpaid
balance. The amounts outstanding at June 30, 1998,
}Nerlgo$}%.s23l million for SCRS and $2.600 million
or .

¢. Annual Pension Cost

Annual pension cost (dollars expressed in
thousands) and related actuarial data for the State’s
sin lﬁ-employer defined benefit pension plans were
as follows:

GARS JSRS
Annual pension cost................... $2,796 $4,991
Employer contributions
made............oien $2,796 $4,991
Actuarial valuation date.............. July 1, 1997 July 1, 1997
Actuarial cost method............... Entry age Entry age

Amortization method..................
Remaining amortizatiol

Level percent, open Levei percent, open
27 years

§ year smoothed
market

25 years
§ year smoothed
market

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return.......... 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases........ 2.00% 5.25%
Assumed inflationrate............. 4.25% 4.25%
Assumed cost-of-living

adjustments........................ 2.00% 4.25%

d. Trend Information

. Trend information indicates the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. . )

For the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans in 'which the State participates,
the State’s required contributions in dollars
(ﬁxpressed in thousands) and the percentages of
those amounts contributed for the three latest
available years were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 1998

June 30,1997 June 30, 1996

% % %
Required Contributed Required Contributed Required Contributed
SCRS-State:
Primary government..... $ 149,541 100.00% $ 142607 100.00% $ 140,288 100.00%
Component units.......... 7,397 100.00% 7,104 100.00% 6,924 100.00%
PORS-State:
Primary government..... $ 29674 100.00% $ 27,851 100.00% $ 25,651 100.00%
Component units.......... 17 100.00% 16 100.00% 15 100.00%

The following table presents the Annual Pension
Cost,  percentage of Annual Pension Cost
Contributed, and the Net Pension Obligation for the
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Fiscal Annual
ETaZZ:i Pz‘:s':" Pe;‘f’;':gge Pe':;tion e. Funding Status and Progress
Plan June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
GARS 1996 § 1679 100% $ — The following schedule (dollars expressed in
1997 2,492 100% —_ thousands) describes the funding progress for the
1998 2796 100% — State’s single-employer defined benefit plans for the
’ three latest availableyears:
JSRS 1996  § 4,244 100% § —
1997 4,771 100% —_
1998 4,991 100% —
Actuarial UAAL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded of
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Plan July 1 (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
GARS 1995 $ 30528 $ 58577 $ 28,049 52.1% $ 4,704 596.3%
1996 31,702 59,914 28,212 52.9% 4,771 591.3%
1997 33,627 60,052 26,425 56.0% 4,721 559.7%
JSRS 1995 $ 57917 $ 94420 $ 36,503 61.3% $ 9,417 387.6%
1996 62,850 101,020 38,170 62.2% 10,109 377.6%
1997 68,980 112,185 43,205 61.5% 11,221 385.0%

f. Receivables and Investments

_ The principal components of receivables and
investments  (expressed in  thousands) at

June 30, 1998, for the four glans administered by the
South Carolina Retirement Systems were as follows:
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SCRS PORS GARS JSRS Totals
Receivables:
Contributions..........ccococoooeee $ 75,085 $ 10,620 $ 45 $ 291 $ 86,041
Employer long-term.................. 1,231 2,600 — —-— 3,831
Accrued interest........................ 188,987 21,705 472 960 212124
Unsettled investment sales.... 54,987 — —_ — 54,987
Due from other funds............... 13,695 3,217 — 71 16,983
Total receivables.........cccccuuuueee. $ 333,985 $ 38,142 $ 517 $ 1,322 $ 373,966
Investments:
United States government
secunties........oooveeeiene, $ 2655274 $ 272,138 $ 8,560 $ 9,894 $ 2,945,866
United States government
agencies and government-
insured securities................... 4,164,739 409,712 8,321 23,103 4,605,875
Corporate bonds...................... 5,066,486 612,227 11,952 26,210 5716,875
Financial and other................... 2,472,526 316,421 4,384 11,461 2,804,792
Invested securities lending
collateral..........ccccoevvveneinnnnnn. 1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 1,526,258
Total investments........cooceceuene. $ 15,683,502 $ 1,797,594 $ 39,268 § 79,302 $ 17,599,666

g. National Guard Pension System

NGPS

Plan Description Retiregs. and bengficiaries

The National Guard Pension System (NGPS) is receiving benefits...................... 1,801
a single-employer defined benefit pension plan Termiated employees
administered by the State Adjutant General's Office. entitled to benefits but not
f'[hathoflf\'}%epdsoes not issue a separate financial report yet receiving them....................... 2,064
or the . ti
1. dhe NGPS, established by Section 25-1-3210 of ACIV BMPIOYLES ..o _5604
the South Carolina Code of Laws, provides benefits Total participants............................
to National Guard members who pserv_ed in South parteip o 13469
Carolina prior to July 1,1993. National Guard Number of participating
members are considered fo be Federal government EMPIOYENS. .......c..evveiverieee. 1
employees. The Federal government pays Guard
members' drill pay and summer camp Ppay. In
accordance with State law, the State's General Fund
yays Guard members only if the Governor activates National Guard members who served in South
he National Guard for service to the State. Carolina prior to July 1, 1993, are covered by the

. The pension benefit that the State provides is plan. NGPS is closedto new entrants.
intended only to supplement the retirement benefit
that Guard “'members receive from the Federal
overnment. Members who retire at age sixty with
enty years of military service, including at least
fifteen years of South Carolina National Guard duty

Receivables and Investments

The assets of the NGPS are comprised of Cash

ten of which immediately precede retirement, and and Cash Equivalents and Accounts Receivable. At
who have received an o%orable discharge, are June 30, 1998, all of the $87 thousand in Accounts
entitled to monthly pension benefits. The pension Receivable consisted of accrued interest.

amount is equal to $50 per month for twenty years

of creditable service with an additional $5 per month Contributions and Reserves

for each additional year of service, provided that the

total_[;ilension shall riot exceed $100 per month. Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina
e

following table shows the number of Cct)nstitution] reqlljuref dthgt all Staae-operat_ec%
i retirement plans be funded on a sound actuaria
ir;l}l%l% 6,56159981:,)y type of membership as of basis. Titlep25 of the South Carolina Code of Laws

R EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE——,
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rescribes requirements relating to membership,
enefits, and employer contributions for the NGPS.
In accordance with State law, the State Adjutant
General’s _ Office  administers  the “plan.
Administrative _charges are financed through
investment earnings. Ihe State funded the plan on
an actuarial basis for the fiscal years ended
June 30,1994, and  June 30, 1995. From
July 1, 1995, through the present time, however, the
plan has not been fully funded in accordance with
actuarial recommendations. ~ Members do not
contribute. ) .
The net assets of the National Guard Pension

System are required to be reserved for the purpose of

pa_yl_n% the supplementa] retirement benefits to
eligible members. The balance in the reserve at
June 30, 1998, was $6.600 million.

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

The following table provides information
concerning funding policies’ and annual pension
costs (dolfars expressed in thousands):

The following represents the comﬁ)‘lonents of the

net pension obligation (NPO) for the NGPS, at
June 30, 1998 (expressed in thousands):
NGPS

Actuarially required contribution (ARC)...... $ 3200
Interest on the NPO............cccooiviiiiiinnnien, 329
Adjustment to the ARC...........ccooeiie (442)
Annual PenSion COSt.............ccvurvrrvreerrerrenes T 3087
Contributions made.............c.cccooivininininnn. 2,499
Increase in NPO..........cccooviveieerieeceneeeeeeene T 588
NPO beginning of year.............ccccccoevinnns 4,534

NPO end of year..........cccevceeeriiniiiinnn e $ 5122

NGPS
Annual pension cost.................... $3,087 . L
Employer contributions made....... $2,499 The State recognized $2.499 million of
Actuarial valuation date................ June 30, 1998 expenditures in the General Fund to pay a portion of
Actuarial cost method.... Entry age the current fiscal years’ actuarially determined
Amortization method.................... Level percent, open contribution.
Remaining amortization period...... 30 years The following schedule édollars expressed in
Asset waluation method................ Market thousands) describes the funding progress for the
A‘i‘“a"a' assumptions: NGPS for each of the three most recent actuarial
nvestment rate of retum............ 7.25% Valuati ons:
Projected salary increases........ Not applicable '
Assumed inflation rate ............. 4.25%
Assumed cost-of—living
adjustments...............cocl Not applicable
Actuarial UAAL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Liability Unfunded of
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7/1/94 3 3,760 $ 26,996 $ 23,236 13.9% 3 50,766 45.8%
6/30/96 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4%
6/30/98 8,640 41478 32,838 20.8% 40,333 81.4%

Trend Information

~ Trend information indicates the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits

when due. The following table presents the Annual
Pension Cost, percentage of Annual Pension Cost
contributed, and the Net Pension Obligation for the
latest three fiscal dyears for the plan (dollars
expressed in thousands)
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Annual
Fiscal Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed  Obligation
1996 $ 2,982 83.8% $ 4,064
1997 2,968 84.2% 4,534
1998 3,087 81.0% 5,122

h. Supplemental Benefits Funded by General
Fund

The State General Assembly has directed the
General Fund to pay supplemental (cost—of—hvmﬁ)
increases to retirees and has fully funded the
required amount annually on a paJy-as?'ou- 0 basis.
During the fiscal year” ended June 30, 1998, the
State's’ General Fund transferred $5.01Z million to
the South Carolina Retirement System and the
Police Officers' Retirement System for retiree
supplemental benefits.

i. Defined Contribution Plan

_ Certain State employees may elect to participate
in the Optional Retirement Program , a
defined contribution tplan administered by the South
Carolina Retirement Systems. The "ORP was
established under Title 9, Chapter 17, of the South
Carolina Code of Laws. e provides
retirement and death benefits through the purchase
of individual fixed or variable annuity contracts
which are issued to, and become the property of, the
participants. The State assumes no liability for this
plan other than for payment of contributions to
des%nated insyrance companies.

DRP P_amclpatlon is limited to faculti_'l_ and
administrative staff of the State's four-year higher
education institutions who meet all” eligibility
requirements for membership in the SCRS. To elect
participation in_the ORP, eligible employees must
irrevocably waive SCRS membership within their
first ninety days of employment.

Under State law, contributions to the ORP are
required at the same rates as for the SCRS (see
Section b, “Funding Policies,” above). Employer
and employee contributions to the ORP_were
$10.4 million and $8.2 million, respectively, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

NOTE 8: POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of
Laws and the annual Appropriation Act, the State
provides post-employment health and dental benefits

to certain former State employees and to certain of
their surviving dependents. Generally, retirees are
eligible for the benefits if they have ‘established at
least five years of retirement service credit, whereas
other former employees are eligible only if they have
established at least twenty years of retirement
service credit. Benefits become effective when the
former employee retires under a state retirement
system. urrently, approximately 19,170 retirees
meet these eligibility requirements.
. Eligible retirees choose between two health
insurance plans underwritten by the State, the
Economy Plan and the Standard Plan. In accordance
with contractual provisions of the plans, participants
must meet specified annual deductible requirements.
Thereafter, the Standard Plan pays 85% of allowable
claims, and the Economy Plan pays 80% of
allowable claims.  The “State pays 100% of
allowable claims, however, after the participant has
paid the annual out-of-pocket limit prescribed by
each, Plan. Both plans disallow claims in excess of
specified annual and lifetime maximums. In
addition, State health benefits are reduced if the
artx%l ant receives or qualifies to receive Medicare
enefits.

The State also underwrites a dental care plan.
Contractual provisions of the plan specify deductible
requirements as well as annual and lifetime
maximums. i ) i

To comply with changes in federal law, certain
benefit provisions for the Economy Plan and the
Standard Plan changed during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998.  Effective January 1, 1998, both
plans’ pre-existing conditions limitations were
weakened to comply with the federal Health
Insurance Portability” and Accountability Act of
1996, and the annual and lifetime maximums for
mental health services were removed to com6plyrw1th
the federal Mental Health Parity Act of 1996. These
changes in benefit provisions are expected to
significantly increase future claims costs. The
expected increase in claims cost is not measurable at
this time because the increase is expected to result
primarily from changes in behavior of participants
seeking “services because they are now covered by
insurance. These changes in behavior cannot be
predicted with accuracy.

Both health plans and the dental plan_ are
financed on a ay-as-you-g%o basis. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1998, the State recognized
expenses _En_et of participant contributions) of
$68.322 million to provide health and dental benefits
to State participants in post-employment status.

NOTE 9: DEFERRED COMPENSA-
TION PLANS

Several oPtional deferred compensation plans
are available to State employees and employees of
its political subdivisions. The multiple-employer
plans, created under Internal Revenue Code Sections
457, 401ng), and 403Sb), are accounted for as
Agency Funds. Employees may withdraw the
current value of their contributions when they
terminate employment. With approval of the State’s
Deferred Compensation Commission, employees
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may also withdraw the current value of their
contributions prior to termination of employment if
they meet certain requirements. These requirements
differ among the three L{)lans. Comzpensatlon
deferred under the Section Ol(k_{) and 40 (b? plans
is placed in trust for the contributing employees.
The State has no liability for losses under the plans.

Under the Section 457 plan, all deferred
compensation, all progexgy or rights of property
purchased with amounts deferred, and any income
earned on property purchased remain assets of the
employers subject to the claims of the employers'
general creditors, one of whom is the employee
participant. It is unlikely, however, that the State
would ever use plan asséts to satisfy claims of the
State's_general creditors. State law limits the State's
financial liability to participants.  The State
however, does have the duty of due care that would
be re%ulred of an ordinary prudent investor. Of the
$691.397 million assets in_the Section 457 plan at
December 31, 1997, $378.063 million =~ _was
a Ifllcable to the State while the remaining
$§ 3.334 million represented assets of other
participating jurisdictions. .

On August 20, 1996, the provisions of Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 were amended bf\}rladdmg
subsection (g). That subsection provides that new
plans will not be considered eligible plans unless all
assets and income of the plans are held in trust for

the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries. Existing plans also must comply with
this _ requirement é/ January 1, 1999. On
July 24, 1998, South Carolina changed its plan to
comply. After that date, therefore, the assets and
income of South Carolina's plan will no longer be
subject to the claims of employers' general creditors.

NOTE 10: LEASES AND INSTALL-
MENT PURCHASES

a. Lease and Instaliment Purchase
Commitments

The State leases land, office facilities
equipment, and other assets under both capital and
oge_ratm leases. Some of these leases take the form
of installment purchases of property. The present
value of future minimum capital lease and
installment purchase payments and minimum annual
lease payments for capital leases and installment
purchases (expressed in thousands) follow:

Primary Government

General
Long-Term
Internal Obligations Higher
Service Account Education Component
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Funds Group Funds Units Totals
1999 $ 1,457 $ 2,776 $ 3,632 $ 5,240 $ 13,105
2000 1,466 2,659 3,366 4,845 12,336
2001 1,490 2,042 2,835 4,151 10,518
2002 1,524 1,448 2,371 3,825 9,168
2003 1,567 41 2,167 3,818 7.593
2004 and after 6,294 — 22,718 29,832 58,844
Total minimum payments................. 13,798 8,966 37,089 51,711 111,564
Less: interest and executory costs...... 3,895 1,110 14,096 12,415 31,516
Present value of net minimum
payments $ 9,903 $ 7,856 $ 22,993 $ 39,296 $ 80,048

Assets under capital leases at June 30, 1998, were as follows (expressed in thousands):
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Primary Government

General
Long-Term
Internal Obligations Higher
Service Account Education Component
Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases Funds Group Funds Units Totals
Land and improvements..........c.ocovieeeenenrcncnienienns $ — $ - $ 3,206 $ — $ 3298
Buildings, improvements, and utility plant.................. 14,405 — 35,428 97,473 147,306
Machinery, equipment, and other...............cccooe. — 14,975 38,119 207 24,301
Assets acquired under capital leases before
accumulated amortization.........ccccccceeeeecrnnnnnen. 14,405 14,975 47,843 97,680 174,903
Less: accumulated amortization.............................. 3,206 — 2,884 65,935 72,025
Assets acquired under capital leases, net...... $ 11,199 $ 14,975 $ 44,959 $ 31,745 $ 102,878
Operating lease é)ayments during the fiscal year Fiscal Year
ended June 0, 199 . tota..le.d $57 6 mllllon. At End|ng Enterprise Component
June 30, 1998, future minimum payments under June 30 Funds Unit
operating leases (expressed in thousands) were as
follows: 1999 $ 325 % 3,822
Operating Leases 2000 325 2'804
2001 325 41
Fiscal Year Ending Primary Component
June 30 Government Units Totals ;802 325 411
1999 $ 29,175 § 118 § 29,293 03 322 308
2000 26,764 103 26,867 2004 and after 13,170 1,539
2001 19,429 97 19,526
5002 14614 ol 14701 Total............. $ 14792 $ 9,295
2003 7.937 43 7,980
2004 and after 13,611 — 13,611
Total minimum payments.... $ 111,530 $ 48 $ 111,978

b. Facilities Leased to Others

Non-State parties lease land and facilities under
operating leases from the State Ports Authorl}y, a
discretely presented component unit, and from
EnterpriSe Funds (the Patriots Point Development
Authority and the Other Enterprise Funds). At
June 30,71998, the State Ports Authority had leased
to others certain land and facilities having a cost of
agproxmately $262.352 million and $75.978 million
of related = accumulated depreciation. At
June 30, 1998, the total cost of land and
improvements leased to others bgl the Enterprise
Funds was $9.269 million, with $746 thousand of
related accumulated depreciation. Future minimum
rental payments to be received at June 30, 1998,
under these operating leases (expressed in
thousands) were:
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General Long-Term Obligations Account Group

Capital improvement bonds, 3.50% to 6.80%............... $ 813,712
State highw ay bonds, 3.50% 10 6.50%............c.cccceee. 137,865
Subtotal-General Long-Term Obligations -
Account Group 951,577
Higher Education Funds
State institution bonds, 4.10% t0 7.00%..........cc.cccceee. 84,465
Total--general obligation bonds payable........... [3 1,036,042

~ Of the $813.712 million in outstanding capital
improvement bonds, $18.910 million is™ capital
appreciation (_‘dee{)-dlscount) bonds. ]
At June 30, 1998, $244.243 million of capital
improvement bonds were authorized but unissued.,

At June 30, 1998, = future debt service
reqplre_ments (expressed in thousands) for general
obligation bonds were:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
1999 $ 93,925 $ 51,252 $ 145177
2000 95,230 45,895 141,125
2001 111,398 40,462 151,860
2002 90,205 35,255 125,460
2003 106,872 30,704 137,576
2004 and after 547,298 123,198 670,496
Total debt service
requirements............ 1,044,928 $ 326,766 $ 1,371,694
Unamortized discounts... (8,886)
Total principal -

outstanding................ $ 1,036,042

The Department of Transportation Special
Revenue Fund pays the debt service for the State
highway bonds recorded in the General Long-Term
O§llgat10ns Account Group. The General Fund pays
debt service for the other general obligation bonds
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account GrouF. The Higher Education Plant Funds
Retirement of Indebtedness) pay the debt service
or general obligation bonds recorded in the Higher
Education Funds. )

The State's legal debt margin at June 30, 1998,
was $5.535 million for institution bonds. Rather
than directly limiting the amount of other
outstanding ‘general obligation debt, State law
imposes a Iimitation on annual debt service
expenditures. The legal annual debt service margin
at June 30, 1998, was $48.316 million for highway
bonds and $93.895 million for general obligation
bonds excluding institution and highway bonds.

b. Limited Obligation Bonds

Limited obligation bonds are not backed by the
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the State.
Limited obligation bonds (expressed in thousands)
outstanding at June 30, 1998, were:

internal Service Funds
Lease revenue bonds, 4.00% 10 6.75%.............c......... $ 35,569

(At June 30, 1998, there were no limited

obligation bonds authorized but unissued.
he State issued the lease revenue bonds to

finance the cost of capital facilities for use by certain
State agencies. The bonds are secured by F edges of
lease rental payments that the agencies will pay from
their General Fund appropriations and Special
Revenue Funds, i

At June 30, 1998, = future debt service
requirements (expresse& in thousands) for limited
obligation bonds were:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
1999 $ 2,170 $ 1,743 $ 3,913
2000 2,655 1,667 4,322
2001 2,780 1,533 4,313
2002 2,900 1,374 4,274
2003 3,035 1,220 4,255
2004 and after 22,225 5,263 27,488
Total debt service
requirements.............. 35,765 $ 12,800 § 48,565
Unamortized discounts..... (196)
Total principal -

outstanding................. $ 35,569

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service
gun(cii, pays all debt service for the lease revenue
onds.

c. Revenue Bonds, Notes, and Certificates of
Participation

Revenue bonds, notes, and certificates of
participation are not backed by the full faith, credit,
and taxing power of the State. Revenue bonds,
notes, and certificates of ?aI'tICI%atIOH outstanding
(expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1998, were:
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Certificates
of
Bonds Notes Participation

Primary Government:
Enterprise Funds
Housing Authority bonds, 3.50% to

S 471181 8 — $ —

bonds, 3.50% to 7.13%
Jobs—Economic Development

Authority notes, 9.00% — 204 —
Other Enterprise notes, 6.00%..

363,240 —_ -

Totals--Enterprise Funds.................... 834,421 23 -

Internat Service Funds
Budget and Control Board notes,
4.52% 10 4.91%....c.ooviiiece e — 2,265 —_

General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group
Deaf and Blind School note, 4.50%........... - 600 —

Higher Education Funds
Various bonds and notes, 3.00% to

10.95%...c.vveiare e e 244682 57,442 —
Direct note obligations, 7.09% to 8.79%.... — 95,000 —
Certificates of participation. 6.25%

t07.35% — — 21,466

Totals--Higher Education Funds.......... 244,682 152,442 21,466

Totals--Primary Government............ 1,079,103 156,538 21,466

Discretely Presented Component Units
Public Service Authority bonds,
3.80% 0 7.00%....cocviiimiien 2089672 — —
State Ports Authority bonds. 3.75% to
6.75%. 57.467 — —
Enterprise Development, Inc..
notes, 8.00% t0 9.50%..............ccccennee. — 345 —

Totals—Discretely Presented
Comp t Units. 2,157,139 345 -

Totals--revenue bonds, notes,
and certificates of participa-
tion payabl $ 3,236,242 § 155,883 § 21,466

Certain revenue bonds_ require the individual
enterprises _to provide sufficient revenue to pay debt
service and to fund all necessalgl expenses to run the
enterprises. Additionally, the State Ports Authorlt%',
a discretely presented component unit, is required fo
maintain an irrevocable letter of credit equal to the
principal amount_of its Series 1994 Bonds_and
accrued interest. The letter of credit had an available
balance of $27.813 million at June 30, 1998. .

University Medical Associates of the Medical
University of South Carolina (UMA) is a component
unit of the Medical University of South Carolina, an
institution reported in the Higher Education Funds.
During January 1995, UMA issued $55.000 million
in Direct Note Obligations, Select Auction Variable
Rate Securities. uring December 1997, UMA
issued an additional $40.000 million in Direct Note
Obligations,  Select ~ Auction, Variable Rate
Securities. The variable rate of interest is set every
35 days. UMA entered into thirty-year interest rate
swap agreements for these obligations. Based on the
swap agreements, UMA owes interest calculated at a
fixed rate of 8.79% on the $55.000 million issue and

7.09% on the $40.000 million issue. If the actual
floating variable interest rates exceed these rates, the
counterparty pays, the differential to UMA. If the
actual floating variable rates are less than these rates,
UMA pays the counterparty. Only the net difference
in interest payments is actual%y exchanged with the
counterparties. | he ~ $55.000 million and
$40.000 million in note principal are not exchanged,
they are only the basis on which the interest
payments are calculated. UMA continues to pay
inferest to the note holders at the variable rate
?rowded by the notes. However, during the term of
he swap agreements, UMA effectively pays fixed
rates on the debt. The debt service requirements to
maturity included in_this note are based on those
fixed rates. UMA will be exposed to variable rates
if the counterparties to the swaps default or if the
swaps are terminated. For the year ended
June 30, 1998, total interest costs incurred were
$6.386 million. ]
The funds that receive the proceeds of revenue
bonds, notes, and certificates of participation have
ltlaldged revenues for payment of debt service as
ollows:

Primary Government:
Enterprise Funds
State Housing Authority bonds: State Housing Authority
Fund revenues
Education Assistance Authority bonds: loan repayments
and United States Commissioner of Education funds
Internal Service Funds
Budget and Control Board notes: rental payments for
vehicles and office space
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
Deaf and Blind School notes: client service revenues
Higher Education Funds
Various higher education bonds, notes, and certificates of
participation: various specific higher education revenues

Discretely Presented Component Units:
Public Service Authority obligations: Public Service
Authority Fund revenues
State Ports Authority bonds: State Ports Authority Fund
revenues

At June 30,1998, = future debt service
requirements (expressed in thousands) for revenue
bonds, notes, and certificates of participation were:

Primary Government:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals

1999 $ 71665 § 74825 § 146,490

2000 81,852 71,198 153,050

2001 67,850 67,334 135,284

2002 65,702 62,630 128,332

2003 65,493 58,655 124,148

2004 and after 914,228 559,982 1.474,210

Total debt service

requirements............coeceines 1,266,890 $ 894,624 §$ 2,161,514
Unamortized discounts (10,183}
Deferred amount on refunding... (600)

Total principal outstanding... $ 1,256,107

[

86



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

Discreteiy Presented Com ponent Units:

Year Ending June 30 Princlpal interest Totails

1999 $ 58,845 $ 132107 $ 190,952

2000 73,532 132,451 205,983

2001 74,562 128,038 202,600

2002 51,086 124,187 175,273

2003 44,230 120,971 165,201

2004 and after 2,189,932 1,697,446 3,887,378

Total debt service

requirements.......covnierene 2,492,187 $ 2,335,200 $ 4,827,387
Unamortized discounts............... (49,199)
Deferred amount on refunding... (285,504)

Total principal outstanding... $ 2,157,484

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority
ends December 31 while the fiscal year for the State
Ports Authority ends June 30. Both entities are
discretely presented component units. At
December 31, 1997, the carrying value of the Public
Service Authority’s debt was $2.373 billion while
the fair value was approximately $2.780 billion. At
June 30, 1998, the carrying value of the State Ports
Authority debt was $58.036 million_while the fair
value was approximately $60.322 million. The fair
values were estimated using current rates available
to the entities for similar borrowing arrangements
and on the market rate of comparable traded debt.

d. Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment
of Debt

The $277 thousand of Extraordinary Loss on the
Early Extinguishment of Debt in the Enterprise
Funds r_e%resented a loss on Housing Authority debt
extlrﬁuls ments that resulted from calling bonds.

¢ $3.438 million of Extraordinary Loss on the
Early Extinguishment of Debt in the Discretely
Presented Component Units represented a loss on
State Ports Authority debt extinguishments that
resulted from an in-substance defeasance using
existing cash reserves.

e. Defeased Bonds

During October 1997, the Citadel, an institution
reported in_the State’s Higher Education Funds,
issued $24.350 million in Revenue Bonds with an
average interest rate of 5.05%. Of the
$24.350 million, $13.289 million was to advance
refund all of The Citadel’s outstanding revenue
bonds totaling $14.150 million with average interest
rates of 5.72% to 6.86%. The proceeds applicable to
the advance  refunding plus an additional
$1.502 million in funds on hand were used to
El_xrchase United States government securities. The

itadel advance refunded these bonds to reduce its
debt service and to gain flexibilities Prowded by the
new bond resolution. As a result of the refunding,
The Citadel’s total debt service payments over the
next nineteen years will decrease by approximately
$3.412 million” and _The Citadel ‘will" obtain an
economic gain (difference between the present
values of the old and new debt service payments) of
$262 thousand. A
. During January 1998, Clemson University, an
institution reported in the State’s Higher Education
Funds, issued $30.135 million in Revenue Bonds

with an average interest rate of 4.63%. Of the
$30.135 million, $19.177 million was to advance
refund $18.105 million in Revenue Bonds with an
average interest rate of 6.52%. The proceeds
applicable to the advance refunding plus an
additional $341 thousand in funds on hand were
used to purchase United States government
securities. The University advance retfunded the
bonds to reduce its debt service and to remove itself
from certain restrictive covenants associated with the
refunded bonds. As a result of the refunding, the
University’s total debt service payments over the
next fiftéen years will decrease by a;])f)roxm_lately
$2.025 million and the University” will obtain an
economic gain of $1.622 million. L

. During March 1998, Clemson University also
issued $6.985 million in Revenue Bonds with an
average _interest rate of 4.25%. Of the
$6.985 million, $6.950 million was to advance
refund $6.480 million in Revenue Bonds with an
average interest rate of 6.28%. The proceeds
applicable to the advance refunding plus an
additional $225 thousand in funds on hand were
used  to purchase United States government
securities. ~The University advance retunded the
bonds to reduce its debt service and to remove itself
from certain restrictive covenants associated with the
refunded bonds. As a result of the refunding, the
University’s total debt service payments over the
next thirteen c?'ears will decrease by a}ﬂ)roxm_lately
$888 thousand and the University” will obtain an
economic gain of $677 thousand. =~ )

During June 1998, the Education Assistance
Authority, an entity reported in the Enterprise Funds,
issued $49.850 mi lion in Guaranteed Student Loan
Revenue and Refunding Bonds with an auction
interest rate varying up to 12.00% to advance refund
$46.300 million  in” Student Loan Revenue Bonds
with an average interest rate of 6.00% and to provide
financing for student loans. The net proceeds of
$46.300 million (after payment of $3.500 million for
a bond premium as well as insurance and other
issuance costs) were used to purchase United States
government securities. ~The advance refunding
resulted in a difference between the reacquisition

rice and the net carr_ylnf amount of the old debt of

512 thousand. _ This difference, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction
from bonds payable, is being charged to operations
throu&h the year 2002 using the sfraight-line basis.
The uthon%;' completed the advance refunding to
have bonds_under the 1993 bond resolution insfead
of the 1979 bond  resolution. The refunding
increases the Authority’s total debt payments over
the next nineteen years $11.352 million and
results in an economic gain of $779 thousand.

. During June 1998, the State Ports Authority, a
discretely ﬁ).rese_nted .component unit, deposited
$30.443 million in an irrevocable escrow account to
effect an in-substance defeasance to maturity of
$27.970 million in revenue bonds.

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997
the Public Service Authority, a discretely presented
component unit, issued  $214.555 million in
refundm% revenue bonds with an average interest
rate of 5.00% to advance refund $205.820 million in
revenue bonds with an average interest rate of
6.03%. The net proceeds of $201.015 million (after
payment of $5.698 million in original issue discount
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and $7.842 million in issuance costs and reserve
requirements) plus an additional $13.275 million
were used to purchase United States government
securities. The advance refunding resulted in a
difference between the reacquisition price and the

net carrying amount of the old debt of

$16.990 million, This difference, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction
from bonds payable, is being charged to operations
through the year 2031_ using the “effective-interest
method, The Authority refunded these bonds to
reduce its total debt service payments over the next
thirty-four years by $22.228 million and to obtain an
economic gain of $11.885 million. The Authority
also deposited $25.201 million in an irrevocable
escrow to effect an in-substance defeasance to
maturity of $29.035 million in_ revenue bonds.
Additionally, the Authority issued $58.933 million
in _commercial paper notes with an estimated
effective interest rate of 3.75% to refund
$59.885 million in revenue bonds with an avera%e
interest rate of 7.34%. The refunding is expected to
result in cash flow savings of approx1matel?/
$32.500 million over the next nine years and result
in an economic gain of ~ approximately
$12.550 million. i

In addition, during prior years the State defeased
certain general obligation and other bonds. For
those defeasances involving advance refundings, the
proceeds of the new bonds were placed in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. At
June 30, 1998, the following outstanding bonds
(expressed in thousands) are considered defeased:

Primary Government
General
tong-Term
Obligations Higher
Enterprise A t Educati Comp
Funds Group Funds Units
Capital improvement
bonds..........coooeen $ — $ 141.000 $ — $ —
Education Assistance
Authority bonds............. 46,300 — — —
Public Service Authority
bonds.. — —_ - 678,030

— — 53,433 —
46,300 ¥ 141,000 $ 53,433 $§ 678,030

Totals...

Since adequate funds have been placed with a
trustee to pay fully the principal and interest of these
bonds, the " liabilities are not recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

f. Conduit Debt

State law authorizes issuance of certain bonds
for which the State assumes no responsibility for
repayment. These bonds, therefore, do not appear as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

The Jobs-Economic Development Authority, an
Enterprise Fund, issues_industrial revenue bonds to
develop and benefit business enterprises. The bonds
are payable solely by revenues of the business
enterprise and general(liy are secured an
irrevocable letter of credit. At June 30, 1998, the
original amount of bonds issued prior to
June 30, 1996, was $757.465 million, and the

outstanding balance of bonds issued after
June 30, 1996, was $199.967 million.

The State Housing Finance and Development
Authority, an Enterprise Fund, issues certain
mortgage loan notes and housing revenue bonds for
developers to construct moderate to low income
housing projects. The bonds are pagable solely from
housing rental payments received by the developer
and generally are secured by an irrevocable letter of
credit or bond insurance. At June 30, 1998, the
outstanding  balance of bonds issued ~was
$185.354 million. . ]

The Educational Facilities Authority, reported as
art of the State’s primary government, issues bonds
o assist nonprofit educational institutions that do not

receive State a%proPrlathns in the acquisition,
construction an inancing of facilities for
educational programs. The bonds are payable solely
from, and secured by, a lease agreement on the
facilities between the” Authority and the institution.
When the bonds have been fully paid, the Authority
conveys the title for the facility to the institution. At
June 30, 1998, the outstanding balance of bonds
issued was $95.296 million.

g. Resources Authority Debt

In prior years, the Resources Authorit?'_ issued
bonds and used the proceeds to purchase obligations
of local governmental entities. The ™ local

overnmental entities used the proceeds received
rom the Au_tho_rlt?' to fund water and sewer projects.
Periodic principal and interest payments received
from the local governmental entities are used by the
Authority to refire its own debt. The debt issued by
the Authority is not a debt of the State and is not
recorded in the accompanying Combined Balance
Sheet. The Authority's outstanding debt at
June 30, 1998, was $43.920 million. Effective
October 1994, the General Assembly enacted
legislation that prohibits the Authority from issuing
bonds except to refund bonds previously issued.

Beginning in_fiscal year 1993-94, one local

overnmental entity has been unable to meet its
inancial _ obligation under the terms of a
$5.025 million revenue bond that was purchased by
the Authority. _ In June 1990, when the local
overnmental entity issued its debt, it estimated that

e related sewer project would be completed and
operational bf\f, calendar year 1992. ° Revenue
generated by the sewer system is ;r)lledged for debt
retirement. ~ At June 30, 1998, the system was
partially operating and producing some revenue but
construction had not been completed. The State paid
a total of $1.307 million in the fiscal years 1993-94
through 1996-97, and $420 thousand in 1997-98 to
the Authority to offset the loss of revenues from the
delinquent local entity. The State has a%proprlate_d
$400 thousand in fiscal year 1998-99 to be used, if
needed, to offset the foss of revenues from the
delinquent local entity.

h. Commercial Paper Notes

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
resented component unit, has recorded a
241.650 million liability for Commercial Paper
Notes at its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997.
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The paper is issued for valid corporate purposes with
a term not to exceed 270 days. The Authority has a
$250.000 million revolving credit agreement to
support the issuance of commercial paper. There
were no borrowings under the agreement for the
Authority's fiscal %'ear ended December 31, 1997.
Effectivé January 16, 1998, the Authority executed a

revolving credit

new ) agreement for
$500.000 million.

i. Subsequent Events

Since June 30, 1998, the State’s primary
government has issued $75.000 million of "general
obligation_bonds and $381.975 million of revenue
bonds. Of the revenue bonds, $106.975 million
were_issued to refund prior bond issues. The Public
Service Au_thorlgl, a discretely. F_resented component
unit, has issued $243.980 million of commercial
?aper notes and $127.700 million in revenue bonds
o refund prior bond issues. The Ports Authority, a
discretely  presented component unit, has issued
$125.000 million of revenue bonds. The Connector
2000 Association, Inc., a discretely presented
component unit, has issued $200.178 million of
revenue bonds. . .

On July 28, 1998, the State’s Joint Bond Review
Committee _authorized  the  Transportation
Infrastructure Bank to issue up to $1.483 billion in
revenue and/or general obligation bonds. Issuance
of general obligation bonds, however, would require
tém a(ciidltlonal approval of the Budget and Control

oard.

During 1998, the General Assembly increased
the Stafe institution bond limitation to
$120.000 million.

NOTE 12: CHANGES IN GENERAL
LONG-TERM OBLIGA-
TIONS

Changes in general long-term obligations
Sexpresse in thousands) for the fiscal year ended
une 30, 1998, were:

Balances Balances
at July 1,1997 increases Decreases at June 30, 1998

Accounts payable
and accrued lia-

bilities.................. $ 2416 $ 2920 § (2969) $ 2,367
Intergovernmental

payables............. 21,850 — (13,175) 8,675
nsurance claims

incurred but not

reported.............. 3,376 — (611) 2,765
Notes payabie....... — 600 —_ 600
Generai obligation

bonds payable. ... 966,808 86,684 (101,915) 951,577
Capttal lease and

instaliment debt

obligations pay-

able.......oooeeenns 15,494 417 (8.055) 7,856
Compensated ab-

sences payable.. 166,740 91,040 (81,843) 175,937
Other liabilties....... 25,424 2,612 (7.871) 20,165

Totals...couurerennn $ 1,202,108 $ 184273 $ (216,439) § 1,169,942

The Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
the Insurance Claims Incurred but not Reported, and
$5.95 million of the Other Liabilities consist of
claims and judgments payable. The majority of
Other Liabilities consists of claims and judgments
Bayable and the National Guard Pension System Net

ension Obligation. The increase of $86.684 million
for General “Obligation Bonds  Payable includes
$830 thousand in accretion of interest on capital
appreciation (deep-discount) bonds.

NOTE 13: INTERFUND
BALANCES

a. Interfund Assets and Liabilities Within the
Primary Government

Interfund assets and liabilities &expr.essed in
thousands) for each individual fund within the
primary government at June 30, 1998, were:

89



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

Interfund Interfund

Advances Advances

Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To Receivables  Payables To From
General
General FUNd...............coooeviiiiiceere s $ 55028 § 52588 § 4070 $ 5352 § 9623 §$ 12,189
Less: elimnations.............ccocooiieiiniiincc (35,305) (35,305) (2,100) (2,100) — —
Adjusted General Fund 19,723 17,283 1,970 3,252 9,623 12,189
Special Revenue
Departmental General Operating Fund....................... 14,116 54.935 155 552 — 264
Education improvement Act Fund................cccceees 4,337 1,994 400 100 — —_
Children's Education Endow ment Fund...................... —_ 7 —_ — — —
Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund.. 678 70 — — — —
Waste Management Fund............ccccooiiicciennne. 1,239 398 — — — —
Department of Transportation Special Revenue
FUN....ooiiii et 45,587 5,498 1,358 — 4,867 —
Local Government Infrastructure Fund...................... 4,145 302 200 —_ 400 —
Accommodations and Local Option Sales Tax Fund.. 38 68 —_ —_ — —
Energy Settlement Fund...........c..ocoooo v — 13 — —_ —_ —_
Omnibus Crime Fund.............ccooeviiiieieeiece e 42 425 — — — —
Medicaid Bxpansion Fund................cccceccnivniiiinnene — 23 — — — —
Other Special Revenue Funds..............ccococvrnirineen. 1,372 560 61 70 200 —
Less: eliminations. ... (26,847) (26,847) (400) (400) — —
Adjusted Special Revenue Funds............c.cu.... 44 707 37,446 1,774 322 5,467 264
Capital Projects
Capttal Projects Fund.............ccccoovneinincncicecce, 1,120 4,194 — — — —
Less: eliminations (283) (283) — — — —
Adjusted Capital Projects Fund............cccevnnen. 837 3,911 — —_ — —
Enterprise
Housing AUthOrity...........cc.oovierrrii e — 14 — — — —_
Education Assistance Authority............ccccooooooe — 269 — — — -
Second Injury Fund............ocooiii — 157 — —_ — —
Patriots Point Development Authority...........c.ccocee... —_ 209 — — — —
Other Enterprise FUNAS.......c.ocoooiiiiiiii e, — 489 —_ 201 — 14,416
Enterprise Funds — 1,138 — 201 - 14,416
Internal Service
Insurance Reserve Fund...............ccooiiiiiiicicne. 928 17 3,881 —_ 30,636 —
Health and Disability Insurance Fund.......................... 13,858 111 — — — j—
State Accident Fund...............cccoooiiiniiiiin e 2,049 42 — —_ — —
General Services Fund...........ccccimrmnnenniinncccns 4,946 620 — 2,150 — 17,910
Central Supplies and Equipment Fund........................ 1,024 79 — 1,000 — —
Motor Pool FuNd.........ccooiiieni e 1,709 98 —_ — — —
Pension Administration Fund..................cccccovnin 37 403 — — — —
Prison Industries Fund.............. 1,856 224 — — — —
Other Internal Service Funds... 79 645 2,824 2,825 15,002 14,445
Less: eliminations...........c..cceereiecieiieiriineeece e (2,239) (2,239) (4,327) (4,327) (24,181) (24,181)
Adjusted Internal Service Funds....................... 24,247 — 2,378 1,648 21,457 8,174
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Interfund Interfund Advances Advances
Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To Receivables  Payables To From
Trust and Agency
Expendable Trust:
Unemployment Commpensation Benefits Fund............. $ 7 9% 167 § — $ — $ — $ —_
Pension Trust:
South Carolina Retirement System............ccoceeeeea 13,695 14,262 — — — —
Police Officers' Retirement System 3,217 473 — — — —
General Assenbly Retirement System.................... — 58 — — — —
Judges' and Solicitors' Retirerment System................ 71 —_ — — — —
Agency Funds:
Federal Interfund Activity Fund..........c.c.ooooeiiiia 5 136 — — —_ —_—
Payroll Clearing Fund 43,982 9,432 — 5 — —
Other Agency Funds 5,242 85,605 — — — —
Less: elmnations.............ccooeveeviimieniiiniciceeneins (56,443) (56,443) — — — —
Adjusted Trust and Agency Funds................... 9,776 53,690 — 5 — —
Higher Education
Unrestricted Current FUNS..........occoveeereeeieniieneecen. 13,624 6,992 2,101 2,101 — —
Restricted Current FUNAS.............coccoeeveveeenniniiienns 7,078 173 — — —_— —
Endow ment and Similar Funds...........c.ccoveenena — — —_— — 855 —
Unexpended Plant Funds 545 — — — —_ 510
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds............................ — — — — 510 —
Investment in Plant Funds.............coovnenininnnnns — —_ —_ 694 - 34,237
Agency Funds 96 — - — — —
Foundations and Institutes..............cccccecovnvnnnnn — — — — 31,678 —
Less: eliminations...........cocccoccruvenomniniiiniicenmeeces (110) (110) (2,101) (2,101) (33,043) (33,043)
Adjusted Higher Education Funds.................... 21,233 7,055 — 694 — 1,704
Totals-Primary Government.........ccooevnuruemee. $ 120,523 $ 120,523 §$ 6,122 $ 6122 $ 36547 $ 36,747
b. Inequality of Due from Component Units and Infrastructure Fund’s fiscal year ends June 30. The
Due To Primary Government })ull\lfési%ré g (l)gan Public Railways’ $200 thousand

aﬁ'ment was not reflected in its
Due F C Uni $3.800 milli Advances From Other Funds at December 31, 1997,
ue From Component Units was 55.600 million, but that payment reduced the Local Government

but there was no corresponding Due To Primary Infrastructure Fund’s Advances To Other Funds as
Government. This situation arose because the Public of June 30, 1998.

Service Authority, a discretely presented comgonent
unit, reports using a fiscal year ending December 31.

t June 30, 1998, the Authority owed the General
Fund its semi-annual cash distribution, which is

based primarily on operating cash flows and d. Inequality of Transfers From Component

mandatory reserve requirements. Units and Transfers To Primary
Government
c. Inequality of Advances To and Advances From

Other Funds Transfers  From Component Units exceed
Transfers To Primary Government by $142 thousand
Advances From Other Funds exceed Advances because the Public ‘Service Authority, a discretely
To Other Funds by $200 thousand because of an presented component unit, reports using a fiscal year
interfund loan from the Local Government ending December 31._The $142 thousand difference
Infrastructure Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, to the represents Transfers From Component Units to the
Division of Public Rai wa)i§ (reported as part of Generzbl Fund lfor t%e fﬂscal ear P@nded
Other Enterprise Funds). The Division of Public June 30, 1998f €83 ransters . 10 rimary
Railways reports using a fiscal year ending Government from the Public Service Authority for

December 31, while the Local “Government its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997.

—
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e. Inequality of Residual Equity Transfers In and
Out

_ Residual Equity Transfers Out of $680 thousand
in the Capital Projects Fund were recorded as
additions_to Contributed Capital in the Enterprise
Funds. These balances resulted from transfers of
Capital Improvement Bond proceeds.

NOTE 14: RESERVATIONS AND
DESIGNATIONS OF
FUND EQUITY

Reserved components of fund equity represent
amounts legally segregated and amounts that cannot
be appropriated. Designated portions of unreserved
fund equity reflect tentative plans for future use of
available financial resources. o

The unreserved component of fund equity is
computed as total fund equity less reserved amounts.

Although the total fund balance in the General Fund
was positive at June 30, 1998, the unreserved
component was negative because the reserve
requirements exceeded total fund balance.

a. Primary Government—Reserved Retained
Earnings

At June 30, 1998, the $240.066 million balance
of Reserved Retained Earnings in the primary
ﬁove_rnment's Enterprise Funds consisted entirely of

etained Earnings Reserved for Debt Requireménts.
The reservations are required by bond indentures
and other financing agreements.

b. Primary Government—Reserved and
Designated Fund Balances
At June 30, 1998, the following amounts of fund

balance (expressed in thousands) were reserved or
designated:

General

Special Trust and Higher
Revenue Agency Education

Fund balances reserved for:

Pension and other benefits ............ $ —
External investment pool

participants............cccoccciiiicnnnn. —
Restricted fund balance .................. —
Federal government grants

refundable ...........c.oco i —
General fund reserve ....................... 130,380
INVENTOTIES oo 14,741
Advances to other funds .................. 9,623
Appropriations to be carried

forward .......ccooveiieeeee 131,227
Endowment and similar funds ....... —
Long-term loans and notes

receivable ..., 772
Debtrequirements........................... —
School building aid ............cccccoce... 202
Encumbrances .......cocoooveveeeeennn, —
Other special purposes .................. —

$ — $ 19140308 —

— 772,663 —
—_ — 186,027

— — 45,267
21,495 — —
5,467 — —

_ 1,466 54,334

161,190 66 —
— — 12,219
16,275 — —
— — 2,623
— — 5,897

Total reserved fund
balances........cccniiiceniisccniinnnnns $ 286,945

$ 204,427 $ 19914503 $ 306,367
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Special Capital Higher
Revenue Projects Education
Unreserved fund baiances
designated for:
Future years' expenditures.......... $ 102,193 § — $ 1.870
Capital expenditures ................. 46,605 64,290 -
Loan funds................. . — — 645
Scholarships... 16,530 — —
Endowment an — — 48,775
Piant funds........... . — — 86,469
Special purposes ..............cocooeees — — 13,688
Total unreserved, desig-
nated fund balances.............. $ 165328 $ 64,290 $ 149,447

The  following subsections contain further
descriptive information regarding the above reserved
and designated components of fund balance.

Reserved for Pension and Other Benefits

This account includes $18.363 billion reserved
for pension, group life, and accidental death benefits.
It also includes $777.527 million of reserves to
recognize the restricted nature of the fund balances
in the Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund.

Reserved for External Investment Pool
Participants

Amounts reserved for external investment pool
{)artlclpants consist of public monies deposited with
he State Treasurer by local governmental units and
other political subdivision of the State. The State
Treasurer invests these monies on the participants’
behalf in an investment portfolio.

Reserves in the Higher Education Funds

Outside sources may restrict certain Higher
Education Funds' resources. The financial
statements present restricted fund balances as
reserves. hese reserves include reserves for
endowments and other higher education restricted
funds to be used for special purposes. )

Grant monies received from the United States
government under certain student loan programs are
recorded as Reserved for Federal Government
Grants Refundable. The purpose of this reserve is to
indicate, that these amounts can neither be
appropriated nor expended and to reflect the State's
ongoing responsibility to lend the resources only in
accordance with applicable Federal program
guidelines.

General Fund Reserve

The South Carolina Constitution requires that
the State maintain a reserve to prevent deficits in the
Buc(iigetary General Fund. he reserve is fully
funded whenever it equals three percent of the
Budgetary General Fund's revenue (budgetary basis)
of the latest completed fiscal year.

If the State withdraws funds from the reserve to
cover a year-end deficit, it must replace the funds
within three years. The Constitution requires that at

least one percent of the Budgetary General Fund
revenue (budgetary basis) of the latest completed
fiscal year, if so much is ne_cessaq, be restored each
year following the deficit until full funding is
achieved.

At June 30, 1997, the Reserve was fully funded
at $130.380 million. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, the  Reserve  remained  at

130.380 million. At June 30, 1998, the reserve was

7.270 million below the full-funding amount of

137.650 million. On September 1, 1998, however

7.270 million of budgetary surplus from 1997-98
was_added to the reserve to bring its balance to
$137.650 million.

Reserved for Inventories

Governmental Funds reserve a portion of fund
balance equal to year-end inventory balances to
indicate that the " funds are not "available for
appropriation.

Reserved for Advances to Other Funds and
Reserved for Long-Term Loans and Notes
Receivable

Advances to Other Funds, Long-Term Loans,
and Notes Receivable are assets that do not represent
expendable available resources. The Governmental
Funds, therefore, reserve a corresponding portion of
fund balance.

Reserved for Appropriations to be Carried
Forward

The General Fund does not use encumbrance
accounting. The Reserve for Appropriations to be
Carried Forward, however, is used in situations
where the General Assembly has authorized
Budgetary General Fund ap}l)roprlatlons to be carried
forward to the next fiscal year. For additional
information, see Note 2c.

Reserved for Endowment and Similar Funds

This reserve recognizes restrictions placed on
donated resources. In the Fiduciary Fund Types, the
reserve represents amounts donatéd to Stafe-owned
secondary schools and to certain other State
departments.

Reserved for Debt Requirements

The amounts recorded as Reserved for Debt
Requirements in the Higher Education Funds are
reservations required by financing agreements and
bond indentures of discretely presenfed component
units of the Medical University of South Carolina.

Reserved for School Building Aid

Amounts in the General Fund and in the
Education_ Improvement Act Fund, a Special
Revenue Fund, are reserved if committed to State
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school districts to build school buildings or to retire
debt on such buildings. Such amounts are not
available for appropriation.

Reserved for Encumbrances

Although not required bK State law, some
technical colleges reported in the Higher Education
Funds use encumbrance accounting. These
institutions also record a reserve for encumbrances.

Reserved for Other Special Purposes

Amounts Reserved for Other Special Purposes
in the Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds
consist of resources that are reserved for various
operatmg purposes specific to certain individual
higher education institutions.

Designated for Future Years’ Expenditures

Amounts = Designated for Future Years'
Expenditures in the Special Revenue Funds relate to
the Department of Transportation’s expenditures for
future highway repair and maintenance. In the
Higher Education Funds the designations were
reported by discretely presented component units of
the Medical University of South Carolina for future
use.

Designated for Capital Expenditures

The amount reported in the Special Revenue
Funds represents amounts_ that the Department of
Transportation ~ designated for replacement of
structurally deficient _bridges  and new_ road
construction.  State Highway Bonds will finance
these projects. The State reports the entire fund
balance in the Capital Projects Fund as Designated
for Capital Expenditures.

Designated for Loan Funds

_ Amounts Designated for, Loan Funds in the
Higher Education Funds consist of resources which
are designated for loans to_students, faculty, or staff
of higher education institutions.

Designated for Scholarships

Of the amount reported as Designated for
Scholarships in the Special Revenue Funds,
$16.375 million is to be used for the Teacher Loan
Program. The program makes loans to students to
attract talented individuals to teach in areas of
critical need. For each year the borrower teaches in
a critical need area, 20% to 33% of the loan is
canceled. If the borrower does not teach, however,
the loan must be repaid. The remaining
$155 thousand reported. _as  Designated  for
Scholarships in the Special Revenue Funds is bein
accumulated to establish endowments at public an
private colleges and universities. The purpose of

these endowments is to provide environmental
scholarships.

Designated for Endowment and Similar Funds

The Designated for Endowment and Similar
Funds account includes resources that the State's
higher education institutions intend to use in a
manner similar to endowments in future years.

Designated for Plant Funds

_ Amounts Designated for Plant Funds in the
Higher Education™ Funds consist of resources
designated to finance the acquisition, construction
improvement, renewal, or replacement of phys1c_ai
properties, and to_pay debt service and Tetire
indebtedness on institutional properties.

Designated for Special Purposes

_ Amounts Designated for Special Purposes in the
Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds
consist of resources that are designated for various
operatmg purposes specific to certain individual

u

higher education institutions.
NOTE 15: RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

These financial statements exclude certain
related foundations and other organizations. (See
also Note 1a, Scope of Reporting Entity.)

. The most significant of these ~organizations
include: the University of South™ Carolina
Development Foundation; the University of South
Carolina Educational Foundation; the University of
South Carolina Business Partnership Foundation; the
South Carolina Universities Research and Education
Foundation; the South Carolina Research Institute;
the Greater University of South Carolina_Alumni
Association; the Carolina Piedmont
Foundation, Inc.; the Lancaster County Educational
Foundation, Inc.;  the  Clemson ~ _ University
Foundation; the Clemson University Real Estate
Foundation, the Clemson University Research
Foundation; the Clemson Advancement Foundation;
the Clemson University Continuing Education and
Conference Complex”™ Corporation; the Health
Sciences Foundation of the Medical University of
South  Carolina; the Coastal  Educational
Foundation, Inc., of Coastal Carolina University; the
College of Charleston Foundation; the Winthrop
University _Foundation; the Francis Marion
University Foundation; the Citadel Development
Foundation; the Citadel Alumni Association; the
Citadel's Brigadier Foundation; South Carolina State
University Educational Foundation; the S.T.A.T.E.
Club of South Carolina State University; Greenville
Technical Foundation, Inc.; Tri-Counfy Technical
College . Foundation; York Technical College
Foundation, Inc.; the South Carolina Student Loan
Corporation; the Educational Television Endowment
of South Carolina, Inc.; the South Carolina State
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Museum Foundation; EDI Ventures, Inc.; the South
Carolina Research Authority; and the Carolina
Capital Investment Corporation.

. Those organizations above that are related to
hlsgher education _ report total assets of
$560.483 million. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, the State” entered into various
transactions with these organizations. Approximate
amounts within the State's Higher Education Funds
that represented transactions with these related
arties include:  receivable from foundations—
3.723 million; donations of cash and other assets
from foundations—$27.668 million; expenditures
rental  of foundation-owne property
3.650 million; and reimbursements to the State for
expenses/expenditures the State incurred on behalf
of foundations—$9.331 million. ] )

The South Carolina Education _Assistance

Authority (EAA), an Enterprise Fund, has
designated the South Carolina Student Loan
foRoratlon (SLC) as the entity to administer the
EAA student loan program. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998, "EAA entered into various
transactions_with SLC.  Approximate amounts
within the State's Enterprise Funds that represent
these transactions include: accounts receivable from
SLC-$6.129 million; notes receivable from SLC-
327.340 million; program revenue from SLC-
39.191 million; accounts payable to SLC-
5.717 million; and reimbursements to SCL for
administrative costs—$5.469 million.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the
Educational Television Endowment of South
Carolina, Inc., disbursed $8.879 million on behalf of
the State for programs, development, advertising,
and other costs. In addition, during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1995, the State entered into a capital
lease with the Endowment for a building valued at
$6.450 million. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, the State provided funds to retire the
remaining $5.525 million capital lease liability. No
capital lease oblliatlon remains at June 30, 1998.

. The Jobs—Economi¢c Development. Author-
ity JEDA), an Enterprise Fund, maintains  a
management and administrative agreement with
Carolma Capital Investment Corporation (CCIC).

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, JEDA
paid CCIC $249thousand for management and
administrative expenses and incurred payables to
CCIC of $41 thousand.

NOTE 16: SEGMENT INFORMA-
TION

a. Enterprise Funds

The State groups its Enterprise Funds into the
following segments: the State Housing Finance and
Development Authority (Housing Authority), the
South Carolina Education Assistance Authority, the
Jobs—Economic Development Authority, and the
Patients' Compensation Fund. In addition, the
Patriots Point Development Authority, the Second
Injury Fund, and Other Enterprise Funds are
grouped into an Other segment. )

'he Housing Authority provides low-cost
housing to the State's citizens by issuing bonds/notes
and by administering Federal contracts and grants.
The South Carolina Education Assistance Authority
issues revenue bonds for the purpose of making
student_loans. The Jobs—Economic Development
Authority acts with others in the promotion of
development, especially in areas of the State with

reatest need. The Aufhority is supported primarily
Cy interest on project loans. The Patients

ompensation Fund provides for the lpayment of that
portion of any medical malpractice claim, settlement
or judgment against a health care provider that is in
excess of $100 thousand per incident or in excess of
$300 thousand in the aggre%te for one year. All
providers licensed in South Carolina_are eligible to
participate in the Fund upon remitting the annual
assessment fees in amounts determined by the
governing board of the Fund. )

Financial information (expressed in thousands
for these segments for the fiscal year ende
June 30, 1998, follows:
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Education Jobs—Economic Patients’
Housing Assistance Development Compen-
Authority Authority Authority sation Other Totals
Operating revenues..........c.ccceoeverveenenne $ 52825 $§ 44708 § 2921 $ 15226 $ 29560 $ 145240
Depreciation and amortization
EXPENSE.....eeeeieiiiireeieeecene e s 292 140 — 3 949 1,384
Operating income (10SS)..........cc.ccccveeene 12,296 16,041 (252) (7,435) 528 21,178
Federal revenue..............ccocoeeviinineenne 22,723 — — — — 22,723
Operating transfers in...............c..cceeveeees — — 125 — — 125
Extraordinary 108s........ccccoooveernieniniinieennee (277) — — — — 277}
Net income (10SS)..........cccceecveiiiiiiiicnniens 12,019 15,888 (158) (7,435) 870 21,184
Current capital contributions and
transfers, net...........ccoeerviiiiinicis — — 260 — 3,149 3,409
Property, plant, and equipment:
Additions..........ccccoociiiii 232 - —_ 2 3,759 3,993
Retirements...........cccocoeviiiininnn (462) — — — (2,196) (2,658)
Net working capital. 116,492 182,866 10,815 15,806 17,334 343,313
Total @assets.........cc..ccoviciiniiiieincnnn 654,060 483,813 16,686 20,467 120,072 1,295,098
Bonds and other long-term liabilities
payable from operating revenues 452,841 361,970 176 25,249 15,991 856,227
Total fund equity (deficit).............cccocn.e. 161,749 107,443 15,735 (9,435) 43,297 318,789
b. Discretely Presented Component Units
Public State
Service Ports
Authority Authority Other Totals
. The primary segments among the State's m@%&g‘ﬁ;&i};ﬁ& """""" S TETEM S 0SS 8B S Bmow
discretely presented component units are the Public EXPENSE. .. 11,004 15773 43 126850
Service ‘Authority and the State Ports Authority. Operating income (loss) 104617 18826  (1518) 211925
The remaining entities are reported within an Other ey oy govemment.... e g
segment. : - g
®The” Public Service Authority sells electric oo capia contiions nd e
pontvlfr _anccil w{lolesalz wa_tetr._ Sth? l%ta%)e Portcsl p'n;m::nfey'sa'ﬂ";};a;&;ﬁ;{{» ......... - @2 - (@32)
utnort evelops and maintains Stat€¢ naroors an v ) ’
sea ortstyand han%les the commerce through these AQAIONS e e e we (oes0m
ports., L. . . Net working capital... (112,921) (93) 460  (112.554)
Financial information (expressed in thousand53 Total @SSELS........cocrroeorr 3355148 381545 1820 3738513
for these segments for the fiscal year ende Bonds nd aharorglom abies
June 30, 1998, follows: 753!. fund equi(‘;‘.)?.“.I.r.‘?..4...4...“..:..'.'... 797130 303751 w2 1101873
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The Public Service Authority's sale of electric
power to two major customers_ constitutes a
concentration of credit risk. For its fiscal year ended
December 31, 1997, the Authority's Revenue and

Accounts Receivable (expressed in thousands)
attributable to those customers were:

% of Total % of Totai
Operating Accounts Accounts
Customer Revenue Revenue Receivable Receivable
Central Electric Power
Cooperative, Inc....... $ 328,000 45.07% $ 31,766 44.40%
Alumax of South
Carolina, Inc............. 85,000 11.68% 7,187 10.05%

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, two
customers” accounted " for approximately 10% and
12% of the State Ports Authority’s revenues.

NOTE 17:DEFICIT RETAINED
EARNINGS

The Patients' Compensation Fund, reported in
the Enterprise Funds, had a deficit Retained
Earnings balance of $9.435 million at June 30, 1998.
This deficit resulted from losses that the Fund has
experienced over the last three years. The Fund has
increased premiums in recent years, and it increased
them significantly again in Jurie 1998. The Fund also
imposed a deficif assessment on the members during
April 1998, ) .

The Patriots Point Development Authority,
re?o_rted in the Enterprise Funds, had a deficit
retained earnings balance of $1.700 million at
June 30, 1998. This deficit resulted primarily from
an interrupted development project and the related
bankruptcy proceedings in the past. The interrupted
project left the Authority with an unfinished hotel
and marina. During” the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, the Authority entered into a lease
with a private compa% that {)lan_s to develop the
unfinished assets. = The Authority expects _that
revenues. from this agreement” and private
contributions, eventually will eliminate the deficit
retained earnings. )

At June 30, 1998, the Savannah Lakes Regional
Loan Fund, a discretely presented component unit
reported a deficit refained earnings balance o
$589 thousand.  This deficit resulted from the
default of a loan that is related to the Lake Russell
development project. The Fund hopes to eliminate
this_deficit when a developer is found to take over
the Lake Russell project.

NOTE 18: INSURANCE
ACTIVITIES

a. Insurance Reserve Fund

The State generally does not purchase
commercial insurance for the risks of losses for
property damage, including theft of, damage to, and

destruction of assets; automobile liabililiy; tort
liability; and medical professional liability. Instead,
State management believes it is more economical to
manage its risks internally and set aside assets for
claim™ settlement in its Insurance Reserve Fund
(IRF), an Internal Service Fund. The IRF services
claims for risk of loss to which the State is exposed,
including the following: property insurance on
overnment owned buildings, the contents of such
uildings, equipment, and automobiles; automabile
liability insurance on government owned vehicles
and school buses; tort liability insurance for
government premises and operations; and medical
rofessional liability for hospitals. Although the
tate is the predominant participant in the IRF,
county and municipal governments, school districts
and | special purpose political subdivisions _also
participate. The IRF allocates the cost of providing
claims servicing and claims payment by chargin
each _ participant an actuarially determine
"premium.” e .

The IRF reports liabilities when it is_probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated
and unallocated claims adjustment expenditures
have been included in the calculation of the un{)ald
claims liability, The liability is reported net of
receivables for  salvage. ~ subrogation, and
reinsurance.  The unpaid claims  liability of
$146.778 million at June 30, 1998, includes a
provision for claims in the process of review and for
claims incurred but not refported. The liability for
claims in_the Frocess of review is included in
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the
liability for™ Insurance Claims Incurred But Not
Reported is reported separately on the face of the
financial statements. ~ The liability for claims
incurred but not reported is an actuarial estimate
based on the most current historical claims
experience of previous payments, changes in number
of members and participants, inflation, and award
trends. This {)rocess does not necessarily result in an
exact amount. Estimates of liabilities for incurred
claims are continually reviewed and revised as
changes occur. Revisions are reflected in the current
year's income._ ) L

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

1997 $ 153,040 § 51,370 $ (47,104) $ 157,306
1998 157,306 23,970 (34,498) 146,778

The IRF purchases insurance to cover risks
where it has limited expertise (aircraft insurance and
ocean marine insurance). o )

The IRF purchases reinsurance to limit losses in
the areas of property, boiler and machinery
automobile liability, ‘and medical professiona
liability. Reinsurance for catastrophic losses in the
area o proi)e insurance is purchased for losses
above ~ $2.000 million  per  location  and
$10.000 million per occurrence. For medical
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professional liability insurance, reinsurance _for
catastrophic losses is acquired for losses exceeding
$250 thousand per occurrence. Reinsurance permits
Famal recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the
RF, as direct insurer of the risks, remains primarily
liable. The unpaid claims liabilities were reduced bal
$5.000 million and $4.700 million as of June 30,
1998, and 1997, res_pectlvelgl, for amounts relating to
unpaid claims estimated fo be recoverable from
reinsurers.

b. Health and Disability Insurance Fund

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund, an
Internal Service Fund, was éstablished to provide
health and dental insurance coverage for ell%llble
employees and retirees of State agencies and school
districts and group life and long-term disability
insurance coverage to eligible active State and
public _school employees. . The _State, the

redominant participant, retains the risk (_)f_ loss.

nder the health insurance program, participants
elect coverage throu%h either a _health maintenance
organization or_the State’s self-insured plan. All
dental, grouﬁ life, and lor;g-term dlsabllltg' coverage
is through the State’s self-insured plan. State funds
and payroll deductions Pay health and dental
premiums for eligible State and public school
employees. Agencies and school districts pay the
employer share of premiums for retirees, and refirees
directly pay their own share of premiums. Agencies
and school districts .{)_ay the premiums for group life
and long term disability. =

The Health and’ Disability Insurance Fund
establishes claims liabilities when information prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates
that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at
the date of the financial statements and the amount
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated
and unallocated claims adjustment expenditures
have been included in the calculation of the unpaid
claims liability. The unpaid claims liability of
$101.644 million at June 30, 1998, includes a
provision for claims in the process of review and for
claims incurred but not reported. The liability for
claims in_the process of review is included in
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the
liability for” Insurance Claims Incurred But Not
Reported is reported separately on the face of the
financial statements. ~ The ’liability for claims
incurred but not reported is estimafed actuarially
based on the most current historical claims
experience of previous payments, changes in number
of members and participants, inflation, award trends,
and estimates of health care trend changes (cost,
utilization, and intensity of services). This process
does not necessarily result in an exact amount.
Estimates of liabilities for incurred claims are
continually reviewed and revised as changes occur.
Revisions are reflected in the current year's income.

~ Claim costs for group life and long-term
disability coverage are actuarially calculated using
the one-year term cost method; the cost of coverage
is the present value of all benefit payments that will
be made on expected claims incurred during the year
following_the valuation date. Claim liabilities are
equal to the present value, as of the valuation date,

of all future Payments to be made for disabilities and
deaths up to "that date. Actuarial assumptions
include an interest rate of 5.50% for 1998 and 1997,
compounded annually. Of the total claims liability
reported for the Health and Disability Insurance
Fund at June 30, 1998, $24.626 million relates to
group life and long-term disability insurance
coverage. Claims liabilities for health and dental
1nslurance coverage are not discounted to present
value.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30 Liability Estimates Payments  Year-End

1997 $ 88,065 $ 513,584 $ (504,089) $ 97,560
1998 97,560 553,566 (549,482) 101,644

c. State Accident Fund

State law established the State Accident
Fund (the Fund), an Internal Service Fund, to
rovide workers' compensation insurance coverage
o State entities. Although the State is the Fund's
predominant _participant, counties, municipalities,
and other political subdivisions of the State may also
elect to participate. The State assumes the full risk
for workers' compensation claims.

The Fund investigates, adjusts, and pays
workers' compensation claims as awarded by the
Workers' Compensation Commission for job-related
accidental injury, disease, or death to covered
individuals. The Fund annually bills participating
entities for estimated premiums based on the entity’s
estimated payroll. ~After the policy period ends,
policyholders submit the details of the actual salaries
paid.” The Fund then adjusts the premium using the
actual payroll data and a rating modifier based on
claims experience. . .

_The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have
been reported but not settled, and of claims that have
been incurred but not reported. The claims liabilities
include specific incremental claims adjustment
expenses but not administrative expenses. Estimated
amounts of salvage and subrogation and reinsurance
recoverable, if any, on both settled and unsettled
claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid
claims to the  extent the,%{ can be reasonably
estimated. Claims liabilities are recomputed
perl_od_lcall%' using a variety of actuarial and
statistical techniques to produce current estimates.
Adjustments to claims expenditures are charged or
credited to_expense in the period in which they are
made. At June 30, 1998, the claims liability for the
Fund was $51.326 million. The liability for claims
reported but not yet paid is included in Accounts
Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the liability
for Insurance Claims Incurred But Not Reported is
reported separately on the face of the financial
statements. Because actual claims costs depend on
such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal
doctrines, and damage awards, computation of the
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claims liability does not necessarily result in an
exact amount. . L

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year  Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

1997 § 59,791 $ 25563 $§ (26,911) $§ 58,443
1998 58,443 25,227 (32,344) 51,326

The Fund has entered into a reinsurance
agreement, to reduce its exposure to catastrophic
losses on insured events. Losses are covered up to
$45.000 million per event and $2.000 million per
individual, with the Fund retaining the risk for the
first $5.000 million of loss, Reinsurance permits
Bartlal recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the

und, as direct insurer of the risks, remains
rimarily liable. There were no amounts estimated
o be recoverable from reinsurers at June 30, 1998,
or at June 30, 1997.

d. Patients’ Compensation Fund

The State’s Enterprise Funds include the South
Carolina | Medical Malpractice = Patients’
Compensation Fund (PCF). e PCF is accounted
for as an insurance enterprise because it is primarily
composed 0 non-governmental entities.
Accordlngly, the PCF follows the guidance of FASB
Statement ~60, “Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises.” )

State law created the PCF to pay that portion of
any medical malpractice claim, = settlement, or
judgment against a licensed heaith care provider
which exceeds $100 thousand per incident or
$300 thousand in the aggregate for one year. In the
event the PCF incurs a liability” exceeding
$100 thousand to any person under a single
occurrence, the PCF may not pay more than
$100 thousand per year until the claim has been paid
in_full. However, the Board of Governors of the
PCF may authorize payments in excess of
$100 thousand per year so as to avoid payment of
interest. . .

Licensed health care_ providers_ include
?hyswlans and  surgeons, directors, officers and
rustees of hospitals, nurses, oral surgeons, dentists,
pharmacists, chiropractors, hospitals, nursing homes,
and any similar category of licensed health care
providers. All providers licensed in South Carolina
are eligible to participate upon remittance of the
annual assessment fees. ] L

The PCF actuarially establishes claims liabilities
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that
have been reported but not settled, and of claims that
have been incurred but not reported. At
June 30, 1998, the claims l;a_blll?' for the PCF was
$25.249 million. The liability for claims reported
but not settled is included in Accrued Liabilities
while the liability for Insurance Claims Incurred But
Not Reported is reported separately on the face of

the financial statements. The PCF does not incur
claim adjustment expenses because it provides only
excess liability coverage. The length of time for
which such “costs must be estimated varies
depending on the coverage involved. Because actual
claims costs depend on such complex factors as
medical technology, changes in doctrines of legal
liability, and damage awards, the process used in
comf)u‘gmg claims liabilities does not necessarily
result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are
recomputed annually using a variety of actuarial and
statistical techniqueés to produce current estimates
that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and
other economic and social factors. A provision for
inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims
costs is_implicit because reliance is placed both on
actual historical data that reflect past inflation and on
other factors that are considered to be appropriate
maodifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims
liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the
periods in which they are made.

e. Public Service Authority—A Discretely
Presented Component Unit

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit with a December 31 fiscal
¥ear-end, is exposed to various risks of loss related
o torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; and errors and omissions. The Authority

urchases commercial insurance to cover these risks.

ettled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial 1nsurance _coverage 1n.anfy of
the past three years. Policies are subject to
deductibles  rangin from _ $1 thousand to
approximately $850 thousand with the exception of
named storm losses which carry deductibles up to
$3.000 million. Also a $1.000million self-insured
layer exists between the Authority’s primary and
excess liability policies. o

The Authority self-insures its_risks related to
auto, dental, and énvironmental incidents that do not
arise out of an insured event. Automotive exposure
is up to $2.000 million per incident. Risk exposure
for the dental plan is limited by plan provisions.
There have not been any third-party claims for
environmental damages for 1996 or 1997. .

The State reports all of the Authority’s risk
management activities within the Public "Service
Authority’s accounts, Claims expenditures and
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated.

. At December 31, 1997, the amount of these
liabilities , was $1.293 miflion. Changes in the
reported liability in each of the gast two years were

as follows (expressed in thousands):
Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of  Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
December 31 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End
1996 $ 1634 § 984 $ (969) $ 1,649
1997 1,649 402 (758) 1,293
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NOTE 19: JOINT VENTURES AND
JOINT OPERATION

a. Joint Ventures

In May 1997, the Public Service Authority (the
Authority), a discretely presented component unit,
along with two unrelated publicly owned, electric
utilities formed a wholesale power marketing i!o_mt
venture (the Venture). The Authority has a one-third
ownership interest, which it records as an equity
investment, The Venture provides services to ifs
three member organizations, as well as to certain
non-member organizations, and allocates transaction
savings and operatm% expenses to its member
organizations pursuant to a Settlement Agreement,

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997
the Authority made net capital contributions o

3.467 million to the Venture and recognized
3.322 million in reductions to power costs, partially
offset by $2.558 million in equity losses, primarily
attributable to the Venture’s start-ug activities.
Regulatory accounting practices allow the Authority
to decrease or increase power costs for rate-making
?ur[{})ses rather than record net income or loss from
he Venture’s activities. ) ) .

In addition, the Authority provides certain
guarantees and has pledged certain collateral to
support the Venture's transactions. The Authority’s
Board of Directors has approved the use ~of
$10.000 million to_ su ;iJort he Venture’s trading
activities.  Of this E 0.000 million_ pledge, the
Authority has provided a $5.000 million guarantee
to securé Venture trade obligations and has pledged
$2.000 million to secure a letter of credit agreement
which the Venture had entered into with a bank as o
December 31, 1997. )

Interested parties may obtain a copy of the
Venture's financial statements by writing to:

The Energy Authority
76 South Laura Street
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

In May 1998, a blended com;l)_onent unit of the
Medical University of South Carolina entered into a
joint venture with several ghysmans_ and medical

ractices by purchasing a 35 percent interest in the
Eqwcountry Medical Group, LLC. The State’s
Higher Education Funds record the investment using
the equity method. At June 30, 1998, the State’s
Higher Education Funds had invested $3.675 million
in the 1{omt venture, The Lowcountry Medical
Group, LLC, recorded no income for the period from
its inception in May 1998 through June 30, 1998,
and consequently did not issue financial statements
for that period.

b. Joint Operation

The Summer Nuclear Station is a A'oint operation
owned by the Public Service Authority (the
Authorlt){), a discretely presented component unit
and regulated electric utility, and the South Carolina

Electric and Gas Company (SCE&G), a non-
governmental electric utility. ” The Authority owns
an undivided one-third interest in the Station while
SCE&G owns an undivided two-thirds interest.
SCE&G is solely responsible for the Station's
design, construction, management, _budgeting
operation, maintenance, and decommissioning; and
the Authority is obligated to pay its ownership share
of all costs relating thereto. The Authority receives
one-third of the nef electricity generated. )
In accordance  with “regulatory accountin
Erac_tlces, the Authority reported Propérty, Plant, an
uipment of $505.000 million and expenses of
$45.712 million which represent its interest in_this

joint operation, ~The Authority has financed its

interest in the joint operation with long-term debt.
The Summer Nuclear Station is not a separate legal
entity and does not prepare separate financial
statements. ] ]

Nuclear fuel costs_are _bemg amortized based on
energy expended, which includes a component for
estimated disposal costs of spent nuclear fuel. This
amortization is included in_ fuel expense and is
recovered through the Authorltty’s rates. .

.SCE&G has on-site spent fuel storage capability
until at least 2009 and expects to be able to expand
its storage capacity to accommodate the spent fuel
output for the life of the plant. In addition, there is
sufficient_on-site storage capacity over the life of
Summer Nuclear Station to permit storage of the
entire reactor core in the event that complete
unloading should become desirable or necessary for
any reason. o

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) has
published final regulations on decommissioning of
nuclear facilities.. These regulations require a
licensee of a nuclear reactor to provide minimum
financial assurance of its ability to decommission its
nuclear facilities. A site-specific decommissionin
study completed in 1991 estimated the Authority's
share of decommissioning costs for the Summer
Nuclear Station as $76.266 million in 1990 dollars,
The Authority accrues its share of the estimated
decommissioning costs over the remaining life of the
facility, These costs are being recovered through the
Authority's rates. .

To ‘comply with the NRC regulations, the
Authority established an external trust fund and has
been making deposits into this fund since
September 1990. In addition, the Authorit
established an internal decommissioning account.
The Authority makes deposits into this fund in the
amount necessary to fund the difference between the
1991 site-specific study and the NRC's imposed
minimum _ requiremenf. = Based on current
decommissioning cost estimates developed by
SCE&G, these funds, which totaled $50.066 million
(a_d_Lustec’l to market) at December 31, 1997, alon
with future deposifs into both the external an
internal decommissioning accounts_and investment
earnings, are expected to provide sufficient funds for
the Authority's share of the estimated
decommissioning costs. ) )

The Price-Anderson Indemnification Act has
established the maximum liability for public claims
arising from any nuclear incident as $8.900 billion.
This amount would be covered by nuclear liability
insurance of approximately $200.000 million per
site, with potential retrospective assessments of up
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to $79.300 million per licensee for each nuclear
incident occurring at any reactor in the United States
(payable at a rate not to exceed $10.000 million per
incident per ear?. Based on its one-third interest in
the Summer Nuclear Station, the Authority would be
responsible for a maximum assessment of
26.400 million, not to exceed approximately
3.300 million per incident per year. This amount is
subject to further increases to reflect (i) inflation
(i)increases in the llcensmf for operation of
additional nuclear reactors, and (iii) any increase in
the amount of commercial liability insufance that the
Authority must maintain to comply with the NRC.

SCE&G and the AuthorltlzI maintain, with
American Nuclear Insurers (A I% and Nuclear
Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), $500.000 million
primary and_ $1.500 billion excess property and
decontamination insurance to cover the costs of
facility cleanup in the event of an accident. In
addition to the premiums paid on the excess policy,
SCE&G and the Authority also could be assessed a
retroactive premium, not to exceed five times the
annual premium, in the event of property damage to
any nuclear generating facility covered by NEIL.
Based on the currentf annual premium ‘and  the
Authority’s one-third interest, the Authority’s
maximum_ _ retroactive  premium  would “be
$2.500 million. _

The Authority does not purchase insurance for
any retroactive premium assessments, claims in
excess of stated coverage, or cost increases due to
the purchase of replacement power.

NOTE 20: CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS

a. Litigation

Among the unresolved lawsuits in which the
State was involved at June 30, 1998, were several
that challenge the legality of certain taxes. The
challenged revenues include license tax on video

aming machines and taxes on bingo operations.

nother suit challenges the legal;g' of the State’s
enforcement of a referendum provided by State law,
which_allows each county to ban video poker
operations. The plaintiffs allege that this resulted in
revenue losses for video poker operators in counties
where the referendum was passed. State losses in
these cases could have an adverse impact on future
revenues. While the State is uncertain as to the
ultimate outcome of any of these cases, it is
vigorously defending each lawsuit. In the event of
an_unfavorable outcome for these cases, the ultimate
liability is not expected to exceed $14.000 million.
This estimate does not include the impact on future
revenues. ) L

The State may incur a liability for attome()i's’
fees in the suit that challen%ed the single gender
education_policy at The Citadel. The issue of
attorney_fees is presently on appeal to the United
States "Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit.
Another case in which the State may incur a liability
revolves around a contractual agreement. The case
relates to the State’s decision not to renew for a
second year a contract to operate a juvenile

correctional facility for the State and not to gversee
the creation and operation of a_number of camp
¥ro rams. In the event of an unfavorable outcome
or these cases, the ultimate uninsured liability is not
expected to exceed $17.000 million.

. The South Carolina Retirement Systems are
involved in a lawsuit filed by four retired members,
The plaintiffs challenge the” Systems' treatment of
unused annual leave in the calculation of
i)_art_lqlpants' retirement payments. The State’s
iability in the event of an unfavorable outcome
would”™ be_ approximately $340.000 million for
current retirees and $800.000 million for current
active members_of the South Carolina Retirement
System and the Police Officers’ Retirement System.
Although the Circuit Court determined that the State
has been prov1dm% retirement benefits in accordance
with the law, the plaintiffs have appealed the
decision to the South Carolina Supreme Court. The
State continues to vigorously defend its position.

_The State is involved in a number of cases in
which the amounts of potential losses, 1f_an?', are not
presently determinable. These cases include one
contending that the fund_ln% of public education_in
South Carolina is_inequitable and inadequate. The
State moved to dismiss this case, and the Circuit
Court_granted that motion. The plaintiffs have
gppeale , and an oral argument was held before the

tate Supreme Court. decision is pending from
that court. o i .

The State is involved in other legal proceedings
pertaining to matters incidental to the performance
of routine governmental operations, Such litigation
includes cases involving possible violations of State
and Federal laws. Unfavorable outcomes in these
matters could result in the State incurring losses.
However, these losses are not expected to_have a
material, adverse effect on the State's financial
statements. . . . .

Due to the uncer’t_ath involving the ultimate
outcome of the previously discussed unresolved
lawsuits, no provision for potential liability has been
made for them in the accompanying financial
statements. .

The South Carolina Supreme Court has
concluded that the statutory government liability cap
provided in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act does
not a{)ply to tort cases filed against the State prior to
July 1, 1994. During 1997, the General Assembl
reenacted the government liability caps and made
the reenactment applicable to all claims or actions
that had not been reduced to final judgment. Most
State agencies now purchase enough liabili
insurance to fully cover cases covered by the Sout
Carolina Tort Claims Act. The State has recorded a
$950 thousand liability in the Department of
Transportation Special” Revenue Fund and a
$4.400 million liability in its General Long-Term
Obligations Account ‘Group at June 30, 1998, for
![u(ligr{le%sg jlgamst the State in cases filed prior to

u ) . . .

yOn November 4, 1998, a class action lawsuit
was filed against the State. The lawsuit challenges
the taxation of federal retirees' income.
Manqggment estimates that the State's ultimate
liability would exceed $170.000 million plus interest
in the event of an unfavorable outcome. This
estimate does not include the impact on future year
revenues. Because the case is in the preliminary

101



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

stages, an estimate of the range of loss is not
presentl}r/l determinable. While the State is uncertain
as to the ultimate outcome of this case, it is
vigorously defending its position.

b. Federal Grants

_The State receives significant Federal grant and
entitlement revenues. Compliance audits of Federal
Brpgrams may identify disallowed expenditures.

isallowances by Federal program officials as a
result of these audits may become liabilities of the
State. The State records a liability for pending
disallowances if settlement is probable and the
settlement amount is reasonably estimable.
Otherwise, the liability is recorded when the State
and the Federal ~government agree _ upon
reimbursement terms. Itis presently not possible for
management to determine the outcome of pendin
audit _disallowances. Based on an analysis o
historical data, however, the State believes that any
such reimbursements relating to the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998, or earlier years will not have a
material impact on the State's financial statements.

¢. Education Assistance Loan Guarantees

The South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority within the State's Enterprise Funds
uarantees_ student loans. At June 30, 1998, these
oans totaled $1.081 billion, The United  States
Department of Education reinsures 100% of losses
under these guarantees for loans made prior to
October 1, 1993, and 98% of losses for loans made
on or after October 1, 1993, If the loan default rate
exceeds 5.0% of the loans in repayment status,
however, the United States Department of Education
decreases the reinsurance rate. The State's default
rate during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, was
approximately 1.0%.

d. Federal Housing and Urban Development
Loan Guarantee Program

During 1994, Lexington County and Berkeley
County each entered into a contract for participation
in the Housing and Urban Development ( )
Section 108 loan guarantee [l))r(_)gram. _ Under this
program, HUD arranges a public offering of notes
guaranteed by federal funds_ and lends™ the note
proceeds to the program participant. The participant

uarantees the loan with HUD Community

evelopment Block Grant (CDBG) funds. Because
neither county received CDBG funds directly from
HUD, the Sfate cosigned the HUD contracts and
{)ledged its future federal CDBG funds on behalf of
he counties. Each county lent its loan proceeds to
fund an economic development project. )

During 1997, both of the "funded projects
declared ankruptc?l. Because neither project” will
make any further loan payments to its respective
county, the counties will not receive the funds they
would have used to make the corresponding loan
{)ayments to HUD. Under the agreements, therefore,
hé State must use its federal CDBG funds to make

the loan payments on behalf of the counties to the
extent that ‘such funds are available. If the State
does not receive CDBG funds_in future years, the
Federal government is responsible for the ‘payments
to the note holders. o )

At June 30, 1998, = $8.675 million remained
outstanding on the Lexington County loan. The
payment terms require the State to repay this amount
in six years at 8% interest. Accordmgl%, the State
has recorded an Intergovernmental Payable liability
in the General L(ﬁ%— erm ObllFatlons Group for the
amount it owes D on this [oan to be paid from
federal CDBG funds.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the
State received title to real and personal property
from the bankrupt Berkeley County project. = The
State sold the assets and uséd the nét proceeds after
expenses, along with current year federal CDBG
funds allocated to the State, to pay off the Berkeley
County loan.  Therefore, the "liability for the
Berkeley County loan has been removed from the
General Long-Term Obligations Group.

e. Purchase Commitments

At December 31,1997, the Public Service
Authority, a discretely presented component unit and
electric utility company, had outstanding minimum
obligations "under _existing purchase contracts
totaling $485.008 million for coal and approximately
$97.000 million for power. The term of the power
contract is 37 years. The Authority has
commitments for “nuclear fuel enrichment and
fabrication contracts which are contingent upon the
operating life of its nuclear unit. As of

ecember 31, 1997, these. commitments totaled
approximately $72.300 million over the next eight to
twelve years.

f. Transportation Infrastructure Bank Loan
Commitment

On April 30,1998, the South Carolina
Transportation Infrastructure Bank entered into an
intergovernmental agreement with Horry Coun_tﬁl_ to
fund an_interest-bearing loan for $199.416 million
for road and bridge construction projects. As of
June 30, 1998, the State had not yet advanced any
funds to Horry County for these projects.

g. Clean Air Act

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit and ~electric  utility
company, endeavors to ensure that its facilities
comply “with applicable environmental regulations
and = standards. Congress has  promulgated
comprehensive amendments to the Clean Air Act,
including the addition of a new federal program
relating fo acid precipitation. Although most ot the
Clean Air Act Amendment re%ylatlons are now final,
and costs have been quantified, other regulatory
actions pending under Title I of the Clean Air Act
relating to ozone transport and non-attainment are
not yet final. Therefore, complete compliance costs
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cannot yet be determined. & The Authority has
installed” continuous  emissions  monitoring
equipment at a cost of $5.200 million and estimates
that 1t will spend approximately $8.200 million more
to complete necessary combusfion upgrades.

h. Deregulation of Electric Utilities

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit, currentlyis a regulated
electric utility.” The electric industry is mcreasmﬁly
competitive due to re%l_ll_atory changes and market
developments. As utilities move to a deregulated
environment where rates are based on market forces,
there may be costs that cannot be recovered by
charging ~ the market rate. Some proposed
deregulation measures allow for recovery of some
{)ortlon of these costs, but the ultimate regulatory
reatment of such costs cannot be predicted. .

Bills have been introduced in the United
States Congress and the South Carolina General
Assembly to provide for retail customer choice. The
outcome”of these initiatives and the impact on the
Authority cannot be determined at this time.

. The Authority is implementing a long-term
strategic plan designed to position if to compete
effectively in the changing competitive environment.
Although™ the Authorltgy is_ preparing for a
deregulated market, the effects of increased
competition on the Authority’s operations and
financial condition cannot be predicted.

i. Medical University Proposed Sale/Lease

In October 1995, the Medical University of
South Carolina (MUSC mﬁ?ed a letter of intent
with Columbia/HCA Healthcare Corporation to
negotiate for the sale of Medical Center assets and
the lease of certain real estate. _During 1996
MUSC’s Board of Trustees, the State’s eneral
Assembly, and the State Budget and Control Board
approved the terms of the proposed agreement.

In July 1996, a third party filed a suit in Circuit
Court questioning (a) whether the proposed
transaction is a constitutionally illegal joint venture
and (b) the reasonableness of the compensation to be

aid to the State. In February 1998, the Circuit
ourt ruled that the State statuté authorizing MUSC
to enter into this affiliation was invalid.. SC has
:&ppealed the ruling to the South Carolina Supreme
ourt, and a decision is expected by the end of 1998.

j. Lake Russell Project

The Department of Commerce’s Division of
Savannah Valley Development (the SVD) is
involved in a project to develop a_resort and
retirement community at Lake Russell in Abbeville
County, South Carolina. At June 30, 1998, the
developer was in default on its contract with SVD,
and subcontractors had filed mechanics liens totaling
$5.222 million against property at the project. In
September 1998, the subcontractors allowed their
liens to expire without bringing foreclosure actions.

The subcontractors may have allowed_their liens to
expire as part of an agreement with the SVD
wherein the subcontractors would be deeded some or
all of the project property if a new developer cannot
be found. It’is uncertain’if such an agreement exists
and/or if it can be consummated. ~ Further, it is
uncertain whether a new developer will be found.
Ac(cjordmgly, no estimate of loss to the State can be
made.

NOTE 21: PLEDGES OF GIFTS—
HIGHER EDUCATION
FUNDS

The State's Higher Education Funds expect to
collect pledges (expressed in thousands) as follows:

Fiscal Higher Education Funds
Year Current

Ending Unre- Current

June 30 stricted Restricted Totals
1999 $ 2005 $ 33 9 2,038
2000 10 12 22
2001 — 1 1
2002 — 1 1
2003 — 1 1

Thereafter 20,319 1,628 21,947

Totals $ 22334 $ 1676 § 24,010

It is not practicable to estimate the net realizable
value of such gledges; pccordmg}y, they are not
recorded as pledges receivable at June 30, 1998, in
the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 22: THE YEAR 2000 ISSUE

The year 2000 issue arises because most
computer software programs allocate two digits to
the year date field on the assumption that_the first
two digits will be /9. Without reprogramming, such
prog:ams will interpret, for example, the year 2000
as the year 1900. Also, some programs may be
unable fo recognize that the year 2000 is a leap fyear,

The tyear 000 issue ‘may affect elecfronic
equipment containing computer chips that have date
recognition  featurés—such as  environmental
systems, elevators, and vehicles—as well as
computer software programs. In addition, the
year 2000 issue affects not onlg computer
applications and equipment under the State’s direct
control but also the systems of other entities with
which the State transacts business. Some of the
State’s systq.rps/e%m ment affected by the year 2000
issue are critical to the continued and uninterrupted
operations of State government.

Because of the un?recedented nature _of the
year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related
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remediation efforts will not be fully determinable
until the year 2000 and thereafter.” Management
cannot assure that the State is_or will be year 2000
ready, that the State’s remediation efforfs will be
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with
whom the State does business will be year 2000

ready.
f; 1997, the South Carolina General Assemblz
charged the State’s Budget and Control Board wit
the Tesponsibility of coordinating a continuing
assessment, of the t_year 2000 issue and its effects on
the operations of State government. While the
Budget and Control Board has assumed a leadership
role, individual State agencies are wholly
responsible for making Oprogrammm changes
needed to address the year 2000 1ssue with respect to
systems under their control. On a quarterly basis,
the Budget and Control Board is monitoring _the
need for, and progress of, agency remediation efforts
and the status of agency-developed contmgenc(\;
lans to address the possibility that year 200
ailures might adversely affect systems critical to
agency operations. i

State employees have performed substantially all
of the work thaf has been undertaken to date toward
addressing the State’s year 2000 issue., Although the
State contracted  during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998, with_external vendors for assistance
in addressing such issues, there were no substantial
unpaid commitments associated with these contracts
as of June 30, 1998. Subsequent to June 30, 1998,
however, the State entered into some new vendor
contracts for year 2000 assistance.

In September 1998, State agencies were asked to
submit to the Budget and Control Board certain data
regarding systems they deemed critical to their
agenc ogeratlons. Agencies identified  and
described 514 such systems. Management believes
that 259 of these systems are critical to conducting
the State’s operations. Some of these systems affect
most State agencies (“central State government™)
whereas_others (especially those related to colleges
and universities) affect” only a_single agency.
Systems critical to conducting the State’s operations
include, but are not necessarily limited to, those that
would affect the State’s ability to provide primary
government services, meet 1ts obligations, and
generally carry on other essential operations.

At “any ‘given time, work to address the
year 2000 issue with respect to each system deemed
mission-critical (i.e., critical to conducting the
State’s operations) falls predominantly within one of
the following stages of work:

(i) Awareness stage—Establishing a budget and
project plan for dealing with the year 2000
1ssue.

(ii) Assessment stage—lden{ifﬁing the systems
and components for which year 2000 work

_.._is needed.

(iii) Remediation  stage—Making changes to

. _ systems/equipment.

(iv) Validation/testing  stage—Validating and
testing changes that were made during the
remediation stage.

The following paragraphs summarize year 2000
sta%e-of-wotk dafa for the State’s mission-critical
systems/equipment as of June 30, 1998. Systems

having similar functions that are in the same stage of
work "have been combined for purposes of this
disclosure. ]

At June 30, 1998, the State was in the awareness
stage with respect.  to mission-critical
) sems/eq[ljnp_men_t relating to the following:

inthrop University operations; tracking of student
transfers among_technical colleges; a;gaellate case
management and county docketing; and attendance
and grade tracking, School for the Deaf and Blind.
For “these systems/equipment, the assessment,
remediation, and validation/testing stages have not
yet been addressed.

The State had completed the awareness stage
and was performing work in the assessment stage at
June 30, 1998, for mission-critical systems and
equipment relating to the following: offender
management for juveniles and for adult prison
inmates; vital records—births, deaths, adoptions,
marriages, divorces; tracking of health department
patients and handlers of controlled substances; fire
marshal, pyrotechnic, and elevator inspections; food
service establishment health certifications; home
health care and long-term personal care programs;
licenses of nurses and engineers; pyrotechnic and
environmental certification licenses; the Local
Government Investment Pool; Federal surplus
property; business filings managed by the Secretary
of State; Medicare billing, Medicaid issuance
fremlum, and child support payments mana%gad_ by
he Department of ~Social = Services; billing
Departments of Agriculture and Health an
Environmental Control; Department of Insurance
licensing, = taxation, and complaints; vocational
rehabilitation centers; opinions and
trusts/foundations data managed by the Attorney
General’s Office; union mediation; human resources
and energy monitoring, College of Charleston;

hysical Tacilities, University of South Carolina;
enmark Technical College Operations; accounting,
Horry-Georgetown _Technical _College; student
registration/billing, Tri-Coun Teghmcai College;
telephones, Lowcountry and Trident Technica
Colleges; and energP‘( management, Lowcoun
Technical College. For these systems/equipment,
the remediation and validation/testing stages have
not yet been addressed.

At June 30, 1998, the State had completed the
awareness and assessment stages and _was
performing remediation work for “mission-critical
systems and equipment relating to the following:
mvestment manaﬁement tax accounting, tax records
management, and tele hone switching for central
State government; Medicaid—processing, payments,
and ‘eligibility; ~client history for ~Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and Food
Stamp programs; unemployment claims/benefits
processing and tax collection; individual income and
Eropertg' faxes; alcoholic beverage and residential
home builders’ licenses; video poker monitoring;
inspection of amusement rides; Department o
Transportation project and shop management; job
availability information; work support case tracking
managed by the Department of Social Services;
disability claims processing of the Commission for
the Blind; high school equivalency certification; case
management for the Attorney ~General’s Office;
billing and procurement contract management of the
Governor’s Office; generation of reapportionment

104



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

data; operations of Francis Marion University;
operations other than radiology information for the
edical University of South Carolina; accountin
for Clemson University, the University of Sout
Carolina, Florence-Darlington Technical College,
and Piedmont Technical College; student
information_ for The Citadel, Central Carolina
Technical College, Florence-Darlington Technical
College, Horry-Georgetown Technical College,
Midlands Technical = College, and Piedmont
Technical College; payroll for all sixteen technical
colleges; and human résources management for The
Citadel and all sixteen technical colle%_es. For these
systems/equipment, the validation/testing stage has
not )igt been addressed.
he State had completed the awareness,
assessment, and remediation stages and was
performing, or had completed, validation/testing
work at June 30, 1998, for mission-critical systems
and ec]1]u1 ment relating to the following: accounting
payroll, budgeting, employee retirement benefits and
records, tax receivables/collections, debt
management, human resource management, and risk
management for central State government;
reimbursement payments to_  local governments;
driver and vehicle registration; statewide voter
registration; State grand jury selection; offender
management for probation, “parole, and_pardon;
electronic issuance of food stamp benefits; sales
taxes; business taxpayer registration; work s%ppc_)rt
benef'lts managed by the Department of Social
Services; forest fire management; State Department
of Education operations, excgelpt for high school
equivalency programs; child care = voucher

Erocess_ing and paﬁlment; client information,
ommission for the Blind; vocational rehabilitation
client services; Department of Social Services child
welfare, except for child support payments;
Department of Social Services day care meals; foster
care and victim assistance client information
managed by the Governor’s Office; employer-filed
claims and check reconciliation _information
managed by the Employment Security Commission;
licenses and/or violations relating to hunting
fishing, boats, motors, and real estate; professiona
and occupational licenses not listed above;
operations, Workers’ Compensation Commission;
transmission of reapportionment data; student
information, School for the Deaf and Blind;
operations of  Aiken, Chesterfield-Marlboro
reenville, Orangeburg-Calhoun, Williamsburg, and
York Technical Colléges; operations, except for
accountmé and physical facilities, of the University
of South Carolina; operations, except telephones, of
Trident Technical ~College; operations, except
student registration/billing, of Tri-County Technical
College; accounting for the College of Charleston,
Central Carolina Technical College, Lowcountry
Technical College, and Midlands Technical College;
Bayroll. for Clemson University; purchasing and
udgeting for The Citadel; student information for
Clemson University, the College of Charleston, and
Lowcountry Technical College; human resources
management for Clemson  University = and
Lowcountry  Technical _Collcia:ge; radiology
information, Medical University of South Carolina;
and library management, idlands Technical
College.
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Thomas Sumter
A daring brigadier general during the Revolutionary War, Thomas Sumter (1734-1832)

followed a brilliant military career with an equally distinguished career in public service.
He was a member of both the South Carolina House and Senate, and he aiso served in the
United States House and Senate.
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State of South Carolina

National Guard Pension System
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Last Six Fiscal Years
(Dollars in Thousands)

Actuarial UAAL
Accrued As a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Annual Percentage
Fiscal Actuarial Valuation (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Year Ended Valuation of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30 Date (a (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
1993 July 1,1992%8 § 0 $ 23701 $ 23701 0.0% $ 50,404 47.0%
1994 July 1, 1993 2,499 26,200 23,701 9.5% 48,385 49.0%
1995 July 1, 1994 3,760 26,996 23,236 13.9% 50,766 45.8%
1996 June 30, 1996 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4%
1997 June 30, 1996° 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 41,264 73.9%
1998 June 30, 1998° 8,640 41,478 32,838 20.8% 40,333 81.4%

2 Before July 1, 1993, the National Guard Pension System operated on a pay-as-you-go basis.
® The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan. Effective June 30, 1996, the plan’s administrator

implemented a biennial valuation schedule.

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll is a
measure of the significance of the unfunded
actuarial 11ab1111?' relative to the State’s capacity to
pay it. The funded ratio represents the assets
expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued
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liability.  The trend in those two ratios provides
information about whether the financial strength of
the plan is improving or deteriorating over time. An
improvement is indicated when the funded ratio is
increasing and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial
liability to active covered payroll is decreasing.



State of South Carolina

National Guard Pension System
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Six Fiscal Years

(Dollars in Thousands)
Employer Contributions
Fiscal Year Annual
Ended Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed
1993 “$ 2,499 46.8%
1994 2,499 100.0%
1995 2,499 100.0%
19962 3,085 81.0%
19972 3,085 81.0%
19982 3,200 78.1%

® The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan.

implemented a biennial valuation schedule.

Effective June 30, 1996, the plan's administrator

The schedule of employer contributions
provides  information about the required
contributions of the State and the extent to which
those contributions are being made. The schedule
gives an indication of the progress made in

gccumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when
ue.

The information resented = above  was
determined as part, of the actuarial valuations.
Additional information as of the latest actuarial
valuation follows:

Actuarial valuation date..............

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases
Assumed inflation rate

Assumed cost-of-living adjustments

June 30, 1998
Entry age

Lewel percent, open
30 years

Market

7.25%
Not applicable
4.25%
Not applicable
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I DeQuincey Newman

Born on a Darlington County farm, young “I. D.” Newman (1911-1985) would become one
of the most important civil rights leaders in South Carolina. An ordained minister, Newman
was also instrumental in establishing the NAACP. He retired from the leadership of the
NAACP in 1969 and returned to ministerial duties as well as numerous volunteer and state
positions. Later, Newman was elected to the South Carolina Senate, the first black man to
serve there since Reconstruction.
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John Laurens

Colonel John Laurens (1754-1782) was born in America and educated in England. Upon his
return to America, Laurens was an outspoken patriot and received a colonel’s commission.
He joined George Washington’s staff as aide-de-camp in 1777 and also served as a liaison
officer between French and Patriot forces in 1778. The progressive and audacious Laurens
was an early advocate of emancipation.
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Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for specific
revenue sources (ﬁther than_for Caﬁltal Projects,
Trust, and Higher Education Funds) that are legally
restricted for specified purposes, The State uses the
following Special Revenue Funds:

Departmental General Operating Fund. This
fund accounts for resources that are part of a
particular State agency's General Fund but are not
part of the State's General Fund. These resources
include significant amounts of Federal grant
recelpts.

Education Improvement Act Fund. This fund
accounts for the special additional one-percent sales
tax levied to be used exclusively for improvements
in elementary and secondary education, including
academic loans for future teachers.

Children's Education Endowment Fund. This
fund accounts for low-level radioactive waste fees
collected from the Barnwell waste facility that are
not required to be deposited to the General Fund or
remitted to Barnwell ountfy. _These funds are to be
used for public school facilities assistance and
higher education scholarship grants.

. Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund.
This fund accounts for State bond proceeds and
other permanent improvement project resources to
be expended for approved repair, maintenance,
renovation, and alteration projects.

Waste Management Fund. This fund accounts

for fees collected from consumers, generators of

solid and hazardous wastes, and owners and
operators of solid waste and hazardous waste
storage facilities. These fees must be used for the
pu(riposes set forth in the State's Solid Waste Policy
and Management Act of 1991 and to cover the
State's costs in governmental actions involving
uncontrolled hazardous waste sites.

Department _of Transportation Special
Revenue Fund. This fund accounts for the various
gasoline taxes, fees, fines, and Federal grant
resources used By the Department of Transportation
for its general operations. These operations include
highway maintenance and repair.

Local Government Infrastructure Fund. This
fund accounts for grants, loans, and other financial
assistance to local governments for infrastructure
Euaposes. It is funded by certain motor fuel taxes,

ederal funds, and transférs from other funds.

Accommodations and Local Option Sales
Tax Fund. This fund accounts for: (1) a special
additional two-percent sales tax on ‘the gross
proceeds on the rental of transient accommodations
and (2) a special one-percent sales tax applicable in
some localities within the State. The State allocates
these revenues to counties and municipalities in
accordance with State law.

Energy Settlement Fund. Revenues received
from court-ordered settlements resulting from oil
overcharges by various oil companies are accounted
for in this fund. These resources must be used for
energy-related programs designed to benefit all
categories of ~the State's petroleum product
consumers.

Omnibus Crime Fund. This fund accounts for
court fees remitted to the State by local court
systems under the Omnibus Crime "Act of 1985.

hese fees must be used for certain IProgra}ms
administered by the Department of Probation,
Parole & Pardon Services.

Medicaid Expansion Fund. Resources of this
fund include county assessments for indigent
medical care and a tax on licensed hospitals. The
fund was established to provide Medicaid coverage
to persons formerly ineligible for such coverage and
}\(/)I _roy:ide additional State matching funds for

edicaid.

Other Special Revenue Funds. These funds,
aggregated for reporting purposes, account for
various other revenues which' must be used for
specific purposes. These  include operations, of
various employment services, water recreation,
agricultural boards, forest renewal programs, certain
housing programs, and medical and dental
scholarships.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Battle of Kings Mountain (Robert Windsor Wilson)

The Battle of Kings Mountain, on October 7, 1780, is perhaps the most famous Revolutionary War
military engagement in South Carolina. A large force comprised primarily of farmers surrounded the
British troops. The Americans won a tremendous victory as the British suffered over 1,000 casualties.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Repair, Department
Depart- Education Mainte- of
mental Improve- Children's nance, Waste Transportation
General ment Education and Manage- Special
Operating Act Endowment Renovation ment Revenue
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.................cccce... $ 174,178 $ 59,472 $ 79,330 $ 20,941 $ 75,378 $ 181,058
Investments..............ccceiviiininn . 372 — — — — —
Invested securities lending collateral............. 8 9 69 2 63 172
Receivables, net:
Accounts 46.416 1,903 902 23 960 5,819
Taxes.......c.ce.n. 2,364 46,433 14,651 — — 32,835
Student loans — 14,813 — — — —_
Loans and notes 256 — — — — —
Due from Federal government
and other grantors............cc.ccocoivieie 312,378 — — 146 — 37,174
Due from other funds................ococcoinin 14,116 4,337 — 678 1,239 45,587
Interfund receivables 155 400 — — — 1,358
Advances to other funds.......................col — — — — — 4,867
INVENONIES. ..o 10,813 — — — 46 10,636
Other assets...........ccooceiviciiciiiiiiiicnce 82 — — — —_ —
Total @SSets.....cccermervrrnrrrrsressisssnssnerones $ 561,138 $ 127,367 $ 94,952 $ 21,790 $ 77,686 $ 319,506
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities..........ccoecovveve e $ 217,464 $ 2,333 $ 2,188 $ 2,645 $ 5,426 $ 72,858
Tax refunds payable................ccooveieinennee 2 243 — —_ _ 441
Intergovernmental payables........................ 66,816 2,918 — — 809 —
Due to other funds...........ccccoovcinniiinninnn, 54,935 1,994 7 70 398 5,498
Interfund payables............cccocvviiiis 552 100 - — — —
Advances from other funds............c...cccccocc 264 — — — — —_
Deferred revenues. ........cococevevervecieicenieeenan. 35,395 5,211 — 127 — 21,241
Securities lending collateral......................... 8 9 69 2 63 172
Other liabilities, including retainages
payable...........cccciciiinii 4 9 — 1,473 3 24197
Total liabilities..........ccovevnrcnnncrcrensiinnne 375,440 12,817 2,264 4,317 6,699 124,407
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
INVENTONIES. .. .ovveeee e 10,813 — — — 46 10,636
Advances to other funds...............c.ccoeee — — — — — 4,867
Long-term loans and notes
receivable...........coooeie i 255 10,958 — — — —
Schoo! building aid...........c.cccooeiniininne — 16,275 — — — —
Unreserved:
Designated for future years'
expenditures.............coceeveviniiineniiene, — — — — — 102,193
Designated for capital expenditures........... — — — — — 46,605
Designated for scholarships..............c.c...... — 16,375 —_ — 155 —
Undesignated..............ccoovvieeeiciinccecnne, 174,630 70,942 92,688 17,473 70,786 30,798
Total fund balances..........cccvirininennnnas 185,698 114,550 92,688 17,473 70,987 195,099
Total liabilities and
fund balances.........ccevevsnereieririenenenne $ 561,138 $ 127,367 $ 94,952 $ 21,790 $ 77,686 $ 319,506
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L

Accommoda-
Local tions and Other
Government Local Option Energy Omnibus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Infrastructure Sales Tax Settlement Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals
$ 197,030 $ 25,820 $ 19,276 2,018 $ 6,410 $ 62,219 $ — $ 903,130
—_— — —_ — — — — 372
170 — 17 — 2 17 — 529
2,445 — 177 — 45 208 — 58,898
— 16,767 — - — 1,671 — 114,721
— — — — —_ — — 14,813
163,064 — —_ — — 2,497 — 165,817
2,040 — — —_ — — — 351,738
4,145 38 — 42 — 1,372 (26,847) 44,707
200 — — — — 61 (400) 1,774
400 — — — — 200 — 5,467
— — — — — — — 21,495
— — — — — — — 82
$ 369,494 $ 42,625 $ 19,470 2,060 $ 6,457 $ 68,245 $ (27,247) $ 1,683,543
$ 5,401 $ 1 $ 659 660 $ 72 $ 4,226 $ — $ 313,933
—_ 185 —_ —_ —_ 1 —_ 872
— 24,178 — — — 631 — 95,352
302 68 13 425 23 560 (26,847) 37,446
— — —_ —_ — 70 (400) 322
— — — — — — — 264
— 1,831 — — — 19 — 63,824
170 — 17 — 2 17 — 529
— — — — — 3 — 25,689
5,873 26,263 689 1,085 97 5,527 (27,247) 538,231
— — — — — — — 21,495
400 — — — — 200 — 5,467
147,528 — — — — 2,449 — 161,190
— — —_ — — — — 16,275
—_ — — — — — — 102,193
— — — — — — — 46,605
— — — — — — — 16,530
215,693 16,362 18,781 975 6,360 60,069 — 775,557
363,621 16,362 18,781 975 6,360 62,718 — 1,145,312
$ 369,494 $ 42,625 $ 19,470 2,060 $ 6,457 $ 68,245 $ (27,247) $ 1,683,543
L. I
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Repair,
Depart- Education Mainte-
mental Improve- Children's nance, Waste
General ment Education and Manage-
Operating Act Endowment Renovation ment
Revenues:
Taxes:
Retail S2IES aNd USE........ovvveiceiieeeeeeeeeeieee e $ 651 $ 433972 $ — $ — $ 1,769
OBttt ere e 42,642 — 56,355 — —
Licenses, fees, and PErMItS............ccovvvvieeeerienerieereeeeeenne 61,415 — — — 24,552
Interest and other investment iNnCOMe............c.cccevenrveionnns 854 6,432 6,296 138 2,964
FEUBTAL ..ot ceeeeeeteet ettt 2,863,117 74 — 739 —
Departmental services 166,151 — — 384 268
CONMDULIONS.......ovvieieiiceictece et 116,279 — — 231 —
Fines and penalties............c.ccococererenrereniinceieecs s 21,230 —_ — 1,250 46
NI, ..ottt et e ettt 62,152 825 1 39 3,551
Total FEVENUES.......cceeerrieermecrineresneererereneneescraresesessnsnenans 3,334,491 441,303 62,652 2,781 33,150
Expenditures:
Current:
General QOVEMMENt..........ccooceiiirciceiee e 61,034 12,086 — 18,278 4
Education 120,507 18,637 3,092 1,203 —
Health and environment..............ccveveeieieeeeeie e ernesne e 1,993,817 898 —_— 6,591 22,643
SOCIAl SEIVICES - veieveeveeireeeeee e st resereeere e een e reereeaveeraenes 547,269 4,315 — 21 —
Administration of JUSHICE..........ccocoerriiiriricie e 50,570 1,555 — 3,481 —
Resources and economic development...........c....ccccceiien. 87,751 — — 2,293 —
TransSpORtation............oovieeverreiciiiicei e — - — — —
Capital OUHIAY. ..o — — — — —
Debt service:
Principal retirf@ment............cccovoiieeinieiiiinec e 484 — — — —
Interest and fiscal Charges...........cccccovveercrcrenivcrcnrincccns 59 — — — —
INtergovernmMENntal. ..o 416,266 390,636 47,956 —_ 5,898
Total expenditures.............ccceeremsuriseecsessesssassesssssenenes 3,277,757 428,127 51,048 31,867 28,545
Revenues over (under) expenditures...........ceerinrerarneseees 56,734 13,176 11,604 (29,086) 4,605
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from bonds and Notes...........c.ccceeericiiccinnnnne 300 — — — —
Lease and instaliment debt proceeds...............ccconirninnn 99 —_ —_ — —
Operating transfers iN............cc.coceereirininiiniieeece e 100,043 164 400 26,161 22
Operating transfers Out............c.cooiiiioiriiiriecieieens (28,958) (5,689) (13,969) (1,248) (409)
Total other financing sources (USeS)..........cccovrirnrerannnns 71,484 (5,525) (13,569) 24,913 (387)
Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other USes.........cccncernrnecnersesenens 128,218 7,651 (1,965) (4,173) 4,218
Fund balances at beginning of year (restated)...... 56,456 106,899 94,653 19,771 66,748
Increases (decreases) in reserve for inventories 1,024 —_ —_ — 21
Residual equity transfers in.........ccccocevvnninnciennciccninnenan — — —_ 1,875 —_
Fund balances at end of year...........ccccecersinnininiscssesesenanas $ 185698 $ 114,550 $ 92688 $ 17473 $ 70,987
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Department
of Accommoda-
Transportation Local tions and Energy Omni- Other
Special Government Local Option Settle- bus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Revenue Infrastructure Sales Tax ment Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals
$ — $ — $ 149202 § — — $ — 5 — — $ 585,594
339,694 18,000 — - — 22,188 14,538 — 493,417
_— — — — — —_ 7,763 — 93,730
22,022 15,548 —_ 1,230 — 327 1,932 - 57,743
243,757 37,825 — — — — — — 3,145,512
67,404 163 — 304 — — 25 — 234,699
— 29,749 -— —_ — 7,505 906 — 154,670
— — — — 13,107 —_ 10,668 —_ 46,301
3,942 — — 43 7 — 84 — 70,644
676,819 101,285 149,202 1,577 13,114 30,020 35,916 — 4,882,310
— 423 23 834 - —_ 17,749 —_ 110,431
— — — — — — — — 143,439
— —_ — — —_ 29,071 173 — 2,053,193
— — — — — - 2,095 — 553,700
— — — — 13,402 - 188 — 69,196
— 40 —_ — — —_ 2,570 — 92,654
281,021 — — — —_ — — — 281,021
396,801 — — — — — — — 396,801
2,405 — — — —_ — 118 —_ 3,007
5,526 — —_— — — —_ 1 — 5,586
9,500 11,999 146,491 126 — —_ 4,738 — 1,033,610
695,253 12,462 146,514 960 13,402 29,071 27,632 —_ 4,742,638
(18,434) 88,823 2,688 617 (288) 949 8,284 —_ 139,672
47,572 — — — — — - — 47,872
— — — — —_ — 64 — 163
945 11,119 — —_ — — 3,187 (62,183) 79,858
(5,836) (363) (1,079) (57) — — (4,620) 62,183 (45)
42,681 10,756 (1,079) (57) — — (1,369) —_ 127,848
24,247 99,579 1,609 560 (288) 949 6,915 — 267,520
172,453 264,042 14,753 18,221 1,263 5,411 55,803 —_ 876,473
(1,601) — —_ —_— —_ —_ —_ —_ (556)
—_ —_ —_ —_ — —_ —_ —_ 1,875
195,099 $ 363,621 $ 16,362 $ 18,781 975 $ 6,360 $ 62,718 — $ 1,145,312
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Wade Hampton
A native of Charleston, Wade Hampton (1818-1902) had a long and distinguished career.

He was a member of the General Assembly from 1852-1861 until he resigned to accept a
colonel’s commission in the Confederate Army. He eventually rose to the rank of a
lieutenant general by the war’s end. Following his military service, Hampton became
Governor of South Carolina and a United States Senator.




Enterprise Funds

. Enterprise Funds account for business-like State
activities_that provide goods and/or services to the
public. These funds are financed primarily through
user charges. ~The State's primary government
maintains the following Enterprise Funds:

Housing Authority. The State Housing Finance
and Development Authority facilitates medium-
income and low-income_housing otpportumtles by
providing _reasonable financing to the State's
citizens. To provide such financing, the Authority
issues bonds and notes and administers Federal
grants and contracts. The Authority is supported
primarily by mortgage interest.

Education Assistance Authority. The South
Carolina Education Assistance Authority issues
bonds for the purf)ose of making loans to students of
the State to enable them to attend higher education
institutions,  Resources include interest charges
subsidies from_ the United States Department of
Education, and investment earnings.

Jobs-Economic Development Authority. The
Jobs—Economic . Development Authority acts in
conjunction with other organizations in the
promotion and  advancement of industrial
commercial,  agricultural and recreatlonai
development in the State. The Authority's emphasis

State of South Carolina

is on those areas of the State with the greatest
economic need and to those projects providing the
greatest economic benefit. he Authority is
lsupported primarily by interest charges on project
oans.

Patients’ Compensation Fund. This fund
provides medical malpractice insurance to any
ublic or l%).rlvate health care provider within the
tate. = This fund is reported as an insurance
enterprise.

.Second Injury Fund, This fund serves as a
claims processor for insurance carriers, self-
insurers, and the State Accident Fund. The fund
processes claims of employees with existing
permanent physical impairment who are further
injured in e course of their subsequent
employment.

Patriots Point Development Authority. The
Patriots Point Development Authority is responsible
for develorlng and oi)eratmg the Patriots Point area
near Charleston, including a naval museum. The
Authority is supported by user fees.

.Other Enterprise Funds. Other enterprise
activities of the State include: the Savannah Valley
Development and the Public Railways Divisions of
the South Carolina Department of Commerce, and
the Canteens Fund.

The Angel of Marye’s Heights
Sergeant Richard Kirkland (1843-
1863) of the Second South Carolina
Regiment became one of the most
revered soldiers of the Civil War for
his actions at the Battle of
Fredericksburg on December 14,
1862. Thousands of Union soldiers
lay dead or wounded below Marye’s
Heights as their cries for water went
unanswered. In a selfless act of
courage, Kirkland went out into the
fierce battlefield time after time
taking the soldiers water. For his
efforts he was termed the “Angel of
Marye’s Heights” and was awarded
the Confederate Medal of Honor by
the Sons of Confederate Veterans.

Photograph is not available
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development Patients’
Authority Authority Authority Compensation
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............cccoooeiiiiiicnns $ 2,805 $ 104,831 $ 11,490 $ 20,050
INVESEMENES ... ottt eiei e e e e — — — —
invested securities lending collateral......................c..oc — 25 — 17
Receivables, net:

ACCOUNES <.o.voinieieeeieiree e etie e e et e eseee s ias e sraeenesenees 173 7,937 71 392

Student loans......... — 4 — —

Loans and notes 402 63,000 29 —
Due from Federal government and other grantors............... 1,302 1,614 — —
INVENEOTIES. ... eoieiee e eeiiiee e e e eeiecete e e ebn b e e e e etina s e e — — — —
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents....................ccc.oe. 134,569 19,650 — —

Loans receivable................. 10,711 — — —

[0 7= SO PP UP PP PPPPIN 6,000 — — -
Other current @ssets...........coovviiriiiiiiiie e — 205 — —

Total current @SSetS.........ccooeiiirviiieeiiie e 155,962 197,266 11,590 20,459
Long-term assets:
INVESEMENES ... it r e rrere e — 6,758 867 —
Receivables, net:

StUAENt J0BNS......eeiiiiiieieeiee e — 13 — —

LOANS @8N0 NOES ...coooiiiiiiiiieie e 5141 264,340 3,929 —
Servicing rights, net...............co — — — —
Restricted assets:

INVESEMENES. ..ottt 45,131 14,171 — —

Loans receivable.............cccoeeiiiiiiiiinii e 446,154 — — —

[0 V=] ST O RO P U PE ORI 921 — — —
Other long-term assets.............cocoi i — — 300 —
Deferred Charges........ccooovvveieiin e — 1,265 —_ —

Total long-term assets.............ccooiiii 497,347 286,547 5,096 —
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements. ... — — — —_
Buildings and improvements.................cccoviiiene — — — —
Machinery, equipment, and other...................... 1,055 —_ — 31
Less: accumulated depreciation...............ccoccvieiiiiiiiiinnns (304) — — (23)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net........................ 751 — _— 8
Total @SSetS....cceerieiererirecscrrrns e seenereenserssneaensenees $ 654,060 $ 483,813 $ 16,686 $ 20,467
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State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Second Development Other
Injury Authority Enterprise Totals

$ 1,653 $ 1,313 $ 15,665 $ 157,807
- — 74 74

47 —_ 8 97

— 638 2,174 11,385

— — — 4

— —_ —_ 63,431

_ — — 2,916

— 328 1,553 1,881
50,991 142 2,832 208,184

— — — 10,711

675 — — 6,675

— 9 16 230
53,366 2,430 22,322 463,395
— — 818 8,443

- — — 13

— — 13,816 287,226

— — 1,955 1,955

— — — 59,302

— — — 446,154

— — — 921

— — 320 620

—_ — — 1,265

— — 16,909 805,899

— 5,845 12,250 18,095

—_ 1,629 2,110 3,739
216 7,957 5,040 14,299
(131) (6,363) (3,508) (10,329)

85 9,068 15,892 25,804

$ 53,451 $ 11,498 $ 55,123 $ 1,295,098

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development Patients’
Authority Authority Authority Compensation
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........................... $ 491 $ 12,776 $ 132 $ 558
Due to otherfunds.................ool 14 269 — —
Interfund payables....... — — — —
Deferred revenues... —_ — — 4,050
DEPOSIES. ...t — —_ 598 —
Securities lending collateral.............cccoccooviiniiiiniiiien. — 25 — 17
Liabilities payable from restricted assets... 20,264 — — —
Notes payable..........cccccooviiiiiiiiiiies — — 28 —
Revenue bonds payable 18,340 1,270 — —
Compensated absences payable....................cccoeeiiinnnn, 361 60 17 28
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable........ — — — —
Total current liabilities..............ccoocecviiiiiii 39,470 14,400 775 4,653
Long-term liabilities:
Accrued liabilities................ccociiiiiiii — — — 15,998
Insurance claims incurred but not reported... — — — 9,251
Advances from other funds.................coo — —_ — —
Notes payable............ociiiiii e — — 176 —
Revenue bonds payable.............cc.coooviiiiiiin 452,841 361,970 — —
Total long-term liabilities..............cccoooveiinirii, 452,841 361,970 176 25,249
Total liabilities...........cccvrirncnciininnnnce e 492,311 376,370 951 29,902

Fund Equity (Deficit):
Contributed capital............ccoovevieiinicine e — — 260 —
Retained earnings (deficit):

Reserved for debt requirements 152,041 86,035 — —
Unreserved...........coovviiiiiiiic e 9,708 21,408 15,475 (9,435)
Total fund equity (JefiCit).........eoerrrererereersessesseesnes 161,749 107,443 15,735 {9,435)
Total liabilities and fund equity........ccccccerverrrcrircnrenns $ 654,060 $ 483,813 $ 16,686 $ 20,467
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State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Second Development Other
Injury Authority Enterprise Totals
$ 1,577 $ 271 $ 3,837 $ 19,742
167 209 489 1,138
— —_ 201 201
— 748 36 4,834
— —_ — 598
47 — 8 97
51,512 —_ 891 72,667
— — 1 29
— — — 19,610
74 161 397 1,098
— — 68 68
53,367 1,389 6,028 120,082
— — 1,549 17,547
— — — 9,251
— — 14,416 14,416
— —_ 26 202
— -—_ — 814,811
— — 15,991 856,227
53,367 1,389 22,019 976,309
— 11,809 8,210 20,279
— — 1,990 240,066
84 (1,700) 22,904 58,444
84 10,109 33,104 318,789
$ 53,451 $ 11,498 $ 55,123 $ 1,295,098
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Equity

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Jobs-
Education Economic Patients'
Housing Assistance  Development Compen-
Authority Authority Authority sation
Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES. .........oov i $ 3,888 $ 35764 $ 2158 $ 14,253
Interest and other investment income........................... 48,937 8,944 763 973
Total operating revenues...........c.oicviennininesonerennmona. 52,825 44,708 2,921 15,226
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration.....................coiiinn, 5,099 7,320 2,972 291
Benefits and claims............................. — — — 22,367
INBEIESE. ... 33,629 20,275 — —_
Depreciation and amortization................c..ccociiiiiiiniii 292 140 —_ 3
Other operating €Xpenses...............ccoceviiiiiiiiniiein e 1,509 932 201 —
Total operating eXpenses.........cc.ccciiimiirinininninmn e 40,529 28,667 3,173 22,661
Operating income (10SS)........coiiriinincncnnmiime.. 12,296 16,041 (252) (7,435)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
INterest iNCOME........c.ociiiiii e — —_ 65 —
Federal reVeNUE. ................cooeiiieeee et eeeee e 22,723 _ — —_
Interest expense.............cccceee. — —_ (12) —
Other nonoperating @Xpenses. ...........c.cocvereiirrinieericrcierceeneee e (22,723) (153) (84) —
Total nonoperating revenues (eXpPenses)........c.c.cceevesenrressueenenne —_ (153) {31) —
Income (loss) before operating transfers
and extraordinary items.........ccceniiiiininnn . 12,296 15,888 (283) (7,435)
Operating transfers iN................oii e — — 125 —
Income (loss) before extraordinary items..........cc.ceniuriiseissncrnne 12,296 15,888 (158) (7,435)
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt............................. (277) — — —
Net income (10SS)......cccoerimiirinnninintinniieirsesn s 12,019 15,888 (158) (7,435)
Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year (restated)........... 149,730 91,555 15,633 {2,000)
Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year...........c.cococcvvrcrrinccnnen. 161,749 107,443 15,475 (9,435)
Contributed capital at beginning of year..........cccccenmrinnisnnsonccnenns —_ — —_ —_
Additions to contributed capital................ — — 260 —
Deductions from contributed capital —_— - —_ —
Fund equity (deficit) at end of year...........ccccvvcenriinimncnerenencnnans _§_1_§_1_£;49_ $_E)_7_,& w_ $ (9,435
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State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Develop-
Second ment Other
Injury Authority Enterprise Totals
$ 1,232 $ 5,223 $ 23,105 $ 85,623
— — — 59,617
1,232 5,223 23,105 145,240
1,166 4,746 22,034 43,628
— — -— 22,367
— — —_ 53,904
26 424 499 1,384
52 83 2 2,779
1,244 5,253 22,535 124,062
(12) (30) 570 21,178
— 7 1,748 1,820
— — —_ 22,723
- - (1,137) (1,149)
— — (276) (23,236)
—_ 7 335 158
(12) (23) 205 21,336
— — — 125
(12) (23) 905 21,461
—_ — — (277)
(12) (23) 905 21,184
96 (1,677) 23,989 277,326
84 (1,700) 24,894 298,510
—_ 11,809 5,061 16,870
— —_ 3,190 3,450
— — (41) (41)
$ 84 $ 10,109 $ 33,104 $ 318,789
.. -}
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

(Expressed in Thousands) Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development
Authority Authority Authority

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating INCOME (I0SS).....ccovrieriiiiriieee e e $ 12,296 $ 16,041 $ (252)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ..., 292 140 —
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts................c.ccococs — — 182
Provisions for loss on development project.....................cccc — —_ —
Loss on disposition of property and equipment.. — — —_
Issuance of loans and NOtes...............ccccciriiiiiiicicii s (50,696) (46,417) (290)
Collection of 0ans @and NOLES ............cccoevviiiiiiieiieiee e e 62,732 73,239 1,600
Interest payments 33,340 20,275 —
Interest on iNVESIMENtS...........cooovvviiee e (11,592) (7,871) (460)
Amounts received for payment of claims..............c....ccc — —_ —
Payment of claims...................coin — —_— —
Other nonoperating revenues..... — — —
Other nonoperating expenses.... —_ —_ (55)
OFNL.....ocei ettt e (183) 403 5
Change in assets--decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, net.................. (898) 1.124 87
Student loans receivable, net........ — 2 —
Loans and notes receivable, net.... 678 — —
Due from other funds............cccoooieiiiici 5 (580) —
INVENEOTIES. ...ttt — — —
Other current assets ... 659 (205) 38
Change in liabilities--increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................c.cccceil 4,095 2,012 67
Insurance claims incurred but not reported...................cc — — —
Due to other funds...........cccooveiiiiiicnie — 59 —
Deferred revenues ... (141) (92) —
DEPOSIES....ceveeiiieee ittt — — 498
Liabilities payable from restricted assets................ccceeeriiinn — — —
Compensated absences payable 25 18 (2)
Other liabilities, including retainages payable........................co.. (3,027) — —
Net cash provided by
operating activities........ccc.crervninnieninnninini . 47,585 58,148 1,418
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal payments made to other funds........................... — — —_
Proceeds from sale of notes payable.......... — — 220
Principal payments on notes payable......... — — (16)
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds 19,926 49,850 —
Principal payments on revenue bonds (37,375) (78,165) —
Interest PaYMENES..........oociiiiiiei e (33,601) (21,361) (12)
Payment of bond issuance costs...............cooeniiii (158) (707) —
Federal revenue 22,723 — —
Payments from Federal grants.............c.c.ccocoiniiiinnnnn, (22,723) — —
Operating transfers in ... — — 125
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities..........ccceccvvviinrincnnnninnnnnnenn, (51,208) (50,383) 317
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Patriots
Point
Patients’ Second Development Other Elimina-
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals
$ (7.435) $ (12) $ 30) $ 570 $ — 21,178
3 26 424 499 — 1,384
—_ — — 99 — 281
— — — 505 — 505
— — 8 — —_ 8
— — — — — (97,403)
— — — — —_ 137,571
— — — — — 53,615
(973) — —_ — — (20,896)
— 61,768 — — —_ 61,768
— (59,412) — — — (59,412)
—_ —_ — 664 — 664
— — — (678) —_ (733)
— (3) —_ (25) — 197
(249) 5 (542) (659) — (1,132)
— — — —_ — 2
— - — — — 678
— — - - @ (579)
— — (119) 165 — 46
— — — 26 — 518
7,387 526 (261) 751 — 14,577
5,326 — — - - 5,326
2 — 201 31 4 293
1,350 — 690 — — 1,807
— — - — — 498
- — - (76) - (76)
6 ) 17 45 —_ 108
— — — (35) — (3,062)
5,413 2,897 388 1,882 —_ 117,731
— — (20) (277) — (297)
—_ — — 1,139 — 1,359
— — — (560) — (576)
—_ — — — — 69,776
— — — — — (115,540)
— —_ — (1,059) — (56,033)
— — — — — (865)
— — —_ —_ — 22,723
— — — — — (22,723)
— — — — — 125
- — (20) (757) — (102,051)
I

State of South Carolina

Continued on Next Page

127



State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment....................
Principal payments on notes payable ...
Interest PAYMENES ...t
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets....................cccccieinen.
Contributions of capital..........c.cocconoiiiiiiii e

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities.........coccooverniimnnnnincee s

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments.............ccccooveii
Purchase of investments
Interest on INVESIMENTS. ..........vevviiuiriniii e
1SSUANCE OF IOANS .....ooeciiiii e e et
Collection Of I0ANS ......covviiiiiiiee et e

Net cash provided by
investing activities.......c.cvurmevren

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents.............cccoecerreinnnncennes
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (restated)...........

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.........c.cceevmennnninnncninaees
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Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development
Authority Authority Authority
$ (232) $ — $ —
— —_ 260
(232) — 260
790 15,293 —_
— (6,011) —
10,543 8,269 520
— — 553
11,333 17,551 1,073
7,478 25,316 3,068
129,896 99,165 8,422
$ 137,374 $ 124,481 $ 11,490
.




Patriots
Point
Patients' Second Development Other Elimina-
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals

$ 2) $ (14) $ (293) $ (978) $ — (1.519)
—_ —_ — (201) —_ (201)
— — — (162) — (162)

- - —_ 1,140 — 1,140

— — — 680 — 940

(2) (14) (293) 479 — 198

—_ —_ - —_ —_ 16,083
—_ — — (990) — (7,001)

994 4,515 7 1,709 — 26,557
_ - — (1,175) — (1,175}

— - —_ 560 — 1,113

994 4,515 7 104 —_ 35,577

6,405 7,398 82 1,708 — 51,455

13,645 45,246 1,373 16,789 — 314,536

$ 20,050 $ 52,644 $ 1,455 $ 18,497 $ — 365,991

State of South Carolina
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Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

John Rutledge (Charles Mason Crowson)
John Rutledge (1739-1800) was the first and only President of South Carolina following the
ratification of the South Carolina Constitution of 1776. He was elected Governor of South

Carolina in 1779 and also served as the first Chief Justice of the South Carolina Supreme
Court.
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State of South Carolina

L

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds provide goods/services
to other funds, other agencies, or other governments
on a cost-reimbursement basis. The State uses the
following Internal Service Funds:

Insurance Reserve Fund. This is a risk
management/reinsurance fund. It underwrites
insurance risks on  public buildings and their
contents and tort liability, medical malpractice, and
automobile liability for public employees. State law
limits the Fund's customers to certain governmental
persons/entities within the State "and certain
associated parties.

. Health and Disability Insurance Fund. This is
a risk management fund ‘that underwrites the group
health, denfal, long-term disability, and related
benefits provided to State and “public school
employees and retirees.

State Accident Fund. This is a risk
management fund _ that provides workers'
compensation _ benefits predominantly to State
employees. Premiums are collected” from State
agencies.

General Services Fund. This fund accounts

for various services provided to State and local

overnmental units for which user fees are charged.

hese services include telecommunication and

computer services, rental of office buildings

janitorial services, building maintenance, an
procurement services.

Central Supplies and Equipment Fund. This
fund sells office suﬁ?lles and equipment, food, and
paper products to other governmental units. It also

stores food and paper products for State agencies.

Motor Pool Fund. This fund provides daily and
permanent lease assignments of vehicles to “State
agencies. It also maintains an inventory of
au’f]qn}otlve parts to provide maintenance of these
vehicles.

Department of Transportation Internal
Service Fund. This fund accounts for various
service activitics of the, Department _of
Transportation. The fund_provides data processing
and printing services, equipment rentals, and office
and engineering supplies to other divisions and
county offices ot the Department.

Pension Administration Fund. This fund
administers the public emgloyeg: retirement systems,
Revenues of ‘the fund Pprimarily consist of
assessments charged to the Pension Trust Funds.

Prison Industries Fund. This fund accounts
for goods produced by inmate labor. These goods
are sold primarily to State agencies.

Other Internal Service Funds. These funds,
aggregated for reporting ?ux})oses, account for other
miscellangous_activities that meet the definition of
Internal Service Funds. Such activities include
provision of training programs for State employees
work activity centers of the Vocationa
Rehabilitation ~ Department, and the Governor’s
School for the Arts Foundation, Inc., a blended
component unit.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Francis Marion, the Swamp Fox (D. L. Eklund)

Colonel Francis Marion (1732-1795) gained lasting fame in South Carolina lore
through his use of guerrilla tactics and daring cavalry raids during the Revolutionary
War. He was given the nickname “Swamp Fox” because his cunning battle strategies

kept British troops constantly on guard.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccooeeeeiiicis
Invested securities iending collateral
Accounts receivable, net....
Due from other funds...
Interfund receivables
Inventories.............
Other current assets........cooeeeviiiicnin s

Total current assSets..........oveveerreereeeercrccnnrriesienens

Long-term assets:
Investments...........
Advances to other funds

Total long-term assets............ociiiiniecn s

Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements.....
Buildings and improvements....
Machinery, equipment, and other
Construction in progress
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total property, plant, and equipment, net....................

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Insurance claims incurred but not reported
Due to other funds
Interfund payables
Deferred revenues
Securities lending collateral...
Notes payable.........ccccovevreenene.
Limited obligation bonds payable
Capital lease and installment debt
obligations payabie
Compensated absences payable
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable.

Total current liabilities............c.coceiiiiinn

Long-term liabilities:
Accrued liabilities... .
Insurance claims incurred but not reported.................
Advances from other funds....
Notes payable........................
Limited obligation bonds payable.
Capital lease and installment debt

obligations payable............c..cccovinninnii

Total long-term liabilities...........ccocooniiniiiiiinnn

Total liabilities

Fund Equity:
Contributed capital...............ccouivneniciini
Retained earnings

Total fund equity
Total liabilities and fund equity..........ccccconneennene
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L
Central
Health and State Supplies
Insurance Disability Accident General and Motor
Reserve Insurance Fund Services Equipment Pool
$ 94,051 $ 151,921 $ 51,768 $ 48,038 $ 1,054 $ 4292
36,461 130 45 8 — —
18,816 2,523 18,901 357 6 78
928 13,858 2,049 4,946 1,024 1,709
3,881 — — — —_ —
— — — 1,629 2,293 11
2,394 2 — — — —
156,531 168,434 72,763 54,978 4,377 6,090
176,141 22,861 — — — —
30,636 — — — — —
206,777 22,861 — — — —
_ — — 5,048 — 329
— — — 143,890 — 1,127
865 1,133 9,607 66,536 — 25,049
— — — 1,634 — —
(441) (545) (1,176) (97,364) — (15,040)
424 588 8,431 119,744 — 11,465
$ 363,732 $ 191,883 $ 81,194 $ 174,722 $ 4,377 $ 17,555
$ 98938 $ 29,681 $ 14,012 $ 7,656 $ 718 $ 545
53,233 76,280 14,632 — — —
17 111 42 620 79 98
— — — 2,150 1,000 —
38,494 2,185 17,762 — — —
36,461 130 45 8 — —_
— — — 94 - 254
— — — 2,170 — —
— — — 722 — —
248 251 305 2,387 — 114
— — 545 43 — —
227,391 108,638 47,343 15,850 1,797 1,011
— — 10,718 — — —
— — 15,430 — — _
— — — 17,910 — —
— — — 671 — 1,246
— — — 33,399 — —
— — — 9,181 — —
— — 26,148 61,161 — 1,246
227,391 108,638 73,491 77,011 1,797 2,257
—_ 46 — 62,536 — 305
136,341 83,199 7,703 35175 2,580 14,993
136,341 83,245 7,703 97,711 2,580 15,298
$ 363,732 $ 191,883 $ 81,194 $ 174,722 $ 4,377 $ 17,555



e I
Department of
Transportation Pension Other
Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Service tration Industries Service tions Totals
$ 17,476 $ 982 $ 2,722 1,828 — $ 374132
—_ 1 — —_ — 36,645
— 16 1,148 5910 — 47,755
— 37 1,856 79 (2,239) 24,247
— — — 2,824 (4,327) 2,378
— — 2,511 —_ —_ 6,444
_ _ — 5 — 2,401
17,476 1,036 8,237 10,646 (6,566) 494,002
— — — 5,590 — 204,592
— — — 15,002 (24,181) 21,457
— — — 20,592 (24,181) 226,049
— — — — —_ 5,377
— — — — — 145,017
10,041 2,935 9,093 92 — 125,351
— — — — — 1,634
(5.834) (1,280) (5,779) (49) — (127,508)
4,207 1,655 3,314 43 — 149,871
$ 21,683 $ 2,691 $ 11,551 31,281 (30,747) $ 869,922
$ — $ 729 $ 1,448 78 — $ 153,805
_ — — — — 144,145
— 403 224 645 (2,239) —
— — — 2,825 (4,327) 1,648
— — — — —_ 58,441
—_ 1 — — — 36,645
— — — — — 348
— — — — — 2,170
— — — — —_ 722
—_ 794 458 18 —_ 4,575
— — — — — 588
— 1,927 2,130 3,566 (6,566) 403,087
— — — — — 10,718
— — — — — 15,430
— — — 14,445 (24,181) 8,174
—_ — — — — 1,917
— - — — — 33,399
— — — — — 9,181
_ — — 14,445 (24,181) 78,819
- 1,927 2,130 18,011 (30,747) 481,906
10,041 — 5211 133 - 78,272
11,642 764 4,210 13,137 — 309,744
21,683 764 9,421 13,270 —_ 388,016
$ 21,683 $ 2,691 $ 11,551 31,281 (30,747) $ 869,922

State of South Carolina
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Equity

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating revenues:
Charges for ServiCes..............ooioiiiiii e
CONIBULIONS. ..ot raa e
Interest and other investment income..............ocoo

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
General operations and administration...............cenn
Benefits and CIaIMS..........ccceorenmeerie i
Depreciation ......................
Other operating eXPeNSES.............cociviirniniiecciiereneas

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
INtEreSt INCOME. .....eviieeeeeeeire et ceee e
Federal FeVENUE...............eveieiieiieeeeieeaaaaerse e eesreesanaassreessines
Interest EXPENSE. .......ccvoviiiiiiie s
Other nonoperating revenues (EXPeNnses)..........cc.cooovnrceececnns

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before operating transfers............coueeeeee

Operating transfers iN............ccooooe i
Operating transfers out

Net income (loss)

Retained earnings at beginning of year (restated)...............

Retained earnings at end of year

Contributed capital at beginning of year.............c.ccouiveinanins
Additions to contributed capital
Deductions from contributed capital

Fund equity at end of year
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Health Central
and State Supplies
Insurance Disability Accident General and
Reserve Insurance Fund Services Equipment
$ 66,498 $ 624628 $ 39,283 $ 74316 $ 10,905
22,890 14,786 — — —
89,388 639,414 39,283 74,316 10,805
37,121 119,573 5,306 59,628 11,077
23,971 553,566 31,438 — —
147 121 638 6,529 —
— — 137 338 —
61,239 673,260 37,519 66,495 11,077
28,149 (33,846) 1,764 7,821 (172)
— — 3,257 305 —
— — — 9 —
_ — — (3,326) —
(39) (64) — (430) 12
(39) (64) 3,257 (3,442) 12
28,110 (33,910) 5,021 4379 (160)
— — 7 3,166 —
(393) (252) — (1,342) —
27,717 (34,162) 5,028 6,203 (160)
108,624 117,361 2,675 28,972 2,740
136,341 83,199 7,703 35,175 2,580
- 7 — 62,553 -
— 39 —_ 8 —
— — - (28) -
$ 136,341 $ 83,245 $ 7,703 $ 97,711 $ 2,580

e ———— | ————— | Se— ——
_— e @ @$_—————




Department of

State of South Carolina

Transportation Pension Other

Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals
$ 12,030 $ 2,427 11,041 $ 19,336 $ 1,295 — $ 861,759
—_ — 93 — 11,137 — 11,230
— — — — 157 — 37,833
12,030 2,427 11,134 19,336 12,589 —_ 910,822
6,485 876 11,067 17,430 1,620 — 270,183
— —_ — — —_ —_ 608,975
4,130 70 497 521 11 — 12,664
5 2 111 11 — 610
10,620 948 11,675 17,962 1,637 — 892,432
1,410 1,479 (541) 1,374 10,952 — 18,390
22 — 117 — 1,703 —_ 5,404
— — — — — — 9
(23} — — — (1,379) — (4,728)
92) — (144) (18) 1,273 — 498
(93) —_ (27) (18) 1,597 — 1,183
1,317 1,479 (568) 1,356 12,549 —_ 19,573
9 — — — — (2,654) 528
(237) — (150) — (285) 2,654 (5)
1,089 1,479 (718) 1,356 12,264 — 20,096
13,904 10,163 1,482 2,854 873 — 289,648
14,993 11,642 764 4,210 13,137 —_ 309,744
327 9,652 8 3,857 133 —_ 76,537
33 2,688 —_ 1,354 — - 4,122
(55) (2,299) (8) —_ — — (2,387)
$ 15,298 $ 21,683 764 $ 9,421 $ 13,270 — $ 388,016




State of South Carolina

#

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (10SS)........ccooviiiiriiieiie e
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation .........cccoeoiiiiniiiii
Provision for loan losses and bad debts
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback........
Loss on disposition of property and equipment.......................
Interest on investments and interfund loans...................c.e
Other nonoperating revenues..............coceoe e
Other nonoperating expenses

Change in assets--decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, Net..........ccooooiiiiiii
Due from Federal government and other grantors ...................
Due from other funds ...........coooeeeiiiec e
Inventories.........ccccevevienieenne
Other current @ssets............ccocevieviiieiiiiiniiine e e

Change in liabilities--increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities......................cc.cccee
Insurance claims incurred but not reported..................cccceee
Due to other funds...........ooooeiieiiiene e
Deferred revenues .......................
Compensated absences payable................c...oon
Other liabilities, including retainages payable............................

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities..........ccmrennniincnn

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal payments received from other funds...........................
Principal payments made to other funds.................c..l
Receipt of interest from other funds...................
Interest payments made to other funds........................
Loans made to other funds...........ccccocveviiniiiiie e
Federal revenue.................. .
Operating transfers ...
Operating transfers out..............c.ccoooeeiienn

Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities.........cccovrcereriiinnninninnns
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Health
and State
Insurance Disability Accident General
Reserve Insurance Fund Services
$ 28,149 $ (33,846) $ 1,764 7.821
147 121 638 6,529
- — — (572)
—_ p— 23 J—
(22,890) (14,786) — —
— — — 59
(39) — — (2)
256 9 — (32)
2,390 620 16,935 1
— — — 44
(478) (794) 654 (1,246)
- — — (60)
57 — — —
(1,257) (5,325) 352 1,715
(9,263) 9,600 (8,238) -
(5) (59) (68) (238)
4,992 1,567 (16,578) —
7 31) 39 220
— — 316 2
2,066 (42,924) (4,163) 14,241
6,470 — — 420
— — — (1,494)
2,557 — — 8
— — — (947)
(1,139) — — —
— — — 9
— — 7 3,166
(393) (252) — (1,342)
7,495 (252) 7 (180)




State of South Carolina

R

Central Department of
Supplies Transportation Pension Other
and Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Equipment Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals

$ (172) $ 1,410 $ 1,479 $ (541) $ 1,374 $ 10,952 $ — $ 18,390
— 4,130 70 497 521 11 — 12,664

— — — — — 311 — 311
— — — — — — — (572}

— — — — — — — 23
— — — — — - — (37,676)

12 4 — 18 — 1,285 — 1,378
- — — - (12) (12) — (65)

_ 1 1 (8) (39) — — 186

30 13 — (16) 23 (5,901) — 14,095

— — — — — — — 44
(164) 334 — (37) (945) 72 319 (2,285)

349 1) —_ — (30) — — 258

— — — - — 5) — 52
(193) (85) — (295) 535 (107) — (4,660)
— — — — — — — (7,901)
55 (8) — 292 5 145 (319) (200)
- —_ — — — — — (10,019)

— 3 — 78 51 (37) — 330

— — — — — — — 318
(83) 5,799 1,550 {12) 1,483 6,714 — (15,329)

—_ —_ —_ —_ —_ 4,701 —_ 11,591
— — — —_ — (4,719) — (6,213)
—_ —_ —_ —_ —_ 1,703 —_ 4,268
— — — — — (1,379) — (2,326)
— - — — — — — (1,139)

— — — — — — — 9

— 9 — — — — (2,654) 528
— (237) — (150) — (285) 2,654 {5)

—_ (228) — (150) —_ 21 _ 6,713

Continued on Next Page
|
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment....
Proceeds from sale of notes payable....................
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds.......................
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds........................
Interest paymMents.........ccoocveviiiriiee e
Principal payments on capital leases and

installment debt obligations payable........................oo

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing activities.........c..ccervvrnivniiinscniiencnnes

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments..................c..ocoov i,
Purchase of investments.................ccocvii e
Interest on investments...........cc..cciiiiiiiii

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities.........cc.occce i

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..............
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..........c.ccevuvn.

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year............cccceevvinininninens

Noncash capital and financing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment through:
Transfers from other funds
DONGLIONS. .....eeveivieciie e
Total noncash capital and financing activities.................
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Health
and State
Insurance Disability Accident General
Reserve Insurance Fund Services
$ (28) $ (48) $ (4,520) $ (4,270)
— — — 765
— — — 8,577
— — — (2,000)
_ — — (2,364)
—_ — — (669)
(28) (48) {4,520) 39
75,119 315 — —
(51,642) (601) — —
17,916 14,289 3,024 297
41,393 14,003 3,024 297
50,926 (29,221) (5,652) 14,397
43,125 181,142 57,420 33,641
$ 94,051 $ 151,921 $ 51,768 $ 48,038
$ — $ — $ — $ —
$ — $ — $ - $ —




State of South Carolina

P —————

Central Department of
Supplies Transportation Pension Other
and Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Equipment Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals
$ — $ (5,601) $ — $ (329) $ (259) $ (8) $ — $ (15,063)
—_ 1,500 — — — — — 2,265
— — — — — - — 8,577
— — — — — — —_ (2,000)
— — — — — — — (2,364)
— — — — — —_ — (669)
—_ (4,101) —_ (329) (259) (8) —_ (9,254)
— — — - —_ — - 75,434
— - — — — (5,590) — (57,833)
— — — 117 — — — 35,643
—_ — —_ 117 — (5,590) —_ 53,244
(83) 1,470 1,550 (374) 1,224 1,137 -_ 35,374
1,137 2,822 15,926 1,356 1,498 691 — 338,758
$ 1,054 $ 4,292 $ 17,476 $ 982 $ 2,722 $ 1,828 $ —_ $ 374,132
$ — $ — $ 2,688 $ — $ — $ — $ - $ 2,688
— 20 — — — —_ — 20
$ — $ 20 $ 2,688 $ — $ - $ — $ — $ 2,708
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Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Archibald Rutledge
Archibald Rutledge (1883-1973), a native of Charleston, was the first person to be
designated Poet Laureate of South Carolina.
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State of South Carolina

{5

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Expendable Trust Funds_account for resources
the State holds as trustee. Both the principal and
earnings of ExFendable Trust Funds may be used
for purposes allowed under the trust agreements.
Ehed State uses the following Expendable Trust

unds:

_ Radioactive Waste Contingency Fund. A
private_company operates a low-level radioactive
waste disposal facility within the State. The State
and the company have entered into a trust agreement
with the State Treasurer as trustee. The company
has deposited monies into the trust fund to provide
for site cleanup in the event that there is seepage
into the groundwater or the site is abandoned.

Unemployment = Compensation  Benefits
Fund. This fund accounts for the State's
unemployment compensation benefits. Revenues
consist of taxes assessed on employers to pay
benefits to qualified unemployed persons.

Other Expendable Trust Funds. These funds,
a%}%regated for presentation purposes, account for
other miscellaneous expendable trust funds. These
are generally resources given to_the State through
trust agreements and provide for such items as
scholarship funds, maintenance and operation of
specific properties, and construction of monuments.

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

These funds account for resources the State
holds as trustee. The principal of these funds must
be preserved and only the earnings may be used for
the %)urposes allowed under the trust agreement.
Most of the resources in these funds were
bequeathed to the State via wills of deceased
persons.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

Pension Trust Funds account for the following
five public employee retirement systems that the
State administers:

South Carolina Retirement System. This is a
multiple-employer pension _system that benefits
employees of the State, public schools, and political
subdivisions of the State.

Police Officers’ Retirement System. This is a
multiple-employer pension system that benefits

golice officers and fire fighters employed by the
tate or its political subdivisions.

_ General Assembly Retirement System. This
is a single-employer pension system that benefits
members of the South Carolina General Assembly.

_Judges' and Solicitors’ Retirement System.
This is a sin le-emPloyer pension system_ that
benefits the judges of the State's Supreme Court
Court of Appeals, circuit courts, family courts, and
the State's circuit solicitors.

National Guard Pension System. The State
administers this single-employer pension system
that growdes a supplemental retirement benéfit to
members of the South Carolina National Guard.
The State is a nonemployer contributor to the
system.

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

Local Government Investment Pool. Excess
public monijes are deposited into this fund by
various local governmental units and other political
subdivisions of the State. The State Treasurer
invests these monies in order to allow these
participating ﬁgv_em_mental units to realize a hlihe;r

t

income on their investments by pooling their
mnvestments.
AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are custodial in nature. They
enerally represent amounts held by the State on
ehalf of third parties. The State uses the following

Agency Funds:

Deferred Compensation Plans. This fund
accounts for the Section 457, Section 401(k), and
Section 403(b) deferred compensation plans offered
to employees of the State, its component units, and
various local governmental units.

Insurance Company Deposits Fund. This
fund accounts for deposits which are required to be
glad&a by insurance companies in lieu of surety
onds.

Federal Interfund Activi(t‘y Fund. This fund
accounts for Federal grants and entitlements that are
first received by one State %%ency and eventually
will be distributed to another State agency.

Payroll Clearing Fund. This fund accounts for
employee deductions and contributions for the short
period” of time between the issuance of payroll
checks and payment to the proper recipient.

Other Agency Funds. Balances in these funds,
aggregated for presentation purposes, represent
amounts held for prisoners and patients of State
institutions, cash bonds, miscellaneous clearing
accounts, and other deposits.
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State of South Carolina

RN .
Combining Balance Sheet
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)
EXPENDABLE TRUST
Radioactive Unemployment Other
Waste Compensation  Expendable NONEXPENDABLE
Contingency Benefits Trust TRUST
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents...................cccccoeeinnn. $ 90,293 $ 17,318 $ 20,639 $ 1,626
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents................c.cccc.... — 733,586 — —_
INVeStMENES.....ccooiiiiieiie — — — -
Invested securities lending collateral ...................... 79 13 269 —
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES. .....oieeieeieiieeicee e 850 723 256 23
L G T PR —_ 35,040 — —_
Loans and notes..........cccoceeiiiiiiiiiie e — — 66 —
Due from Federal government...............cccccovernen, — 1,191 — —
Due from other funds...........ccccooiiiiic — 7 — —_
Other assets...........cooveiiiieiiiiiii e — —_ — —
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements..............ccooocevneeinienncnnen. — — — —
Buildings and improvements....................ccc — — — —
Machinery, equipment, and other........................... — — — —
Less: accumulated depreciation...............cccceeue. — — — —
Total assets.......ccceceriiirricirirccrcir e $ 91,222 $ 787,878 $ 21,230 $ 1,649
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............... $ 2,492 $ 6,511 $ 431 $ -
Tax refunds payable...........cccoovieeniiinincn, — 2,819 — —
Intergovernmental payables...............cccocoeevecinn. — — — —
Due to other funds...........ccocvivreeriiirinncniinoneesceeen — 167 —
Interfund payables...........c.c.coeiriciiicn — — — —
Deferred revenues..........c.ccooeevvuvenieenieenniienieenenns — 841 — —
DEPOSItS....cevierreeerecrer e — — — —
Amounts held in custody for others........................ — — — —
Deferred compensation............cccccocvviviieeriiiennnenn — — — —
Securities lending collateral.................cccccoennnen. 79 13 269 —
Total liabilities..........cccceevrineriicrninnencicnnasennnaee 2,571 10,351 700 —
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Pension and other benefits.................cccovreee. —_ 777,527 — —
External investment pool participants.................. — — — —
Endowment and similar funds.............................. — — — 1,466
Long-term loans and notes receivable................. — — 66 —
Unreserved, undesignated..................cccceeeeieennees 88,651 —_ 20,464 183
Total fund balances.........cccocoorrreicmicnicinreenaes 88,651 777,527 20,530 1,649
Total liabilities and fund balances.................... $ 91,222 $ 787,878 $ 21,230 $ 1,649
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#

PENSION TRUST
Judges’

South Police General and National
Carolina Officers’ Assembly Solicitors’ Guard
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension

System System System System System
$ 1,767,912 $ 195,403 $ 5,527 10,211 $ 6,512
14,359,025 1,610,498 33,217 70,668 —
1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 —
320,290 34,925 517 1,251 87
13,695 3,217 —_ 71 —
524 54 1 3 —
4,279 437 13 20 _
— — — — 4
(617) (63) (2) ) (3)
$ 17,789,585 $ 2,031,567 $ 45,324 90,855 $ 6,600
$ 59,250 $ 842 $ 1 6 $ —
14,262 473 58 _— —
1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 —
1,397,989 188,411 6,110 8,640 —
16,391,596 1,843,156 39,214 82,215 6,600
16,391,596 1,843,156 39,214 82,215 6,600
$ 17,789,585 $ 2,031,567 $ 45,324 90,855 $ 6,600

Continued on Next Page
M

R
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

FIDUCIARY FUNDS (Continu

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

ed)

Cash and cash equivalents..............ccocccovinicinii

Cash on deposit with fiscal agents

Investments.........

Invested securities lending collateral ...............ccocoeceiiiiiiinne

Receivables, net:
Accounts............

Loans and notes
Due from Federal

GOVEINMENt......c.ccoveiiiiiiiiii e

Due from Other fUNAS.........ooovvemiiieiie et

Other assets........

Property, plant, and equipment:

Land and improvements..............c.occiriicnieninniiiiie e

Buildings and improvements

Machinery, equipment, and other.................ccccooi

Less: accumulated depreciation............ccccocciiiniiiniiinn e

Total assets.....cccovvevinrirereririnininininnnn

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities................c...cccooviinnn

Tax refunds payab
Intergovernmental
Due to other funds
Interfund payables
Deferred revenues
Deposits...............

LB e
payables.........cooiiiiici s

Amounts held in custody for others................cviiiiinnn,

Deferred compensation

Securities lending collateral

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Pension and other benefits................
External investment pool participants

Endowment and similar funds................eveveiiiivieiiiiiinnviieriieeeee

Long-term loans and notes receivable....................c..cce
Unreserved, undesignated.................cccoooiiiinnni

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances........ccccccecimimimrcreeeceimrnreneranee.
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]
INVESTMENT
TRUST
Local
Government Deferred
Investment Compensation
Pool Plans
$ 786,806 $ —
— 1,127,905
270 1,817
— 30,142
- 5,574
$ 787,076 $ 1,165,438
$ 14,413 $ —
— 1,165,438
14,413 1,165,438
772,663 —
772,663 —
$ 787,076 $ 1,165,438



State of South Carolina

AGENCY
Insurance Federal
Company Interfund Payroll Other
Deposits Activity Clearing Agency Eliminations Totals
$ — $ 41 $ 9525 $ 225734 $ — $ 3,137,547
— — —_ — — 733,586
347,561 — — 19,264 — 17,568,138
— — — 113 — 1,526,732
— — — 2,686 — 363,695
— — — 5,373 — 40,413
— — — 95 — 30,303
— 205 — — — 1,396
—_ 5 43,982 5,242 (56,443) 9,776
— — — — — 5,574
— — — — — 582
— — — — — 4,749
— — — — — 4
— — — — — (688)
$ 347,561 $ 251 $ 53,507 $ 258,507 $ (56,443) $ 23,421,807
$ —_ $ — $ 221 $ 4,410 $ — $ 88,577
— — — 158 — 2,977
— — — 130 — 130
— 136 9,432 85,605 (56,443) 53,690
— — 5 — — 5
— — — — — 841
— — — 526 — 526
347,561 115 43,849 167,565 — 559,090
— — — — — 1,165,438
— — — 113 — 1,526,732
347,561 251 53,507 258,507 (56,443) 3,398,006
— — — — — 19,140,308
— — — — — 772,663
— — — — — 1,466
— — — — — 66
— — — — — 109,298
— — — — — 20,023,801
$ 347,561 $ 25 $ 53,507 $ 258,507 $ (56,443) $ 23,421,807



State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..........................

Receivables:
Contributions.........cccooovieiviiiies
Employer long-term...........cccconmneinn
Accrued interest
Unsettled investment sales .......................
Due from other funds...............c.coeiinnnn.

Total receivables.........c.cccccooveevcreinnnns

Investments, at fair value:
United States government securities.........
United States government agencies and
government-insured securities..................
Corporate bonds
Financial and other..........c.c.cccoviininnnnnn.

Total investments...........cccoccevinnnnnnne
Invested securities lending collateral.........

Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation...........................

Total assets.....cccccverereriimrirircrircesnenens

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable—unsettled investment
purchases
Due to other funds............ccccco i
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.....

Securities lending collateral........................
Total liabilities...........cccceecerisnerrinnns

Net assets held in trust
for pension benefits...................
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39,214

$ 82,215

$ 6600 $ 18,362,781

Judges'
South Police General and National
Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors’ Guard
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension
System System System System System Totals
1,767,912 § 195,403 $ 5527 $ 10,211 $ 6512 § 1,985,565
75,085 10,620 45 291 — 86,041
1,231 2,600 — — — 3,831
188,987 21,705 472 960 87 212,211
54,987 — — — — 54,987
13,695 3,217 — 71 — 16,983
333,985 38,142 517 1,322 87 374,053
2,655,274 272,138 8,560 9,894 — 2,945,866
4,164,739 409,712 8,321 23,103 — 4,605,875
5,066,486 612,227 11,952 26,210 — 5,716,875
2,472,526 316,421 4,384 11,461 — 2,804,792
14,359,025 1,610,498 33,217 70,668 — 16,073,408
1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 — 1,526,258
4,186 428 12 20 1 4,647
17,789,585 2,031,567 45,324 90,855 6,600 19,963,931
56,279 — — — — 56,279
14,262 473 58 — — 14,793
2,971 842 1 6 — 3,820
1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 — 1,526,258
1,397,989 188,411 6,110 8,640 — 1,601,150
16,391,596 $ 1,843,156 §



State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Assets

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Local Government
Investment Pool

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents............c...cccccocce i, $ 786,806

Accrued interest receivable...........c...ccc.ci 270
Total aSSets. ... e iriecccrrrr . 787,076

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.................c...c........ 14,413
Total liabilities.......c....ccoinvirniininiincnensinnn s 14,413

Net assets held in trust

for pool participants..........cccccvvscmrivceniienrenas $ 772,663
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Radioactive Unemployment Other
Waste Compensation Expendable
Contingency Benefits Trust Totals
Revenues:
Taxes, other........cccooiiiiiiiii $ — $ 177,069 $ — $ 177,069
Licenses, fees, and permits.............................. 627 —_ 50 677
Interest and other investment income................ 5,687 47,687 1,327 54,701
Federal........cccoovvvveeieeeii e, — 7,499 — 7,499
Contributions.............oovii e — — 319 319
Other. ..o — 1,508 199 1,707
Total revenues......ccevveeeeerieirircreeeeeeerenrenes 6,314 233,763 1,895 241,972
Expenditures:
Current:
General government.................. — 174,017 1,150 175,167
Education..........ccocoiiiiiiiii e — — 2 2
Health and environment...............ccccooieieiinn. — — 20 20
Social Services...........covviive — — 19 19
Administration of justice............................. — — 34 34
Resources and economic development........... — — 6 6
Intergovernmental.................ooocci — — 4 4
Total expenditures............ccoceevmeeeeeniinnnnne. — 174,017 1,235 175,252
Revenues over expenditures............ccoeeeeeerrnnn. 6,314 59,746 660 66,720
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in............................ — — 46 46
Operating transfers out.....................coo — (928) (50) (978)
Total other financing uses......................... — (928) (4) (932)
Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses....................... 6,314 58,818 656 65,788
Fund balances at beginning of year (restated) 82,337 718,709 19,874 820,920
Fund balances at end of year...........ccccccuverrenn. $ 88,651 $ 777,527 $ 20,530 $ 886,708
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, 1997 Additions Deductions June 30, 1998
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS
Assets:
Investments.............oooeeeiii e $ 986,719 $ 169,187 $ 28,001 $ 1,127,905
Accounts receivable..............c..oo 3,207 92,106 93,496 1,817
Loans and notes receivable.... 25,069 5,073 — 30,142
Other @ssets............cccviiieiiiiiiiiieee e 5,306 18,012 17,744 5,574
Total @aSSetS.....ccoercrerirrrrrcrresceresercsereserrrnesssereerns $ 1,020,301 $ 284,378 $ 139,241 § 1,165,438
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation.............c...ccoeveieiiiiiiiieeec $ 1,020,301 $ 191,188 $ 46,051 $ 1,165,438
Total labilities.......ccccovvrvrvererenrnerereeeenerese e sesssssesesees $ 1,020,301 $ 191,188 $ 46,051 $ 1,165,438
INSURANCE COMPANY DEPOSITS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............cc.occovveivenecncne $ 22924 $ 58,154 $ 81,078 $ —
Investments...............coooiiee e 314,168 157,243 123,850 347,561
Total @SSetS......oocvcvieererirccrcrercrenecneerensneeseerenerseens $ 337,092 $ 215,397 §$ 204,928 $ 347,561
Liabilities:
Amounts held in custody for others.....................cco... $ 337,092 $ 134319 § 123,850 $ 347,561
Total liabilities........c.ccocrvvrininsiiiriinccenene $ 337,092 $ 134,319 $ 123,850 $ 347,561
FEDERAL INTERFUND ACTIVITY
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents......... $ — $ 17,570 % 17,529 $ 41
Due from Federal government.... - 645 205 645 205
Due from other funds...............cccooviiieinn e — 5 — 5
Total @SSetS.....c.ccvverreirereerreereere s s e s e e ssaesereerenne $ 645 §$ 17,780 $ 18174 $ 251
Liabilities:
Intergovernmental payables.............c..cccooeieiii L $ 10 $% 27 % 37 % —
Due to other funds................c.coeviiiiiiiiie 262 164 290 136
Interfund payables...............c.ccvernn. 343 — 343 —
Amounts held in custody for others.... 30 16,183 16,098 115
Total liabilities..........ccccccciceicnnrcrriniveenrireree s $ 645 $ 16,374 §$ 16,768 $ 251

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, 1997 Additions Deductions June 30, 1998
PAYROLL CLEARING
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents................ccoociininnnnnn. $ 9296 § 939,845 $ 939,616 $ 9,525
Due from other funds.............ccoooiiiiciiiiii s 41,495 43,982 41,495 43,982
Total @SSetS....cccceveerimrernesrinsisercenee s ssanenene $ 50,791 § 983,827 § 981,111 § 53,507
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................... $ 192 §$ 221§ 192§ 221
Due to otherfunds...........c.ccccccciiiiiinnnnnns 9,175 9,437 9,180 9,432
Interfund payables..............ccooeiiii 5 5 5 5
Amounts held in custody for others 41,419 803,426 800,996 43,849
Total liabilities......cc.ccceerenrcrnrine i, $ 50,791 $ 813,089 §$ 810,373 $ 53,507
OTHER AGENCY
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents................ccocveviiniene $ 229811 § 1,720,185 $ 1,724,262 $ 225,734
INVESEMENES. ....coiiiiiiieii et 16,507 2,794 37 19,264
Invested securities lending collateral.... 3,150 113 3,150 113
Accounts receivable..........c.ccoo i 2,424 3,091 2,829 2,686
Taxes receivable............cccoooccvviiiiiiii — 5,373 — 5,373
Loans and notes receivable 78 95 78 95
Due from other funds....................... 4,257 5,795 4810 5,242
Other @SSELS........ovivvveiiieiiiiiriie et reeenes b baenenes 4 — 4 —
Total aSSets.....cccrerererrmreriinerieerirensninneriaesstnannenns $ 256,231 $ 1,737,446 $ 1,735170 $ 258,507
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................... 3 4,447 $ 4948 $ 4985 3 4,410
Tax refunds payable...........c.ccooecis — 158 — 158
Intergovernmental payables... 525 130 525 130
Due to other funds.................. 85,081 90,185 89,661 85,605
DEPOSIES....oveeiieireieeii it 526 526 526 526
Amounts held in custody for others.......................ccoce 162,502 1,323,080 1,318,017 167,565
Securities lending collateral...............ccoooeiiie 3,150 113 3,150 113
Total llabilities........ccecererercrmrarresnesssmsiserssesinesanne $ 256,231 $ 1,419,140 $ 1,416,864 $ 258,507

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

[ ]
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
AGENCY FUNDS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance
July 1, 1997 Additions Deductions June 30, 1998
TOTALS--ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............c.ccccooeiiiii e, $ 262,031 $ 2735754 $ 2,762485 $ 235,300
INVEStMENtS........cvviiiiiie e 1,317,394 329,224 151,888 1,494,730
Invested securities lending collateral............................. 3,150 113 3,150 113
Accounts receivable.............c.c.c.ccoeiiiii s 5,631 95,197 96,325 4,503
Taxes receivable..........c.oooivvieiii e — 5,373 — ) 5,373
Loans and notes receivable......... 25,147 5,168 78 30,237
Due from Federal government................occcoiiniiees 645 205 645 205
Due from other funds.............ccccciii, 45,752 49,782 46,305 49,229
Other assets..........oooiiiiiiiiii e, 5,310 18,012 17,748 5,574
Total assets........ocevromnirnncire e, $ 1,665,060 $ 3,238,828 $ 3,078,624 $ 1,825,264
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................... 3 4639 $ 5169 $ 5177 $ 4,631
Tax refunds payable............. — 158 — 158
Intergovernmental payables.. 535 157 562 130
Duetootherfunds...............oooooiiiiiiic e 94,518 99,786 99,131 95,173
Interfund payables..............cccoooiiiiii e 348 5 348 5
DEPOSItS.....cccvvierieiereer e 526 526 526 526
Amounts held in custody for others....................cccee. 541,043 2,277,008 2,258,961 559,090
Deferred compensation............ccccoi i, 1,020,301 191,188 46,051 1,165,438
Securities lending collateral.................c...oooo. 3,150 113 3,150 113
Total liabilities.........cccecereerererercrnremrisnrsseersenesenensenene $ 1,665,060 $ 2,574,110 $ 2,413,906 $ 1,825,264
- o |
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Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Edgar Allan Brown

Born in Aiken, Edgar Allan Brown (1888-1975) began a career of more than 50 years in the
General Assembly in 1921. In 1942 Brown was elected President Pro Tempore of the
Senate and Chairman of the Finance Committee, positions he held until 1971. Brown was
noted for fiscal responsibility in state expenditures as welil as for establishing a modern
highway system and the educational television network.




State of South Carolina

R

General Fixed Assets Account Group

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is assets except those accounted for in the Proprietary
maintained to account for fixed assets acquired or Funds, Discretely Presented Component Units,
constructed for use by the State for general Fiduciary Funds, and Higher Education Funds.

governmental purposes.” These include all' fixed

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Solomon Blatt (Charles Mason Crowson)

The son of poor Jewish immigrants, Sol Blatt (1896-1986) became one of the most powerful South Carolina
lawmakers of his generation. A native of Barnwell, Blatt served in the South Carolina House of Representatives
for 56 years and was speaker of the House for over three decades from 1937-1946 and from 1951-1973.

[ e
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State of South Carolina

Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Buildings, Machinery,
Land and Improvements, Equipment,
Function Improvements and Utility Plant and Other Totals
General government....................cee. $ 12,146 $ 153,984 $ 83,665 $ 249,795
Education.......cc..ooeiiii 5,570 111,152 338,058 454,780
Health and environment........................... 13,103 206,974 136,427 356,504
Social ServiCes...........oovvvcveeeeeeeieeeeiinn, 813 15,256 43,937 60,006
Administration of justice.................ccccce. 6,275 457,499 119,646 583,420
Resources and economic development.... 159,857 69,167 91,981 321,005
Transportation..........c..cccvvievieviiereriee e 3,336 63,012 207,223 273,571
Total general fixed assets allocated

1 (o0 1013 Lod 101 -3 $ 201,100 $ 1,077,044 $ 1,020,937 2,299,081
Construction in progress.......................... 57,824
Total general fixed assets..........c........ $ 2,356,905

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Henry Timrod

A member of the “Charleston School” of antebellum intellectuals, Henry Timrod’s
(1828-1867) nationalistic and sentimental verse concerning the Civil War and its
aftermath garnered for Timrod the title of Poet Laureate of the Confederacy.

154



State of South Carolina

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

July 1, 1997

Balance as Adjusted

Previously Adjust- July 1, 1997 June 30, 1998

Function Reported ments® Balance Additions Retirements Balance
General government................ $ 224293 $ (5179) $ 219114 $ 39,938 $ 9257 § 249,795
Education.............ccooeeeiviiinnnnn, 439,738 (3,091) 436,647 22,357 4,224 454,780
Health and environment........... 354,104 (6,476) 347,628 25,058 16,182 356,504
Social Services.........cceuvvivinnennns 57,798 (2,959) 54,839 7,396 2,229 60,006
Administration of justice........... 577,581 (3,362) 574,219 18,525 9,324 583,420
Resources and economic
development.............cconeeen. 303,188 (4,540) 298,648 27,023 4,666 321,005

Transportation..........c.ccccceeeneee 268,452 — 268,452 17,366 12,247 273,571
Construction in progress.......... 78,695 — 78,695 47,428 68,299 57,824

Total general fixed assets... $ 2,303,849 §$ (25,607) $ 2,278,242 $ 205091 § 126,428 §$ 2,356,905

®The adjustments resulted from changes in fixed asset capitalization policies.

Ann Pamela Cuningham

Born in Laurens, Ann Cuningham (1816-
1875) founded the Mt. Vernon Ladies
Association of the Union in 1853. Largely
through her lobbying and fundraising efforts,
Mt. Vernon was preserved as a national
shrine to George and Martha Washington. in web version of CAFR

Photograph is not available
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Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Modjeska Simkins

Modjeska Simkins (1899-1992), a native of Columbia, fought a lifelong battle to protect the
civil liberties of all people. After beginning a career in education, Mrs. Simkins took on a

major leadership role in the state NAACP where she served as Secretary for 15 years and
saw the number of branches increase from 10 to 110.
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State of South Carolina

Higher Education Funds

Financial _activities of the State's higher
education institutions are reported in the Higher
Education Funds. The four-year institutions are:

The Citadel . |

Clemson Umyersﬁy . .

Coastal Carolina University ]

The College of Charleston (including an
Undergraduate School, known as the
College of Charleston, and a Graduate
School, known as the University of
Charleston) o

Francis Marion University

Lander University | )

The Medical University of South Carolina

South Carolina State University

The University of South Carolina

Winthrop University

Area technical colleges include:

Aiken Technical College
Central Carolina Technical College
Chesterfield-Marlboro Technical College
Denmark Technical College
Florence-Darlington Technical College
Greenville Technical College
Horry-Georgetown Technical College
Midlands Technical College,
Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical College
Piedmont Technical College
Spartanburg Technical College

echnical College of the Lowcountry
Tri-County Technical College
Trident Technical CQl]elge
Williamsburg Technical College
York Technical College

Higher Education Funds include the following
individual funds:

CURRENT FUNDS

Current Funds account for resources that higher
education institutions may use for any purpose in
carrying out their primary objectives.

Unrestricted Current Funds. These funds
account for currently expendable resources. = The
majority of these funds are completely unrestricted.
Certain” institutions, however, have reserved or
designated small portions of available resources for
various operating purposes specific to the individual
mstitution.

Restricted Current Funds.  These funds
account for resources that donors or other outside
agencies have restricted for specific current
operating purposes.

LOAN FUNDS

Loan Funds account for resources available for
loans to students, faculty, or staff of higher
education institutions.

ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR FUNDS

These funds account for endowments and quasi-
endowments. These funds are similar to trust funds.
The State must comply with the terms of any
applicable agreements.

PLANT FUNDS

Plant Funds account for transactions involving
physical properties of the higher education
nstitutions.

Unexpended Plant Funds. The Unexpended
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources, that
institutions have available to finance the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of physical properties.
Resources that institutions have set aside for the
renewal and replacement of institutional properties
are also recorded in this fund.  Assets under
construction may be accounted for in this fund or in
the Investment in Plant Funds.

Retirement of Indebtedness Funds. The
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds subgroup
includes amounts to pay debt service and to retire
indebtedness on institutional properties.

Investment in Plant Funds. The Investment in
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that
the institution has expended for (and thus has
invested m(} its properties and any related
outstanding debt.

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds account for amounts that higher
educafion nstitutions hold as custodians or fiscal
agents for others.

FOUNDATIONS AND INSTITUTES FUNDS

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for
certain component units of the State's colleges and
universities. All component units meet the criteria
for blending but are presented in a separate column
because they use a basis of accountln% different
from the one followed by the State's colleges and
universities.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS
June 30, 1998

(Expressed in Thousands) CURRENT FUNDS
ENDOWMENT
LOAN AND SIMILAR
Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..................ccccoeve i, $ 265,333 $ 11,831 $ 4,560 $ 51,086
investments............c..cooiiiiiee 15,802 5,159 714 48,001
Invested securities lending collateral 98 18 5 15
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES.....ooiiiiiiii ittt 10,505 942 102 104
Patient and student..............c..cooveeiieiie 81,776 — — —
Student loans — — 46,690 —_
Loans and notes...........c.coovrrinicne e — 114 —_ —
Due from Federal government and other grantors............. 849 51,560 112 —
Due from other Higher Education Funds 67,211 11,937 49 7
Due fromother funds ... 13,624 7,078 — —
Interfund receivables...............ccccoooeiiiiiii 2,101 — —_ —
Advances to other funds... — — — 855
Inventories.............cccoveiiiiinniene. 23,962 — — —
Prepaid iong-term operating lease.. — — — —
Otherassets.............ccoooiiiii 19,735 369 107 1,784
Investment in joint venture..............c..c — — — —
Property, plant, and equipment, net......................ccocoen — — — —
Total assets $ 500,996 $ 89,008 $ 52,339 $ 101,852
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............................ $ 65,394 3 7,227 $ 216 $ 482
Due to other Higher Education Funds................cccceee...... 20,115 24,289 1 228
Duetoother funds..........c...coevinveciiii e 6,992 173 —_ —
interfund payables 2101 — — —
Advances from other funds..............ccococeiinniiiiii. — — — —_
Deferredrevenues................ocoocereeeeceeeeeee e e 36,786 432 —_ —_
DePOSItS........eieeeeieee et 3,597 — — —_
Amounts held in custody for others..................cococei, — — — —
Securities lending collateral............ 98 18 5 15
Notes payable...........ccoii e 195 — — —_
Generai obligation bonds payable......................cccccceene. — — — —
Revenue bonds payable — — —_ —
Certificates of participation payable................cccoceeene — — — —
Capital lease and instaliment debt obligations payable....... — — — —
Compensated absences payable................c.ooceveneeennnnn. 81,547 15 — —
Other liabilities, including retainages payabile..................... 875 — — 18
Total liabilities. 217,700 32,154 222 743
Fund Balances:
Investment in plant............cccooiiiiiii e — — —_ —
Reserved for:
Restricted fund balance................cooooooiiiii — 56,854 6,205 —_
Federal government grants refundable........................... — — 45,267 —_
Endowment and similar funds................c..ooooooiiieeennen. — —_ — 54334
Debt requirements — — — —
Encumbrances..............cccooiiiiiiiiie e 2,623 — — —
Other special pUrposes............ccccoevveeveereciceeeeee e 5116 — — —
Unreserved:
Designated for future years' expenditures....................... — — — —_
Designated for loan funds...............ccccocooeeiiiiiiccc, — — 645 —
Designated for endowment and similar funds.................. — — — 46,775
Designated for piant funds — —_ — —
Designated for special purposes............cc.ccoccoviereeiennnan, 7,744 —_ —_ —
Undesignated................ccooiiiiriiiin e 267,813 — — —
Total fund balances 283,296 56,854 52,117 101,109
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 500,996 $ 89,008 $ 52,339 $ 101,852
L e -
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State of South Carolina

#

PLANT FUNDS
Retirement Investment FOUNDATIONS
of in AGENCY AND
Unexpended Indebtedness Plant FUNDS INSTITUTES Eliminations Totals
$ 152,822 $ 45135 $ - $ 3523 3 53,741 $ — $ 588,031
4,794 — — 4,332 39,851 — 118,653
77 14,393 — 6 —_ —_ 14,612
2,749 427 — 601 1,362 — 16,782
—_ — — — 24,347 — 106,123
— — — — 14 — 46,704
—_ — —_ — — — 114
1,489 — — — 857 — 54,867
17,164 689 —_ 1,588 4,208 (102,853) —
545 — — 96 — 110) 21,233
— — — — — (2,101} -
—_ 510 —_ — 31,678 (33,043) —
—_ —_ —_ —_ 402 —_ 24,364
— — — — 17,673 — 17,673
477 199 — — 14,544 — 37,215
— — — — 3,675 — 3,675
40,082 — 2,877,627 — 69,965 — 2,987,674
$ 220199 § 61,353 § 2,877,627 $ 10,146 $ 262,307 $  (138,107) $ 4,037,720
$ 17,237 $ 6,139 $ —_ $ 3,024 $ 11,657 $ — $ 111,376
3,420 6,453 — 38 48,309 (102,853) —
— — — — — (110) 7,055
—_ —_ 694 —_ _ (2,101) 694
510 — 34,237 — — (33,043) 1,704
412 873 — — 1,219 —_ 39,722
— — — — — 3,597
—_ — — 7,070 — — 7,070
77 14,393 — 6 — — 14,612
3,826 — 33,099 — 115,322 — 152,442
15,428 — 69,037 — —_ — 84,465
9,571 19 221,425 — 13,667 — 244,682
— — — — 21,466 — 21,466
— —_ 20,420 —_ 2,573 —_ 22,993
— — — — 4,596 — 86,158
5,070 — 231 8 1,299 — 7,501
55,551 27,877 379,143 10,146 220,108 (138,107) 805,537
—_ — 2,498,484 — — — 2,498,484
87,700 23,174 — — 12,094 — 186,027
—_ — — — —_ —_ 45,267
— —_ —_ — —_ —_ 54,334
— — — —_ 12,219 — 12,219
—_ —_ —_ — — — 2,623
781 —_ —_ — — — 5,897
— _ — — 1,870 — 1,870
— — — — —_ — 645
— — — — — — 46,775
76,167 10,302 - — — — 86,469
— — — — 5,944 - 13,688
— — — — 10,072 — 277,885
164,648 33,476 2,498,484 — 42,199 — 3,232,183
$ 220,199 $ 61,353 $ 2,877,627 $ 10,146 $ 262,307 $ (138,107) $ 4,037,720
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Arthur Middleton

A wealthy planter, Arthur Middleton (1742-1787) was elected in 1776 to the Continental
Congress, where he signed the Declaration of Independence. Middleton also helped to draft
the South Carolina Constitution of 1776 and was a member of the South Carolina Senate.
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—

Schedules--Budgetary General Fund

The Budgetary General Fund, which The schedules in this section have been
corresponds to the General Funds column in the Fre ared using the budgetary basis of accounting.
Appropriation Act, is the State's gleneral operating In South Carolina, the budgetary basis of accounting

a

fund. The Budgetary General Fund _ differs is the cash basis with certain eXceptions. The Notes
significantly from the GAAP-basis General Fund. to the Financial Statements include a more detailed
description of the budgetary basis of accounting.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Battle of Cowpens (William Ranney)

The Battle of Cowpens, on January 17, 1781, was a major victory over the British in the southern campaign of
the Revolutionary War. Colonel Daniel Morgan defeated a much larger British force under Banastre Tarleton by
the use of innovative battlefield tactics amidst the cow pens of a Spartan district farmer.

|
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State of South Carolina

Appropriation Activity
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Original
Function Appropriations Adjustments®

Legislative................................. RPN PPO $ 28,729 $ 4,374
Judicial............... s B SO TP PRREPRO e 36,811 3,386
Executive and administrative..................... e s 155,372 19,828
Educational.................ccooi 2,185,075 83,665
Health. ... 777,572 40,172
Social rehabilitation services........................., 119,009 22,027
Correctional and public safety......................i 477,739 44,313
Conservation, natural resources, and development.................... 113,685 33,965
Regulatory............ 54,684 3,266
Transportation...... ... 586 (3)
Dbt SBIVICE. ..o 149,892 707
MiSCRIANEOUS .. ...oeiiii e 487,834 47,715

Totals--appropriations for expenditures...............ccocueeeenee 4,586,988 303,415
Transfer to designation for capital and nonrecurring................... 86,920 —

Totals--appropriations for expenditures and

intrafund transfers...........cooverviireciiimirece e e $ 4,673,908 $ 303,415

Note: See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for information on budgetary accounting and reporting.

*The adjustments shown above (expressed in thousands) may be summarized as follows:

Appropriations brought forward from 1996-97....................... $ 294,761
Open-ended appropriations. ... 8,654
Total adjustments..........ccceviiniiiniiinncccici s $ 303,415
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P —

Appropriations

Adjusted Intrafund To Be Lapsed
Appropriations Expenditures Transfer Carried Forward Appropriations
$ 33,103 $ 28,500 $ — $ 4,588 $ 15
40,197 36,704 — 3,476 17
175,200 134,223 — 38,851 2,126
2,268,740 2,245,397 — 22,944 399
817,744 805,797 — 11,947 —
141,036 135,420 — 5,616 —
522,062 488,235 — 33,817 —
147,650 140,257 — 7,370 23
57,950 55,332 — 2,618 —
583 583 — — —
150,599 150,574 — — 25
535,549 533,357 — — 2,192
4,890,403 4,754,379 - 131,227 4,797
86,920 — 86,920 — —
$ 4,977,323 $ 4,754,379 $ 86,920 $ 131,227 $ 4,797

Mary McLeod Bethune (Simmie L.
Knox)
From humble beginnings in rural South
Carolina, Mary McLeod Bethune (1875-
1955) became one of the foremost black
educators and leaders of her time. In
1904 she founded what would later
= - become Bethune-Cookman College in
PhOtograph is not available Florida, and in 1935 she was appointed
in web version of CAFR to the Advisory Board of the National
Youth Administration. She later became
head of the Administration’s Negro
Division.
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e

General Fund Reserve Activity

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Article III, Section 36, of the South Carolina
Constitution establishes requirements relating to the
General Fund Reserve, a reserve primarily designed
to prevent Budgetary General Fund deficits.  On
November 4, 1984, a Constitutional amendment
changed the funding requirement from five to four
percent of the Budgetary General Fund revenue of
the latest completed fiscal year. Provisions of the
amendment also allowed the percentage rate to be
reduced to three or increased to five percent by a
special vote of the General Assembly. An act that

November 4, 1988, a Constitutional amendment was
passed which permanently changed the funding
requirement for the Reserve to three percent of the
Budgetary General Fund revenue of the latest
completed fiscal year.

f amounts are withdrawn from the Reserve, the
State Constitution establishes a schedule for
restoring the Reserve to full funding within three
years.

Key amounts (dollars in thousands) for the
General Fund Reserve for the last ten fiscal years

took effect on March9, 1988, reduced the are:
percentage rate to three percent. On
Actual
Start-of- End-of-
Fiscal Year Ended Year End-of-Year Full-Funding Year %
June 30 Balance Deposits Withdrawals Balance Amount? Funded?®
1989 $ 86,092 $ 7217 $ (5,310) $ 87,999 $ 87,999 100%
1990 87,999 — — 87,999 94,114 94%
1991 87,999 6,115 {60,687) 33,427 98,843 34%
1992 33,427 4,729 (38,156) — 99,163 0%
1993 — 66,832 — 66,832 100,248 67%
1994 66,832 43,346 — 110,178 110,178 100%
1995 110,178 10,557 — 120,735 120,735 100%
1996 120,735 6,271 — 127,006 127,006 100%
1997 127,006 3,374 — 130,380 130,380 100%
1998 130,380 — — 130,380 137,650 95% ¢

aEquals 3% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year.
bEquals (End-of-Year Balance/Full Funding Amount) x 100.
As required by Part III of the 1998-99 Supplemental Appropriations Act, $7,269,750 was transferred to the

Reserve on September 1, 1998, to provide full funding.
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State of South Carolina

Funds Earmarked for Public Education

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Part I, Section 1, of the 1997-98 A&)prozpriation
Act and Sections 12-21-1130, 12-33-30, 12-33-50,
61-4-250, 61-6-4260, and 61-6-4270 of the South
Carolina Code of Laws require that the State's
portion of those Budgeta eneral Fund revenues
shown below be expended only to support the

bonds applicable to those agencies) and for other
school purposes. These legal requirements are
considered to be satisfied if the expenditures from
Budgetary General Funds and Capital Reserve
Funds for these particular agencies and for other
school purposes exceeds the State's portion of the

specific public education agencies listed below

> _ 3 I specified revenues.
(including debt service on capital improvement

Gross budgetary-basis revenues:

Retail sales tax (4%) and excise tax-casual sales.................................... $ 1,741,801

Alcoholic liquors tax--60% portion..................cooiii 20,400

Beer and wine tax--penalties and fines........................... 293

SOft ArNKS £aX. ... 19,295

Budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation......................... 1,781,789
Total budgetary-basis revenues earmarked for public

education (95.5% of budgetary-basis revenues

available for appropriation)......c.cciiiiiiii e 1,701,608 *
Budgetary-basis expenditures:

Department of Education......................o 1,479,274

State Board of Technical and Comprehensive Education............................. 158,117

Educational Television CommisSion..........ccoviririiiiiii e 21,343

Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School..............cooiiiii e, 2,898

School forthe Deaf and Blind. ...t e 12,507

John De La Howe SChool............oooiiiiiiii e 3,832

Debt senvice on capital improvement bonds applicable to

ADOVE A0ENCIES . e i 23,853

Other SChOOI PUIPOSES ......c.ooerr ettt 12,487 °
Total budgetary-basis expenditures for public education........................ 1,714,311
Excess of budgetary-basis expenditures over revenues

earmarked for public education......c..cccoiiciiiiiciiciicn i $ 12,703

*Title 6, Chapter 27 of the South Carolina Code of Laws is known as the State Aid to Subdivisions Act. That Act requires the
State to appropriate not less than four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the latest completed fiscal year’s total budgetary
General Fund revenues to local governments. Accordingly, the State’s portion of the above revenues is ninety-five and one-
half percent (95.5%) of the budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation.

®The Other School Purposes expenditure category includes: (1) a State supplement to school districts to help pay the district

contribution toward public school employee benefits, (2) State expenditures for the Palmetto Unified School District,
(3) State expenditures for the Department of Juvenile Justice’s education program, and (4) State expenditures for the
Governor’s Office Division of Education.
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L. Mendel Rivers (Diane Roberts)
L. Mendel Rivers (1905-1970), a native of Gumville, served South Carolina on both the state
and national levels, including 29 years in the United States House of Representatives.

166



Statistical
Section

wisaodls

This section presents certain economic and
social data and financial trends over a
ten-year period.



State of South Carolina

Expenditures by Function

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Function 1989 1990 1991 1992

General government®...........cocococoooiveinn.. $ 261,929 314,764 § 251692 $ 234,092
Education .............ocoooiiii 240,491 270,237 262,697 241,230
Individual and family services®.................. 1,417 641 1,811,417 2,097,614 2,489,321
Health and environment™®.......................... — — — —
Social Services’.............ccooooovioveeeeei — — — —
Administration of justice.............................. 256,358 282,580 300,250 304,488
Resources and economic development...... 113,672 128,101 132,970 128,059
Transportation................ccceeeeececieeecene. 249,285 265,443 274,895 274,957
Miscellaneous.................ccccccccvviiiiiininns 70 30 — —
Capital outlay®...............c.oooooeeeceeeeee 38,634 25,854 25,166 22,819
Debt service:

Principal retirement.....................c............. 84,680 62,482 66,715 94,538

Interest and fiscal charges........................ 46,077 47,902 50,825 53,911
Intergovernmental.......................ccieena. 1,746,987 1,969,425 2,007,557 2,033,486

Total expenditures..........ccccoecvveeeerennennn. $ 4,455,824 $ 5178,235 $ 5,470,381 $ 5,876,901

a General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds.

b Until July 1, 1990, General Government expenditures included premiums for retiree health and dental insurance for all functional areas, Since July 1,
1990, the total premium cost has been allocated among the various functional areas. This resulted in a decrease in General Government expenditures

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991.

Beginning July 1, 1993, Individual and Family Services expenditures were divided into two new functional expenditure categories--Health and
Environment expenditures and Social Services expenditures. Prior years were not restated for this change.

Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and Human

Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external transactions in the
Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change.

recorded in the Special Revenue Funds.

168

Until July 1, 1993, all highway construction projects were included as Capital Project expenditures. Since July 1, 1993, these projects have been



State of South Carolina

#

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998
$ 247452 $ 399456 $§ 352,015 $ 330,519 § 351,156 $ 352,065
254,464 293,158 322,219 379,984 326,103 318,558

2,682,162 — — — — —

— 2,166,088 2,320,642 2,946,457 3,032,995 3,121,887
— 678,772 697,958 709,747 700,442 662,912
312,961 405,503 457,008 488,425 543,456 592,556
131,021 138,937 139,635 155,302 150,131 160,242
290,740 214,574 203,837 218,366 230,384 281,021
24,572 391,848 385,698 398,776 436,798 396,801
104,316 82,602 88,765 82,997 97,728 110,076
53,316 49,107 48,796 50,574 53,493 51,132
2,096,679 2,157,866 2,358,823 2,636,440 2,805,584 3,032,018
$ 6,197,683 $ 6977911 $ 7,37539 $ 8,397,587 $ 8,728,270 $ 9,079,268
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State of South Carolina

Revenues by Source
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES®
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)
Sources 1989 1990 1991 1992
Taxes:
Individual income............c.cccccoeeiiii $ 1225648 $ 1,361,839 $ 1,377,825 $ 1,386,724
Retail salesand use...........c.....cc...o. 1,359,200 1,464,989 1,463,941 1,515,223
Other...........cooiiieeee e, 958,058 918,270 914,729 911,036
Licenses, fees, and permits...................... 150,859 163,202 198,235 218,726
Interest and other investment
INCOME.. .o, 75,535 82,954 77,602 55,634
Federal..........ccccooiiiiiiiieiiieee e, 1,202,502 1,650,917 1,821,552 2,140,272
Departmental Services.......coovieee, 105,484 111,985 118,209 137,112
Contributions ........cooovveviii 30,316 31,812 54 337 81,232
Fines and penalties.....................ccevvvvnnenn. 24,235 31,034 31,643 43,610
Other......ooiieeeee e 44,971 37,775 32,045 43,552
Total revenues.........ccoceeeciimeerecisnmennans $ 5176,808 $ 5,854,777 $ 6,090,118 $ 6,533,121

* General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds.

° Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and
Human Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-externai
transactions in the Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

State of South Carolina

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998
1,481,592 1,519,030 1,646,375 1,809,287 1,927,600 $ 2,103,799
1,628,766 1,756,167 1,892,801 2,034,484 2,141,864 2,304,004

983,546 999,077 1,059,846 1,149,342 1,163,889 1,190,605
300,699 307,939 255,570 243,502 258,960 281,242
44,702 48,596 82,412 98,728 113,199 130,155
2,228,180 2,682,498 2,787,132 2,907,661 3,087,312 3,213,004
153,781 161,375 215,485 535,117 533,395 540,047
101,242 82,507 89,797 106,606 115,739 155,137
44,182 51,926 54,881 55,340 58,170 61,744
52,796 53,195 59,716 73,639 70,424 81,067
7,019,486 7,562,300 8,144,015 9,013,706 9,470,552 $ 10,060,804
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State of South Carolina

Income and Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year
Ended

June 30
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997

1998

Individual
Income

Tax
3-7%
3-7%

275-7%
250-7%
2.50-7%
2.50-7%
2.50-7%
2.50-7%
250-7%

2.50-7%

Corporate Retail

Income Sales
Tax Tax®
5% 5%
5% 5%
5% 5%
5% 5%
5% 5%
5% 5%
5% 5%
5% 5%
5% 5%
5% 5%

®Excludes the 2% accommodations tax and the local option sales tax.

Source: The Department of Revenue.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR
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Joseph Brevard Kershaw

Born in Camden and educated at home,
Joseph Kershaw (1822-1894) practiced
law and became a judge. His military
service began in the Mexican War in
1846 and reached its zenith during the
Civil War when Kershaw attained the
rank of major general in the Confederate
Army. He also served in the South
Carolina House and Senate.



State of South Carolina

Net General Obligation Bonds and Notes Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Debt Payable Net General
Gross From Higher Net General Bonded
Fiscal Bonded Education Bonded Debt
Year Ended Population® Debt’ Funds Debt® Per
June 30 (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) {(Thousands) Capita
1989 3,444 $ 709,165 $ 25,925 $ 683,240 $ 198.39
1990 3,486 807,911 28,071 779,840 223.71
1991 3,556 828,650 28,560 800,090 225.00
1992 3,595 876,305 44 570 831,735 231.36
1993 3,625 884,025 43,230 840,795 231.94
1994 3,654 929,571 40,420 889,151 243.34
1995 3,683 898,047 44,345 853,702 231.80
1996 3,717 1,007,394 41,900 965,494 259.75
1997 3,760 1,052,173 85,365 966,808 257.13
1998 3,822 1,036,642 84,465 952,177 249.13

@ Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board.

b Includes general obligation bonds payable and general obligation bond anticipation notes of both the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group and the Higher Education Funds and notes payable in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group.

Cc
Net general bonded debt is the gross general bonded debt less the general obligation debt payable not expected to
be repaid through general governmental resources (e.g., the debt payable from Higher Education Funds).

Note: Assessed value data is not presented because the State of South Carolina does not receive property tax
revenue.
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State of South Carolina

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

June 30, 1998
(Expressed in Thousands)

Section 59-107-90 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws limits State institution bonds legally
outstanding to $90 million.

Section 57-11-240 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws and Article X, Section 13 of the South
Carolina Constitution state that highway bonds may
be issued if such bonds are additionally secured by a
pledge of revenues designated by the General
Assembly for State highway Eurposes from taxes or
licenses imposed for using the public highways of
the State. The maximum annual debt service on all
highway bonds shall not exceed fifteen percent of

the proceeds received from the designated revenues
for the fiscal year next preceding.

Furthermore, Section 11-1%-430 states: "The
issuance of general obligation bonds of the State
must be limited so that the maximum annual debt
service on all general obligation bonds of the State
(excluding highway bonds, State institution bonds,
tax anticipation notes, and bond anticipation notes)
may not exceed five percent of the general revenues
of the State for the fiscal year next preceding
(excluding revenues which are authorized to be
pledged for State highway bonds and State
institution bonds)."

State institution bond Hmitation. ... $ 90,000
Less: State institution bonds outstanding at June 30, 1998. ... 84,465
Legal debt margin at June 30, 1998—institution bonds............cccciriiniiiiiiiiiiinnn, $ 5,535
1996-97 revenues derived from use of public highways ..............cccoooii $ 509,031
Less: revenues designated for SPeCIfic PUMPOSES @ ... .cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieceee e 100,592
1996-1997 revenues pledged for highway bonds.............cooiiiiiiiiii e $ 408,439
1996-1997 Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for highway bonds...........................one $ 101,704
1996-1997 other revenues pledged for highway bonds............cco..ooiiiii 306,735
1996-1997 revenues pledged for highway DONdS.............ooiiimiiiiiiiiiie e 408,439
15% of 1996-1997 revenues pledged for highway bonds..............cccoooiiiiiiii 61,266
Less: maximum annual debt senice for highway bonds © ..o 12,950
Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1998--highway bonds...........ccccceveerniniinccceenene, $ 48,316
1996-1997 Budgetary General FUuNd reVBNUES .............cceeriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 4,588,316
Less: 1996-1997 Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for

RIGAWAY DONAS ...t 101,704
Less: 1996-1997 transfers for institution bond debt senice recorded as

Budgetary General FUNd FeVBNUES................oociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 8,669
1996-1997 net Budgetary General Fund revenues....................ccoooiiiiii 4,477,943
5% of 1996-1997 net Budgetary General FUNd reVBNUES..............covviiviiiiiiiiiiiii i, 223,897
Less: maximum annual debt senice for general obligation bonds

excluding institution and highway DONAS P .............ccoiiiiiiiiiiee e 130,002
Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1998--general obligation bonds

excluding institution and highway bonds.......c...cccoeviniinnniinnn $ 93,895

2 These revenues, which include taxes allocated by law to the State General Fund, to other State agencies and
funds, and to County Transportation Committees, are not available to the Department of Transportation.

® As of June 30, 1998, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, for
highway bonds and in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001, for general obligation bonds (excluding institution

and highway bonds).
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State of South Carolina

é

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures

for General Obligation Debt to Total
General Governmental Expenditures®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Dollars in Thousands)

Fiscal Ratio of
Year Total General Debt Service to

Ended Debt Governmental General Governmental

June 30 Principal interest Service Expenditures Expenditures

1989 $ 84680 $ 46,077 $ 130,757 $ 4,455,824 2.93%
1990 62,482 47,902 110,384 5,178,235 2.13%
1991 66,715 50,825 117,540 5,470,381 2.15%
1992 94,538 53,911 148,449 5,876,901 2.53%
1993 104,316 53,316 157,632 6,197,683 2.54%
1994 82,602 49,107 131,709 6,977,911 1.89%
1995 88,765 48,796 137,561 7,375,396 1.87%
1996 82,997 50,574 133,571 8,397,587 1.59%
1997 97,728 53,493 151,221 8,728,270 1.73%
1998 110,076 51,132 161,208 9,079,268 1.78%

® General Governmental Expenditures include the General and Special Revenue Funds.

Benjamin Mays

Distinguished educator and early
civil rights leader Benjamin Mays
(1894-1984) was bom in
Greenwood County. From 1940 Photograph is not available
untii 1967 Mays served as in web version of CAFR
President of Morehouse College in
Atlanta, where he taught many
students, including Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr.
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State of South Carolina
“

Revenue Bond Coverage—Enterprise Funds *

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Dollars in Thousands)

SOUTH CAROLINA HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ©

Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue
Ended Gross Principal Operating Available for
June 30 Revenues Proceeds Expenses® Debt Service
1989 $ 69,673 $ 41,888 $ 4,758 $ 106,803
1990 71,017 45,028 5,853 110,192
1991 73,984 44,896 5,265 113,615
1992 68,431 103,495 5,314 166,612
1993 64,465 94,666 5,797 153,334
1994 53,871 116,082 5,703 164,250
1995 52,576 44,228 6,611 90,193
1996 51,109 55,527 6,093 100,543
1997 50,520 47,254 6,273 91,501
1998 52,825 62,732 6,608 108,949

SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY ©*

Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue
Ended Gross Principal Operating Available for
June 30 Revenues Proceeds Expenses® Debt Service
1989 $ 19,541 $ 10,677 $ 7,477 $ 22,741
1990 24,312 15,249 ' 4,663 34,898
1991 22,969 18,087 8,320 32,736
1992 32,411 23,163 9,025 46,549
1993 35,697 28,402 11,299 52,800
1994 35,207 32,965 6,450 61,722
1995 41,164 36,715 7,641 70,238
1996 44 597 47,735 7,108 85,224
1997 45,130 43,907 7,479 81,558
1998 44,708 43,402 8,252 79,858

# Computations are based on data provided by the authorities. There may be classification differences between this data and data found elsewhere
in this report.

® Excludes depreciation, amortization, and interest expense.

 These entities use bond proceeds to make loans to non-governmental parties. Accordingly, principal proceeds received are included as a
revenue in the calculation of the Net Revenue Available for Debt Service.

“In years prior to 1994, the South Carolina Education Assistance Authority Fund included the Student Loan Corporation. Previous years have not
been restated.
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State of South Carolina
#

Debt Service Requirements

Coverage
Principal Interest Total Ratio
$ 10,125 $ 55,412 $ 65,537 1.63
10,010 56,661 66,671 1.65
10,025 59,359 69,384 1.64
11,325 59,468 70,793 2.35
43,103 49,503 92,606 1.66
81,965 39,405 121,370 1.356
11,7156 35,307 47,022 1.92
9,880 34,492 44 372 2.27
11,070 33,588 44,658 2.05
11,645 33,629 45,274 2.41
Debt Service Requirements
Coverage
Principal Interest Total Ratio

$ 7,330 $ 7.477 $ 14,807 1.54
11,440 11,864 23,304 1.50
17,665 12,419 30,084 1.09
21,320 14,284 35,604 1.31
22,480 17,507 39,987 1.32
24,895 19,199 44,094 1.40
34,795 21,469 56,264 1.25
32,155 23,563 55,718 1.53
29,395 21,971 51,366 1.59
47,515 20,275 67,790 1.18

Benjamin Ryan Tillman

Benjamin Ryan “Pitchfork Ben”
Tillman (1847-1918) was a popular
governor and senator whose legacy to
South Carolina was the founding of

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Winthrop and Clemson Universities.




State of South Carolina

Demographic Statistics

Last Ten Years

Sources:

Median
Per Capita Age® School Unemployment
Population® Income® (Years) Enroliment® Rate®
at Year Ended at at at
Year June 30 December 31 June 30 June 30 December 31
1988 3,400,000 3 13,192 31.0 676,847 4.3%
1989 3,444,000 13,884 31.4 678,050 4.6%
1990 3,486,310 15,106 31.7 677,356 52%
1991 3,556,000 15,482 32.2 681,717 6.5%
1992 3,595,000 16,467 32.6 685,744 6.7%
1993 3,624,570 17,242 32.9 688,513 7.3%
1994 3,653,615 18,072 33.3 692,515 5.2%
1995 3,683,395 19,073 33.7 701,140 5.5%
1996 3,716,645 19,898 34.1 699,058 58%
1997 3,760,181 20,755 345 708,751 3.7%
1998 3,821,900 d 35.0 718,969 d

0ffice of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board

®South Carolina Department of Education

°South Carolina Employment Security Commission

INot yet available.
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State of South Carolina

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits

Last Ten Years

(Dollars in Millions)
Nonresidential Residential
Construction Construction® Property Value®
Thousands of Number of Bank Nonresidential Residential
Square Feet at Units at Value at Deposits at at at
Year December 31 December 31 December31 December 31 June 30 June 30
1987 26,085 26991 § 1,489 $ 23,612 $ 28,364 $ 29,114
1988 24,598 25,563 1,438 26,022 34,127 31,241
1989 20,263 20,530 1,252 27,849 34,936 33,869
1990 20,866 22,454 1,475 29,091 37,079 38,852
1991 18,504 19,309 1,372 29,528 39,089 41,220
1992 16,747 20,853 1,585 30,224 41,104 45,926
1993 18,139 21,186 1,662 31,005 43,084 50,963
1994 19,566 23,670 1,898 30,475 44,204 54,118
1995 23,618 22,400 1,826 33,035 45,334 57,987
1996 26,381 28,281 2,402 30,032 46,864 60,977
1997 31,397 27,984 2,430 23,515 ¢ d
1998 c [ c c d d

# The residential construction statistics exclude mobile home permits.
g Property taxes do not represent a source of revenue for the State.
° Not yet available.

‘ Due to legislation requiring that tax assessments be based on the prior year's property value, neither the 1997 nor
1998 information is yet available.

Sources: Board of Economic Advisors, State Budget and Control Board; Department of Revenue; University of South
Carolina, College of Business Administration, Division of Research.
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State of South Carolina

Largest Manufacturing Companies®
December 31, 1997

Number of Plants Number of Employees
Name in South Carolina in South Carolina
Westinghouse Electric Corporation............. 3 13,036
Springs Industries, Incorporated.................. 20 9,301
Milliken & Company..............coecevvvvceieeienen. 30 7,639
Michelin Tire Corporation..............cccccvvvnni. 7 6,346
WestPoint Stevens.............ccccoeivinn. 6 4,677
Robert Bosch GmbH.....................i. 5 3,748
HoeChst AG......coovvveeiie e, 4 3,529
AB Electrolux Sweden................................. 2 3,100
Ingersoll-Rand Company..................cceevveee. 5 3,080
Greenwood Mills, Incorporated.................... 9 2,939
W. R. Grace & Company...............ccceeeennn... 5 2,938
AlliedSignal, Incorporated........................... 6 2,696
KEMET Corporation.........ccccccoevviviiiriiennenn. 4 2,631
JPS Textile Group..........ccovvvvviviiiiiieriiiienenns 5 2,535
E. I. du Pont de Nemours...............ccoceeeenee 4 2,495
Ryobi North America, Incorporated............. 3 2,467
Gold Kist Incorporated ...............cccvvvvvennins 1 2,353
General Electric Company...........ccccoceueee... 2 2,325
Spartan Mills ... 8 2,284
Sonoco Products Company............cceeeveeeeeee 5 2,276
Avondale Mills..............cooeeviiiiniis 8 2,227
Owens-Corning Fiberglas Corporation......... 4 2,225

®Based on number of employees. This list includes all companies with 2,200 or more employees.

Source: 1998-99 South Carolina Industrial Directory.
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Miscellaneous Statistics
December 31, 1997 (Except as Noted)

Date of ratification--U. S. Constitution. ...,

FOrm of QOVEIMMENL........cooiiiiiiiiiii e
Miles of State NIGAWAYS. ...

Land area (square miles).............cocceeeeencns e e

State police protection:

Police and sheriff agencies...........ccocccoiviiiiiiiiiiii e
Total number of sSWorn OffiCers. ...

Higher education (universities, colleges, and
technical education centers):

NUMbDEr Of CAMPUSES.........oo i
NUMDEr Of StUAENES. ..o

Recreation:

Number of State parks and historical Sites.................ccccoi
Area of State ParkS.............ooiiiieiee e
Area of State foreStS. ... ..o

State employees--all funds (at June 30,1998)..............ccciiiii

Sources:

41998 Legislative Manual

®Department of Transportation

“Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board
dState Law Enforcement Division

*Commission on Higher Education

'Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism

9Forestry Commission

"Office of State Budget, State Budget and Control Board

State of South Carolina

1788°

Legislative-Executive-Judicial
64,774°

30,111°

295¢°
9,116°

61°
185,081°

56'
81,799 acres’
71,922 acres?

68,872"
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Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

John C. Calhoun

Born in Abbeville, John C. Calhoun’s (1782-1850) lengthy political career included service
as Secretary of State, Secretary of War, and Vice-President under Andrew Jackson and John
Quincy Adams. He achieved lasting fame in the United States Senate, where he was well
known for his rhetorical skills and advocacy of states’ rights.
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4,000 copies of this document were published at an estimated printing cost of $3.51 each, and a total printing
cost of $14,049.00. Section 72.43 of the 1998-99 Appropriations Act requires this information on printing cost
to be added to the document.
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